GORDON J. MACDONALD
ATTORNEY GENERAL

. MAYOB'20 an 9:38 DAS
ATTORNEY GENERAL :

DEPARTMENT OF.JUSTICE

33 CAPITOL STREET
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

70

JANE E. YOUNG
DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

May 4, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councnl

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to enter into subgrants with the
organizations listed below in the total amount of $6,869,816.80 from the Federal Victim of
Crime Act Grant (VOCA) for the purpose of providing direct services to victims of crime
effective July 1, 2020, upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30,
2022. 100% Federal Funds.

Fundmg is avallablc as follows, with the ablllty to adjust encumbrances through thc

. Budget Office if needed and justified:

02-20-20-201510-5021,

Victims of Cr_ime Act Grant:

Current

., Account | Subrecipient ) Vendor # Current | Totals
‘ o Subgrant Subgrant :
. FY 2021 FY 2022

072- Belknap County 177360- | $85,226.40 $85,226.40 $170,452.80
500574 | Attorney’s Office B004 B e :
072- - New Hampshire 154648- | $663,275.00 | $663,275.00 $1,326,550.00
500575 | Legal Assistance B001
072- Court Appointed 156690- | $669,409.00 | $643,849.00 $1,313,258.00
500575 | Special 1 B0Ol :
) Advocates of NH : '
072- Victims, Inc. 166724- | $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $£170,000.00
500575 B0O1 " :

Telephone 603-271-3658 « FAX 603-271-2110

* TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
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072- Granite State 172495- | $1,101,716.0 | $1,101,716.00 | $2,203,432.00
500575 | Children’s Alliance | BOOI 0
072- The Child 165511- | $128,148.00 | $128,148.00 | $256,296.00
500575 | Advocacy Center B001 ‘
of Carroll County | :
072- Merrimack County | 177435- | $120,000.00 | $120,000.00 | $240,000.00
500574 | Child Advocacy B0OS '
. Center A :
072- Child Advocacy 167955- | $119,000.00 | $119,000.00 | $238,000.00
500575 | Center of Coos B0O1 | ' '
County '
072- Front Door Agency | 156244- [ $155,000.00 | $155,000.00 | $310,000.00
500575 BOOY T
072- Northern Human 177222- | $320,914.00 | $320,914.00 | $641,828.00
500575 | Services BO83
2. Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to enter into subgrants as the result of

a competitive Request for Proposal (RFP) process, with the organizations listed below in the
total amount of $1,190,292.40 from the Federal Victim of Crime Act Grant (VOCA) for the
purpose of providing direct services to victims of crime effective J uly 1, 2020 upon Governor
and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2022. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding.is available as follows, with the ability to adjust encumbrances through the
Budget Office if needed and justified:

02-20-20-201510-5021,

Victims of Crime Act Grant:

Subgrant

Account | Subrecipient - Vendor # Subgrant | Totals
- FY 2021 FY 2022

072- Granite United Way 160015- | $92,868.20 | $118,695.20 | $211,563.40
500575 ' B0O1 ,
072- Lakes Region 177251- | $116,450.00 | $133,550.00 | $250,000.00
500575 | Community Services B0O1

Council
072- New Hampshire 154648- | $177,714.00 | $182,286.00 | $360,000.00
500575 | Legal Assistance B0O1
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072- Granite State 172495- $34,000.00 | $34,399 $68,399.00
500575 | Children’s Alliance | BOO1 o
072- Legal Advice & Referral | 216800- $125,175.00 | $175,155.00 | $300,330.00
500575 | Center -~ . | B001 ‘ :

EXPLANATION

VOCA was enacted by Congress in 1984 and it established the Crime Victims Fund.
Fines paid by offenders of federal crimes are deposited into this Fund. Money from the Fund is
then distributed to states for the benefit of victims of crime. DOJ is the receiving agency for
VOCA funds in New Hampshire. - '

DOJ subgrants these funds to agencies providing direct services to victims of crime.
Agencies providing services in the fields of sexual assault, domestic violence, traditionally

" underserved populations and crimes against children are required to be given priority, For many

years, DOJ has directed VOCA funds to certain core service providers that offer these services.

Many of those core service providers are included in Requested Action #1.

In the spring of 2019, DOJ conducted'a victims’ services needs assessment. The results
of that needs assessment have assisted in developing future funding priorities for victim services
for the state. The needs assessment identified housing, legal services, and mental health as the
top needs for victims of crime in New Hampshire. :

_ The DOJ released a competitive RFP with up to $2 million in VOCA grant funding

available for crime victim services. The RFP scope was targeted to the highest priorities
identified from the resuits of the victim services needs assessment. The RFP was posted on the
statewide purchasing website, the DOJ’s website and in two major newspapers. An email
notification of the RFP went out to several hundred victims’ service provider contacts. In
response to the RFP, seventeen grant applications were received. A scoring committee reviewed
~ the applications and made a recommendation to fund €ight organizations for a total of $2 million.
Six of the eight organizations recommended for funding are in these requested actions. The
remaining two organizations are still in the process of completing their grant agreements, We
expect to submit those remaining two agreements to Governor and Council at a later date.

This core funding outlined in Requested Action #1 will support many different victims’
service agencies. Belknap County Attorney’s Office for Victim Witness Assistance provides
valuable victim advocate support to victims of crime. The crimes impacting these victims
include, but are not limited to, assaults; robbery, and kidnapping. "Victims, Inc. provides.
advocacy to.victims of crime, including support for DUI/DWI, assaults and negli gent homicide.
The Front Door Agency is a non-profit that invests in individuals and families in crisis who need
assistance and support to become sélf-sufficient. This VOCA funding will specifically provide
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the Front Door Agency with housing and self-sufﬁc1ency support to victims of domestic
violence. .

Other core service providers receiving funding under Requested Action #1 are child
advocacy centers across the state. The Strafford, Carroll, Merrimack, and Coos County Child
Advocacy Centers and Granite State Children’s Alliance (GSCA) conduct forensic interviews for
children who are victims of or witnesses to crimes. In addition to forensic interviews, they also
provide direct victim services to their victims and families by providing follow up arid resources
to the children and non-offending family members. GSCA plans to use the funding in Requested
Action #2 towards salary and benefits to hire a Family Support Specialist who will assist in
providing mental health services and other-valuable resources to victims and their families.

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire (CASA) provides court advocacy
to victims of child abuse and neglect. Its core victim service funding and funding in response to
the RFP are included in Requested Action #1. In addition to its core services, CASA will use the
funding to increase legal support provnded to CASA and its volunteers and increase volunteer
recruitment,

New Hampshlre Legal Assistance (NHLA) provides legal aid to victims of crime. Its
core victim services funding is included in Requested Action #1. The funding to NHLA in
Requested Action #2 will provide increased holistic legal services to victims of domestic
violence, sexual assault, stalking, trafficking, and elder abuse across the state. With this funding,
NHLA will also conduct outreach focused on connecting with older adults and other underserved
victims and building a lasting connections to semces for these commumtles

Three of the agencies in Requested ActiOn #2 are completely new subrecipients of
VOCA funds received through DOJ. This requested action will support the Granite United Way
and Lakes Region Community Services Council for expenses incurred and services provided for
both direct victim services and the members of the Adverse Childhood Experiences Response
Teams (ACERT). ACERT: are coordinated systems of support focused specifically on
providing services to children affected by trauma as a result of crime. The Legal Advice and
- Referral Center will use this grant funding to improve access to and delivery of enhanced legal
services for victims, while identifying gaps in resources and unmet needs for stakeholder
attention and action.

In the event that federal funds are no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.
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Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated. '

Respectfully submitted,

mDonald |

Attorney General

#2724255



GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshirc and the Subrecipient hereby
’ Mutually agree-as follows;

: GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions, . .
1.1. State Agency Name - - 1.2. State Apency Address
New Hanmpshire Department of Justice 33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301
1.3. Subrecipient Name . 1.4. Subrecipient Address .
Belknap County Attorney's Office 64 Court Street,.Laconia, NH 03246
1.5 Subrecipient Phone # 1.6. Account Number 1.7. Complstion Date 1.8. Grant Limitation
(803) 527-5440 o 8(2];7;;:20'20!510_'5021-072-5 09/30/2022 . ' ’ 170,452.80
1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency 1.10. Siate Agency Telephone Number
Thomas Kaempfer '|(803) 271-3658

"By signing this forn we certify that we have complied with any public mesting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31:95-b." . .

v

1.11. Subrecipient Signature 1 o 1.12. Name & Titie of Subrecipient Signor 1
y e W | Debra ShackeH, Cowuthy Adrmirmsirat
Subrecipient Signature 2 If Applicabie _ Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 If Applicable :

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of 6¢|EHRF '
on §/r[a03%efore the wndersigned officer, personally gppeared the persol! identified in block 1.12., known o me (or
satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11,, and ecknowledged that he/she executed this
document in the capacity indicated in block 1,12, -

J 1134, Siggatyce of Nolary Public or Justice of the Peace
(Setd) ~ M

"y | 11 3.2., Nameé & TM&W Public or Justice of the Pjg&ﬁ o L. Ellsworth, Notary Public
' - My Commission Expires October 21, 2020
1.14,  State Agency Signature(s) : 1.15, Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)
. ™Mo mes apfEr, Adransiretor
i /

1.16. Approval by Attorney General (Forn, Substance and Exccl.{lion) (if G & C approval required)

Assistant Attorney General, On: + [/ /

By:___ .
7akhimena A . 41812020

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: . On: /o

2.3COPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hcreinafier referred to as “Ihe State™), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hercinafter referred to as
“the Subrecipient™), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto a5
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as “the Project'™).

Rev. 92015 : Pagé [ of 25 . Subrecipicnt Initial(s): _ ¥

Date: 3 IQ[ 20
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* With 1) ‘dtandes, Tnws togulntions, a

AREA COVERED. Exeept es otherwise specifically provided for lerein, the
Subrecipient shall perfony the Project in, md with respect io, the Stete of New
Hunpshire.
v N
This Agreement, and all obligations of the pnmcs hereunder, shnll become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Govemor
and Council of the State of New Rampshirs if required (block 1.17), or upon
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 (“the effcctive date™),
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all
reports mquimd by thiz Agreement, shall be completed in ITS enlirety prior to
the date in block 1,7 (hmumnntrrefcnul o a8 “the Completlon Dato"}
1 TAT

The Grant Amount i ls identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B,
atinched Lereto.
The manncr of, and schedule of payment shall be ps set forth in EXHIBIT B,
In accortlance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as deteunined by the State, and as
Limited by subparegrnph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State ghall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount, The State shall withhold from the mnount
othenwise payable to the Submeeipient under thiz subpacagraph 5.3 those sums
tequired, or permitted, to be withheld pursuaut to N.H, RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The pnyment by the State of the Giant umount ghall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Su.bmcxplcnt for all txpenses, of whntever nature,
incurred Ly the Subrecipient in the performance hereof, snd shall be the only,
nnd the complete, conipensation to the Subrecipient for the Project,  The State
thall have no liabilitics to the Subrecipicut other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithstanding muything in this Agcoment to the contmey, mnd
notwithistanding unexpecied circumstances, in no event shall the total of all
payments authotized, or actuntly made, hereunder excesd the Grant limitation
set forth in block 1.8 of these generml provisions.

EGIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS,
In connection w1th the performance of the Project, the Subwceipieot shall comply
[ drders 'of federn), state, a,coun!y. or
municipal- awthorities which shall imposc ‘nay obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient, including the ncqulsmcm of any end all necessary p:rmns
RECORDS a4 ACCOUNTS,
Between the Effective Daote 2nd the date three (3) years after the Cumphﬂon
Dete the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all cxpenses incurred in

" connection with the !iject1 including, but not limited . 1o, . qosts of

administrtion, transportation, insurauce, telephone cafls, nnd clerical materials
nod services. Such accouats shall be supported by receipfs, invoices, bifls and
other similar documents,

Between the Effective Date aad the daie three (3) years after the Complcnon
Date, at any time during the Subrecipient’s normal business hours? and as ofien
‘ag the State shall demsnd, the Subvecipient shhll nuake available to the State all
records pertaining to 1untters covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shali
penmit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
sudits of afl contracts, invoices, ivaterials, payrolls, records of personael, dala
(as that tenn is hereinafter defmed), and other information relating to a1 matters
covered by this Agreement. As used in this parngraph, *Subrecipient™ includes
ull petsons, natural or fictional, affiliated wifly, controtied by, or under common
ownership wilh, the entity n:lenhf ed as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions

The Subrecipient shall at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to
perform the Project. The Subrecipient warrants that all personnel cngoged in the
Project shall be qualified to perfonn such Project, aud sbell be properly licensed
and authorized to perfonn such Project wider ell applicable lnws,

The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall pot perrit any subcontractor,
subgrantee, ar other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in o
coubhined effort to perform the Project, o hire any person who has a coniractual
relationship with the State, or who is a Stata officer or employes, elected or
appointed.

The Grant Officer shall be the repn:senm:we of the State heceunder. Tn the cvent
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grot
Officer, and histher decision on any dispute, shall be final,

DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used [u this Agresment, the word “datn” shall mean all information and
things developed or oblained during the performance of, or mcquired or
developed by reason of, this Agreeient, including, but not Jimited to, alt studies,
repords,  files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictoriel reproductions, dmwings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer progroms, computer printouts, notes, letters, memorands, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or vofinished,

Page 2 of 25

1L
1LL

1111
111.2
113
1114
1.2

1121

1122

1123
11,24

12,
12.1.

12.2.

123,

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient shall
grant to the State, or any person designated by it, wnrestricted access to all data
for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or fov any
other puipose whatsocver.

No datn shall be subject to copyright in tho United Sttes or acy other ccunu)r by
anyone ather than the State.

- On end after the Effective Date all duta, and any p"apcny which has been

received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be retumed to the
Stute upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shell ficst occur. |,

The State, and nnyone it shall desigoate, shall have unrestricted autherity lo
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, fn whole or in part, all data.

. Nobwithstanding saything in
this Agrecment to the contracy, ell obtigations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or coatinued appropristion of funds, and in no event shall the
Siats Le liabls for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or
approprinted funds, 1a the eveat of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
State shall have the, right to withhold payment until such fuads becoms
availeble, if ever, end shall have the right to temmnntc this Agreemen:
inuuediately upon giving the Subrecipient potice of such teamination,

- BVENT QF DREFALULT, REMEDIES.

Any one or more.of the following acts or omissions o the Subrecipient shell
conslitute an event of defiult hereunder (hercinafler reftrred to as “Fvents of
Defanlt™: ’

Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily ar on schadule; or

Failure to suthmit sy report required hereunder; or

Foilure to malntain, or permit nceess to, the records required hereunder,; or
Failure to perforn aoy of the other coverants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrcaes of any Event of Default, the State mry take any one, or -
more, or oll, of the following actiona: :
Give the Subreciptent a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it to be remedied within, in (he ebsence of a greater or [esser
specification of time, thisty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
Event of Default is not tinely resaedied, tenminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Subrecipicnt notice of termination; and

Give the Subrecipient o writlen noltice specifying the Event of Defnuit and

_ suspending ali payments 1o be mnde under this Agreement ant omering that the

portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise acerut 1o the Subrecipient
during the period fromn the date of such potice until ‘siek time a5 the State
deteruiines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Dt shalt iever be
paid to the Subredipient; and

Set off against any other obligntion the State inay owe to the Bubrecnpxwt w
duneges the State suffers by reason of any Event of, Dcfnuu, and .

Treat the agreement a5 bmnched nnd pumue nnv of ity i‘guedfs M luw o; m

equ:ty,orboth R Fe . o
e A N ke

In th;e ‘even: of any early tzrmmntlon of this Ag:eemmt fur any ‘tengorf other thn

the completion of the Préject, the Submclp::nt sball deliver to this-Grant thccl,

nol later than fiflsen (L15) days afiey the date of tenninatide, 2 rcpottr(hekéxhnﬁer
referred to as the *Termination Report™ describing in deteil ali Pho jeet Work
performed, -end the Grant Amount camed, to and including e date of
termination.
In the ewear of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 124 of these gr.neml
provisions, the approval of such a Tenmination Report by the State shiall entitle
the Stbrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant mount eamed to and
including the date of terminntics.,
in the event of Termination under pamgraphs [0 or 124 of these general
provisions, the approvel of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
cvent relieve the Subrecipient from any and all lability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrecipicat’s brench of its obligations
bereunder.’ .
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to (be contrmry, either the State or,
except where notice default has been giver to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient, 1nay téminate this Amemen! without cause upon thmy (30) days
writfen notice.

No oﬁiccr, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or eraployes of the Stale of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or jocalities in which the
Project is to be perfonned, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects bis or her

Subrecipient Initia(s): _'m
Date: 3[i1/20
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persona! intevest or the interest of any corporntion, partnership, or associstion
i which he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor ghell lie or she have
any personsl or pecuninyy interest, diccet or indirect, ju this Agreement or the
oveeds thereof ’

SUBRECIPIENT'S. RELAITON. TO THI: STATE. ‘In the performance of this

Agreement the Subiccipient, its comployees, end any subconitactor o

subgrintee of the Subrecipient me in all respects independent coutractors, and 18,

are neitber ngents nor eniployees of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employees, agenis, members, subcontractors or subprintecs,
shiall bave authority to bind the State nor are they entitied to any of the Lenefits,
workien's compensation or emolwneats pmwdnd by the State to its
cuployees.

ASSIGNMENT. AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipicnt shall not essign,

or viberwise transfer. any interest in‘this Agreement without the prior writien 19,

consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontmeted or
snhgmned by the Subrecipicnt other than s set forth in Exhibit A without the
prioy wriltcn consent of the State.

NDIRANIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, mdemml}r and hold 20,

harmless the State, ity officers and employees, from and against any and afl
losses suifered by the Stnte, its ofTicers and emplayees, and acy aud all claims,
finbilitics or penaltics nsscrted apninst the Suate, its officers and employees, by

or on bahalf of any person, on account of, bnsed on, resulting from, arising our 21,

of {or which may be claimed o arise oul of) the acts or omissions of the
Subreeipiont or subconhactor, ur subgrmutee or other agent of the Subrecipieat.
Nutwuh-ehndmg the foregoing, norhmg herein contained rhall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign imamnity of the State, which immenily is
hereby reserved 1o the State. This covenant ghall survive the temuination of

this ngreement. 2.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own -¢xpense, obtain and maintnin in force, or 23,

shall require any subcontmetor, subgmntee or nssignec performing Project
work to oblain and maintain in farce, bolh for the benefit of the Stale, the
following insurance: "

Statulory workimen’s compensalion it cmp]oyccs Hiability insurnnce for all 24.

employees engaged in the performance of ihe Project, and

Comprehensive public Hability inswzance apainst all claims of bodily injuries,
death or prepeity damage, in amounts not less than 31,000,000 per occaerrence
and 32,000,000 wggregate for. bodily injury or death any one incitlcnt, and
$500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and
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[7.2. The policies described i subpamgraph 17.1 of this bamgmph shall be the

standard form emgoyed in the Stats of New Hampshire, issued by underwiiters
acceptubie to the Stete, and authorized to do business in the Sinte of New
Hampehire.  Bach policy shell contain & clause prohibiting canceliation or
moiitication of the policy earficr tha: ten (10) days after written natise thereof
has been received by the State. ]

WAIVER OF BRIEACH, No failure-by the State to enforce any provisiona
heseof after nay Lven: of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regrrd 10 that Event, or any subscquant Event. No express waiver of eny Event
of Dethult shell be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof, No such Rilure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State (o cnforce cach and all
of the"provisions hereaf upon any funher or other defavit on the part of the
Subrecipicnt

NOTICE. Any notice by a parly hereto to the other party shall be deeiued teo
hnve been duly delivered or given at the time of naailing by cetified 1mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States ?ust Offtce addressed to the pactics at the
addnesses fitst above given.

AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be mmended, waived or disclacged only
by an instiument in writing signed by the panties hereto end oaly after approval
of such onendment, waiver or dischage by the Gavernor and Couneli of the
Sta'e of Mew Hampshire, if mequired or by the signing State Agency,
CONSTRUCTION. O AGREEMENT AND) TERMS. This n‘\uf\'-emcﬂ“ihﬂ“ be
constiued in accordance with the law of the Siate of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon aod inures to the Lenefit of the pacties and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of ths “subject” blank are
used only as a matter of convenieace, and nre not to be considered o part of this

" Agrecment o to-be vsed in deternining the intend of the parties hereto,

THIRD PARTIEY. The partics hiereto do not inter:d to benefit any third porties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit,

ENTIRE AQREEMENT, ‘Fhis Agreement, which may he executed in 4 number
of countarparts, cach of whick shall be deemed an originsl, constitutes the cutire
agreement and understanding between the puities, aod . supclsedu all wrior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.

SPECIAL. PROVISIONS.  Tue additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C
hereto are incorpornted as part of this agresment,

Subrecipient ]nilial(s.): 7 Z >
Date: 3[ { ‘”ZD
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EXHIBIT A
-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

. Belknap County Attornéy’s Office as Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New

Hampshite Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incured and services provided for
direct victim services provided by the Victiny/Witness Program under the Victims of
Crime At Grant to include expenses for personnel, travel and training.

) :
The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on Budge'led expenditures
described if. Exhibit B. ‘The Subr ecipient shall submit incusred expenses for °
reimbuwrsement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quartérly activities. Exﬁenditlu'e reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late end out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on Janﬁary 1, the first quarterly
report is due on April 15% or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March
31 ‘ _ ' :

Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation. should be maintained for at least S‘yéars after the close of the proj ect,

' Subrcmplent shall be required to subnut an annual grant apphcatmn to the DOJ for
- review and conpliance.

.. Subrecipient shaﬂ be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviéws by DOJ. Such -

desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedulc :

All con'espondencc and submjttals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice '

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-7820 or Rhonda. Beauchemin@doj.nh.gov.
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EXHIBIT B
. -METHOD OF -PA’YMENT-

. The Sublec;plent shall receive Lennbursement in exchange for approved cxpendnum
repoﬂs as dcscnbcd in EXHIBIT A. :

The Subrecipien.t shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOI's
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient’s account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire. :

. The State’s c;b'ligntion to compensate me'Subrgcipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $85 ,226.40 of the
totel Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/20,
whichever is later, to 06/30/21, with approved expenditure reports. This shall be '
contingent on continued federal funding and prograr per formance

3b. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $85,226.40 of the
totel Giant Limitation from 07/01/21 to 06/30/22, with’ approved expenditure
reposts. This shall be contmgent on continued federal funding and program
performance. :

i.  With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the
Subrecipient may apply for an extension of the grant period for up to
" three months. The Subrecipent must submit the request in writing. No
* extension is granted-until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

il.-  Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ-will be 1'esponsibflc for any expenses
or costs incurred under this agreement prior to Govemor and Council
approval, nor after 06/30/22 or 9/30/22 if an extension is approved.
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EXBIBIT C
:SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipients shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.
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1.
. Statements .

EXHIBIT C
2018-V2-GX-0036

SPECIAL CONDITIONS
Requirements of the awerd; remedies for nOn-comphance o1 for materially false

The conditions of this award are material requirernents of the award. Compliance
with any certifications or assurances submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that
relate to conduct duung the period of performance also is a material requirement of

. this award.

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award rcquircments -- whether a
condition set out in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or a
certification or assurance related to conduct during the award period —-may result in
the Office of Justice Programs (*OJP") taking appropriate action with respect to the
recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may withhold award funds,
disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award, The Department of Tustice
("DOI"), including OIP, also may take-other legal action ‘as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government
related to this award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,-and/or
34 0.8.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherw1se (mcludmg under 31 U.S.C.
3729-3730 and 3801-3812). '

g
“Should any provision of a requirement of this award be hield to be invalid or

uncnforceable by its terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited
construction so s to gwe it the maximum effect permitted by law, Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be
deemed severable from this award.

Applicability of Part 200 Uniforin Reqmrements- :

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
in2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOY in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800.
(together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requlremsnts“) apply to this FY 2018 award from
QJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26,
2014, If this FY 2018 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under
the same award number (e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the
Part 200 Uniform Requirements apply with rcspect to all funds under that award
number

(regardless of the award date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial
award or a supplemental award) that are obligated on or after the acceptance date of
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EXHIBIT C

this FY 2018 award, , ‘

For more infonmation and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they
relate to QJP awards and subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP wcb31te at
htips://oip.gov/funding atﬂOOUmfmch uir ements It \

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and
‘any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3
years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unlessa
_ different retention period applies — and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient
("subgrantee") at any tier) must provide access, include performance measurement
information, in addition to the financial records, supporting documents, statistical
records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.333.

Tn the event that an award-related question ariscs from documents or other materials
prepared or distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some
way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Umfm m chutrcmcnts the 1ecxpxent is to
contact OJP promptly for clarification. .

. Compliance with DOJ Financial Guide 7

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide
as posted on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Graits Financial Guide” available
at https://ojp.gov/inancialguide/DOJindex htm), including any updated version that
may be posted during the petiod of performance. The subrecipient agrees to comph
WLth the DOJ Grants Financial Guide.

: Reclasmﬁcauon of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States
Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions prewously codlfied clscwhere in
the U.8. Code were editorially reclassified to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control
and Law Eriforcement.” The reclassification encompassed a number of statutory
provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants'and cooperative agreements),
including many provi,sions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Cod’e. ..

Bffective as of September 1 2017 any reference in this award documenttoa -
statutory provision that has been reclassdied to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is
to be read as a reference to that statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This
rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions,
references set out in material incorporated by reference through award conditions,
and references st out in o_thcr award requirements, ‘

.. Requlrements related to "de mirimis' mdu ect cost rate
A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and othe;
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EXHIBIT C .

applicable law to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R.
200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost tate, must advise QJP
in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated
requirements in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be
apphied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined

by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

. Requirement to repoit actual or unmment b1 each of petsonally identifiable
information (PII} .
The recipient (and any "subrecipient” at any tlel) must have wnrtcn procedures in
place to respond in the event of an actual or imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it
(or a subrecipient)-- 1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, ]
~_disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable information (PII)" (2
" CFR. 200, 79) withir:-the scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or 2) uses
or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB Circular A-130). The recipient's
breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of
" PII to an OJP Program Manager no Jater than 24 hours after an occurrence of an
actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

. All subawards (“subgrants”) must have specific federal authozization
The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at'any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements for authorization of any subawerd. This condition applies to
agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants administrative requirernents -- QJP
considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement
"contract").
The details of the requirement for authorization of any subawald are posted on.the
OJP wéb site at
https://ojp. gov/fundmg/Explme/SubawaniAuthonzatLon htm (Award condition: A.U
subawards ("'subgrants"} must have specific federal authorization), and are
incorporated by reference here.

. Specnﬁc post-award approval 1equued to use a noncompetitive approach n any
procurement contract that would exceed $250,000. The Subsecipient af any tier, must
comply with alf apphcable requiremients to obtain specific advance approval to use a
noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250 ,000). This condition applies to
agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP
considers a procurement "contract” (and therefore does not consider a subaward).”

The details of the requirement for advance approval{o use a noncompetitive approach in
a procurerient contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award -

condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract (if contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by

reference here.
Subrecipient Initials __P3 i
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10.

EXHIBIT C

Requirements peitaining to prohibited conduct refated to trafficking in persons
(including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award). The
recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantes") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements (incloding requirements to report allegations) pertaining to
prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of
recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees”), or individuals defined (for purposes of this
condition) as "employees" of the recipient or of any subrecipient. The details of the
recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons
are posted on the OJP web site at htip:/ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-
Trafficking. htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and '
subrecipients related to traffickiog in persons (including reporting requirements and
QJP authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here. '

Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events. '

The subgrantce at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies,
and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and réporting
requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses
related to conferences (as that term is'defined by DOJ), including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, arid costs of attendance at such conferences,

- Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to '

11.

this award appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide {currently, as section 3.10 of
"Post-award Requirements" in'the "2015 DOJ Grants Financisl Guide").

Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

the recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and
effectivencss of activities under this award, The data must be provided to OJP in the
manrer (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation
or other applicable written guidance, Data collection supports compliance with the
Governiment Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act

- of 2010, and other applicable laws.

12,

13,

OIP Training Guiding Prineiples .

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient
("subgrantee) at any tier -- develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere
to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgraritees, available at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Implement/T; rainingPrinciplesForGrantees-Subgrantees.htm

Cormpliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination —
28 CFR. Part 42 ' .
The recipient, and any subrecipient (subgrantee”) at any tier, must comply with all

applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable -
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EXHIBIT C

requirements in subpart E of 29 C.F. R Part 42 that relate to an equal cmp]oymcnt
opportumty program.

14. Compliance with DOJ regulations per tammg to civil rights and nondxscummanon -
28 CF.R. Part 54
The recipient, and any subr ecipient (“subgrantee"} at any, tier, must comply with all
applicable 1cqu1rements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondlscummatton on
the basis of sex in certain "education programs.".

15. Comphmlcc with DOJ regulations per Lzumng to cml 11g11ts and nondlscmmnamn -
28 CER. Part 38 A :

i

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantce) at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38, specificaily including any applicable

- requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and pmspebtivc
program beneficiarics. Part38 of 28 C.F.R.,, 2 DOJ 1egu]auon was amcndcd
effective May 4, 2016.

Among other things, 28 C.E.R. Part 38 mcludcs rultes that p10h1b1t specific fmms of
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to kold a religious
belief, or refusal to aftend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out

. rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient (“subgrantee")
organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules
and requirements that pertain to recipients and subrecipients that are faith- based or

" rehgious organizations.

" The text of the regulation, now entitled "Partnerships with F mth—Based and Other
Nnghborhood Organizations,"” is availeble via the Electronic Cod».;: of Federal
chulanons (currently accessible at https: Ilwrwrvechr.gov/cgi-
bin/BCFR?page=browse), by browsing to Title 28-Tudicial Administration, Chaptet
1 Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data _ -

16..Restrictions on “lobbying”

In genelal asa matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not bc used
by the subrecipient at any tier, either directly or -indirectly, to support or oppose the
enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any
level of government. See 18 U.8.C. 1913, {There may be exceptions if an applicable
federal statute specifically authorizes ceﬂam acfivities that othermse would be barred -
by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to

_ Subrecipient Initials 2=
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EXHIBIT C-

1nfluence) a fc_:d.crél agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or

employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of federal grant or cooperative
agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract , or loan with respect to actions such as
renewing, extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.8.C. 1352. Certain
exceptions to this law, including exception that applies to Indian Tribes and tribal
Organizations.

Should any questions arise to whether a particular nse of funds by a recipient (or
subrecipieat) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitiond, the recipient is
to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the cxpress prior written
approval of OJP. :

The Subrecipient assures that no federal VOCA funds or match funds have been paid

or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of congress in
connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative.
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of
any Federal grant or cooperative agreement. If any fands other than Federal
appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer-or cmployce of any agency, 4 Member of Congress,

. an officet or employee of Congress, or an employee of & Member of Con'grcss in

17

- 18.

connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall
conmplete and submit Standard Form - LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities,”

.accordance with its instructions.

Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds

(FY 2018) .
The recipient, and any subrecipient (“subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all

applicable restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appmpuatmns
statutes. Pertinent restrictions, including from various "general provisions" in the
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2018, are set out at

htlps /1ojp.govifunding/Explor e/FY 18 AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here. .

Should & question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient
(or a subrecipient) would or might fall withit the scope of an appr opriations-law

-restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without

the express prior written approval of OJ'P

Reporting potentml fraud, waste and abuse and similar misconduct.

The recipient and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") must promptly refer to the DOJ
Office of the Inspecter General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal,
employee, agent, subrt ecxpxent contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in
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EXHIBIT C -

connection with funds under- this award - (1) submitted a claim that violates the
False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to
fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar niisconduct.. .

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this
award should be reported to the OIG by-- (1) mail directed to: Office of the Inspector
General, U.S. Department of Justice, Investigations Division, 1425 New York
Avenue, N, W. Suite 7100, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (2) the DOJ OIG hotline:

. (contact mfmmahon mEnghsh and Spamsh) at (800) 869-4499 (phone) or (202)

19.

616-9881 (fax)
Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at
https.//oig.justice. guv/hotlme

Restrictions and certifications regar dmg non-disclosure agreements and refated
matters.

no Subrecipient under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor
to sign an internal confidentiality agrcement or statement that prohibits or otherwise
restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of
waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federai
depaitment or agency authorized to receive such information. The foregoing is not
intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified '
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or

- any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure

of classufied information.
g In acceptmg this award the 1eclp1ent——

i represents that it neither requires nor has requued internal
confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or
tonfractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict
(or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from
reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and.

ii. - certifies that, if it [eamns or is notified that it is or has been
requiring its employees or contractorsto execute agreements or
statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict {or purport to
prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as
described above, it will inmediately stop any further obligations
of award funds, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resumption of) such obligations only if explcssly authorized to
do so by that agency.

b. Ifthe recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards -
("subgrants"), procuremient contracts, or bath--
1. il represents that— it has determined that no other entity
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EXHIBIT C

that the recipient's application proposes may or will
receive award funds (whether through a subaward
("subgrant”), procurenient contract, or subcontract under -
& procurement contract) either requires or has required
internal confidentiality agreements o statements from
employees or contractors that currently prohibit or
otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict) employees or contractors from feporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and
il. it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an
adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and
¢. itcertifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds under this award
- 1s or has been requiring its employees-or confractors to execute
agreemcents or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or putport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described
above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds
to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to the .
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resuraption of) such obligations osly if exprcssly authorized to do so
. by that agency.

20. Comphance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (mcludmg prohibitions on repusal notice to

employees) .

The subrec1p1ent at any tier must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable
provisions of 41 U.8.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the
employec s disclogure of inforfnation related to gross mismanagement of a federal
grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant,

'a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule

- oriegulation related to a federal grant.

21

The subrecipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the
predominant natwe language of the workforce), of f employee rights and remedies
under 41 U.S. C 4712,

Should a question arise as to the apphcabmty of the provisions of 41USC. 4712 to
this award, the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) for guidance.

Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text
Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 {October 1, 2009}, DOJ encourages
recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and cnforce policies banning

' emp]oyces from text messaging while dnvmg any vehicle during the course of

Subrecipient Initials - 2 E
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~ performing work funded by this award, and to estabiish workplace safety policies

and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease crashes caused by -
distracted drivers. -

The subsecipient anthorizes Office for Victims of Crime (OVC) and/or the Office of

. the Chief Financial Officer (OCFQ), the New Hampshire Depam:nent of Justice

23.

24.

25,

(NHDOQTJ) and its representatives, access to and the right to examine all records,
books, paper or documents related to the VOCA grant.

VOCA. Requirements
The recipient assures that the State and its SllblBClplentS will comply with the
~ conditions of the Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) of 1984, sections 1404(a)(2),
-and 1404(b)(1) and (2), 34 U.S.C. 20103(e)(2) and (b)(l) and (2) (and the
applicable program guidelines and regulations), as required. Specifically, the
State certifies that funds under this award will:
a) be awarded only to eligible victim assistance organizations, 34 U.S. C‘
- 20103(a)(2);
b} not be uséd to supplant State and locel public funds that would otherwise be
available for crime victim assistance, 34 U.8.C. 20103(a)(2); and
¢} be allocated in accordance with program guidelines or regulations
implementing 34 US.C. 20103(a)(2)(A) and 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2)(B) to, at
a minirum, assist victims in the following categories: sexual assault, child
" abuse, domestic violence, and undcxsel ved victims of violent crimes as
identified by the State

Demmographic Data

The recipient assures that its subrecipients will collect and maintain information on
Tace, sex, national origin, age, and disability of victims recemng assistance, where
such information is voluntarily furnished by the victim.

Discrimination Findings -
The recipient assures that in the event that a Federal or State court or Federal or State

. administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due process heanng

26.

on the ground of race, religion, national origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of
victim assistance formula funds under this award, the recipient will forward a cop}r of
the findings to the Office for Civil nghts of OJP.

The rec1pxent understands that all OJP awards are subject to the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA, 42 U.S.C. section 4321 et seq.) and other related
Federal laws (including the National Historic Preservation Act), if applicable. The
recipient agrees to assist OJP in carrying out its responsibilities under NEPA. and
related laws, if the recipient plans to use VOCA funds (directly or through subaward
or contract) to undertake any activity that triggers these rcquuements such as

Subrecipient Initials _ >
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EXHIBIT C

renovation or construction. (See 28 C.F.R. Part 61, App. D.) The recipient also
agrees to comply with all Fedexal, State, and local cnvironmental laws and
regulations applicable to the development and implementation of the activities to be
funded under this award. '

27..The recipient agrees to submit (and, as necessary, require sub-recipients to submit)
quarterly performance repoits on the performence metrics identified by OVC, and in
the manner lequj_rcd by OVC. This information on the activities supported by the
award funding will assist in agsessing the effects that VOCA Victim Assistance funds
have had on services 10 crime victims within the jurisdiction. :

28. If Primary Award Excecds $500,000 - Recipient integrity and performance matters:
Requirement to report information on certain ¢ivil, cmnnal and admm1strat1vc
proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS

~ The subrecipient must comply with any and all apphcable requircments regarding

reporting of information on civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings connected
with (or connected to the performance of) either this OJP award or any other grant,
cooperative agreement, or procurement contract from the federal _govaﬁunent. Under
certain circumstances, recipients of OJP awards are required to repait information
about such proceedings, through the federal System for Award Management (known
as "SAM"), to the designated fedcral 1nteg1 ity and pcrfm'mance system (cu1 rently,
"FAPIIS").
The details of recipient obhgatlons regar ding the required reporting {and updatmg) of
information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal
designated integrity and performance system (currently, "FAPIIS") within SAM are
posted on the OTP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/FAPIIS htm (Award condition:
Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to
FAPIIS), and are incotporated by reference here.

29. The Subrecipient understands that grants are fiinded for the grani award period noted on
the grant award. docmnent No guaranfee is given ot 1mphed of subsequent funding in
future vears.

30. Any publications (written, visual or sound) whether published thlough chem] grant

fiinds or matching funds, shall contain the following statements: “This project was
supported by (2018-V2-GX-0036) awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime, Office
of Justice Programs, U.S. Depattmcril of Justice. Points of view in this document ale
those of the author and do not necessanly reprcsent the official position or pohmes of
the U.S. Department of Justice.”
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The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they eraploy a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDOY), that employce or their relative shall not perform work
on or be billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee

- directly managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without

32.

33

34.

35,

36.

37.

the express approval of the NH DQJ.

The Subrecipient must utilize volunteers {o assist in providing VOCA allowsblc victim
scrvices unless extenuating circumstances justify the exclusion of volunteers, and a
volunteer waiver is obtained from the NHDOJ.

The Subrecipient agrees to agsist victims in applying for Victims Compensation benefits.
Such assistance mcludes identifying eligible victims; making reasonable efforts to notify
eligible victins of the availability of compensation; malking reasonable efforts to explain -
the program to victims; offering to assist victims with the application process when it is
reasonable to do so. ‘

The Subrecipient understands that VOCA non-allowable personnel activities include:
general administration, prevention, active investigation and prosecution of criminal
activities, research and studies, lobbying, capitel expenses, compensation f01 victims of
crime and fundraising. :

The Subrecipient agrees that all sefvices will be provided at no charge to victims
unless a program income waiver is obtained from the NHDOT. If permission to
generate progfam‘income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be &
sliding scale that starts at zero, and that all program ificome will be totally expended on
grant allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

Equipment purchased with VOCA funds shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the
agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number cost,
percentage of federal VOCA funds, and location. The Subrecipient agress that the title
to any equipment purchased with VOCA funds will revert back to the NHDOJ, Grants
Management Unit, when it is no ionger bemg used for the VOCA program purposes
for which it was acquired.

The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, ‘whether it be

an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and

any associated management letters to the NHDOJ, Grants Management Unit. The Single
}
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38.

39.

EXHIBIT C

Audit report inust be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within © months after the
subrecipient’s year-end or one month after the issuance of the audit. '

Sub-Recipients of federal funding from the NEDOJ are required to comply with all
federal regulations that relate to non-discrimination, These requircinents are specified
in United States Code of Federal chulauon Title 28, scotions 35, 38, 42 and 54,
Individuals who believe they may have been discriminated against by the NHDOJ or
by an oxgamzat;on that receives federal fundmg from the NHDOJ based on their race,
color, national origin, religion, scx, disability, age, scxual orientation or gender identity
should print and complete a Discrimination Complaint Form found at
hitps:/ferww.doj.nh.gov/ 9.1 ants- managementfcwﬂ-ng;hts htm,

P e 1 -1 LR
b ‘\._ R SR ) “ AL LAt

The subgrantee 1f 2 non- pmﬁt organization, agrees to make its ﬁuaumal statements
available online (either on the subgrantee’s website, or the NHDOJI’s, or another

| publicly availsble ﬁcb'g,ité). “Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status are

considered in compliance with this requirernent, with no further action needed, to the

. gxtent that such  Orgamization ﬁles IRS i1 ‘oL 990 or-similar tax dogument. fe.g., 990-

A EZ) as several sources already pmwdc searchable ontine databases of such financial

_ statemnents,

40,

The subgrantee, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
sublnitting a statement to NHDOJ: 1) affirmatively asserting that the recipient is a pon-’
profit organjzation and 2} indicating that the subgrantee has on file and available upon
audit one of the following: ’ '

. A copy of the organization’s 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:
. A letter from the State of NH stating that the subgr antee is a non-profif
organization operating within the state, or:

. _ A copy of the sub-grantee’s state cemﬁcate of incorporation that substantiates
its non- profit status ’

Subgrantees that are local non-proﬁt affiliates of state or national non-profits should

also have a statement by the pment organization that the subgrantee is a local non-

- profit affiliate.

41,

Certification Regarding EEOP Required: :
If required, within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for
approval, an acceptable Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28
CFR 42.301 et seq. or a Certification Form to both the NH DOJ and the Office of Civil
Rughts, Office of Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, DC
20531, Failure to submit an approved EEQOP oy Cemﬁcauon is a viclation-of the Program
‘Page 18 of 25
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EXHIBIT C

. Guidelines and Conditions and may result in suspension or termination of funding, until
such time as the Subrecipient is in compliance. The EEOP reporting ool and
instructions can be found at:: http://ojp.gov/about/ocr/fag eeop.htm

42, Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with -
~ that paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per
day or $81.25 per hour. 'When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a
proportionate hourly rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior
approval is required from OVC. Prior approval requests require additional justification,

I hcive read and undersi‘and all 42 special provisions contained in ihis document:

| _:Debv& Shac_keﬁ COU*H"{ 4dm|ms+m+a-r -

Name and Title of Authonzed Reptescntatwe

Noatrio Zha&ﬂt : 3!l‘1!32020 .

Signature . Date

Ge,lkna,p Cowﬁ’*-l 3y Coun%.ﬁbnw_, Lacevmia NH. 03241,

" Name and Addrcss of Agcncy
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" EXHIBIE D

BROP Reporting
T, Dedara. S [/kadkﬁd- ‘ [responstble offtctal], cartlfy thet
! “

FBw.l\Lmup _(“M\}L»\ [reeipienf] has completéd the BRO reporting tool
uertlﬁoatwn ' , . ' .

foem et pHpg//eln.goviahont/ocr/feg eeon.itm on ,"QZQ-’/H ' 7 [Date]
And that Wf . 5[/\(10 J,cd]f‘ . [re.sgm:nsible afficial) has oompleted the

EROP

tralnlng at Wm@mmm yideosfvidso-ogr-fral on:
Y/t] 2O _[dat) | | o ,
I furthor oertify thnt: .
dlnap C.CMV\M [recipient] %ill comply

with nppllcabla fodleral chvil rights lawh that prolibit dlscrnmnnhon In empioyment aud in the
dellvery of services,

Slgnaturo:. ZZOMW- %gdaﬂ‘ ' | Date:_ 13/3‘?/7—0.
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EXHIBIT

ﬂon-supglanﬂng Certification
Supplanting def' ned '
Fedaral funds must he used to supplement existing fonds for program activities and must not
- replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and sudit. If
thore i a potential presence of supplanting, the applicent or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonsnating that the reduotion in non-Tederal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federai funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agcncy or recipient agency stating that Fedeorsl
funds will not be used to supplant State or local .
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds, See the OJP Financial Guide (Part 11,
Chapter 3)

- hitpifwnew, olp,usdol,goﬂﬂngmcmlgm e/part?./palﬂcham htm

.Supp anting an d iob reteéntion
A grantee mey vnse federal funds to 1etam Jobs that, w;thout the use of the federal money, would

be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to relain jobs, it must be able to
substentiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantistion can be, butisnot
limited to, ons of the following forns; en official mémorandum, official minutes of & counity or
municipal board mecting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when
making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the terminated
positions end that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or Jocal funds.

The 3&“4\0 tpyY’S (Applicant) cestifies that any funds awarded
through grant number __2018-V2-GX-0036, shall be used to supplement existing
funds for program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederel funds that have been
appropriated for the pmposéa and goals of the grant

The 3@.\\(‘{1&0 Cwnh A’H—O( n )9‘{ s (Applicant) understands that supplanting
'wolanons mey rcsult in a range of penalties, mch}dmg but not Licited to suspension of future

fimds under this progrem, suspension or debarmcnt from federal grants, recoupment of monies
provided under this grant, end civil and/or cnmmal penelties,

Printed Namy Tw LWernol S qunm Coun -l«l A‘Hdrﬂ‘ﬁ y
Si,gnatur . ‘f/ ?j Mo i
Page 1l of 25 '
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EXHIBIT F

NEW HAMPSHIRT DEPARTMB.NT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYIN G; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTH)IR RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACL
: ' RFQUIR}"‘MI}NTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to dctermme the cartification to which they
are required to attest. Applicants should also review the instractions for certification ncluded in
the regulations before completing this-form. The certifications shall be treated us a material
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of Justice
(“Department”) deterniines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement,

! OBBY[NG

Asrequired by 31 US.C. § 1352, as uuplemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, -the Apphcant certifies

- and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:

(&) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be pald by or on behalf of the
Applicant, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any

- agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee ofa
Member of Congress in-connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b} If the Applicant’s request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or.will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Apphcant shail complete and submit Standaid Fonn

- LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities” in 'accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency’s) instructions; and ,

{c} The Applicant shall require that the languagc of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with

. Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbymg disclosures required of
1emplents of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made-and
filed in accoxdance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352,

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

Page 22 of 25 :
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EXHIBITF

A. Pursuant.to Departiment regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension -
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier “covered transaction,” as defined at 2
“C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced toa
denial of Federal beriefits by a State or Federal court; or voluntarily excluded from covered
* transactions by any Federal department or agency,

(b) has within a-three- -year period precedmg this apphcatlon been convicted of a felony cririnal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
comuussion of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or-
perfonmning a public (Federal, State tribal, or local) transactton or private agreement or- -
transaction; : '

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or busmess honesty that seriously and directly affects its
{or its principals’) present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherw1se cnmmally or ¢ivilly charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with eomn:nssmn of any of the offenses enumerated in paragxaph
{b) of this ccrttﬂcatton and/or

{d) has within a three-yeér period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default - '
-
B: Where the Applicant is unable to certify to. any of the statements in tlns certlficatlon it shall
attach an explanation to this apphcatton Where the Applicant or any of its principals was '
cornvicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation.
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in ‘
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov;
for OVW Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSR.C@usdoj.gov), unless such dtsclosule has already been made. .

3. FEDERAL TAXES

‘A. Ifthe Applicant is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
. Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative
remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner
pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaxd tax habllny (or
ltabthtles) to the Department (for OJP

Page230f25 .
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EXHIBIT ¥

Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcbmpliancercpm'ting@uﬁdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj. gov; or for COP'S Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Apphcant is unable 1o ccl'tlfy to any of the statcmcnts in this cemﬁcatlon 11 sha.h
altach an explanation to this application.

4, PRUG-FRER WORKPLACRE (GRANTEES, OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 CF.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:

A The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, pmwde & drug-free
worlplace by--— .

(2) Publishing a staterment notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distiibution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing en on-going drug-free awareness ﬁrogram to inform employees about—
(1) The dangers of drug abus'e.in the wo_rkp]acc; : | |

(2) The Applicant’s boh’cy of maintaining a drug-fiee workplace;

3) Any available drug counseling; rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be 1mposcd upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirernent that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

{d) Notifying the employe in the statement required by par agraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the aw_ald the employee wﬂl—

(1) Abide by the terms of the staternent; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee’s conviction for a violation of a cr nmna] drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

() Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including posmon title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows: :
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EXHIBITE .-

For COPS award recipieuls - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP end OYW award recipients - U.S,"Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Steeet, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531, ' .

Notice shall inolude the identification number(s) of each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under.
. subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convisted: '

(1) Teking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requiresuents of the Rehabilitation Aot of 1573, as amended; or

- {2) Requiring swch employes 1o pﬁi’tiuipate eatisfactorﬂy in a drug ebuse nsslstance or
rebabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or loca! health, law
‘enforcement, or other appropriste agenoy; and :
(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a dug-free wbrkplabe through
mplementation of paragraphs (s), (b}, (s), (), (&), end (D).

If yon are unable to sign this certification, you'must attach an explanation to this-
certification. _ - '

-

.’D.e)om.. Shacleett , County Adinse ot

Name and Title of Head of Agency
Signature © Date

Mo Fhasdeith—
Pellap Coundy 34 CM} i laemnan WY

Name and ‘Address of Agéney
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
l, David DeVoy, Chairman of the Belknap County Board of Commissioners do hereby certify that:

{1} the Board of Commissioners voted to enter into a grant agreement with the New Hampshire
Department of Justice on 03/19/2020; '
(2) The Boatd of.Commissioners further authorizes the County Admmtstrator to execute any
documents which may be necessary for this contract;
(3} This authorization has not been revoked, annulled or amended in any manner whatsoever and
* remains in full force and effect as of the date hereof and
" {4) The following now occupies the office indicated above

Debra Shackett, County Administrator

5} Debra Shackett is authorized to sign the grant contract dated 03/19/2020

IN WITNESS WHERIEOF, | have hereunto set my hand as the Chairman this 19t day of March, 2020.

Dy

David DeVoy, Chalrman

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE L '
'COUNTY OF Belknap ' ‘

On this the 19* day of March, 2020, before me Jamie Ellsworth, the undersigned officer, persp'nally
appeared David DeVoy, who acknowledged their self to be the Chairman for the Belknap County Board
of Commissioners, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose therein
contained. -

i

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ! hereunto set my and official seal.

tice oPthe Peace/Notary Public

Jamie L. Ellsworth, Notary Public .
My Commission Expires Qctober 21, 2020
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NH Public Rsk Manogamant Exchangs : - CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Managemeont Exchange (Primex?) Is organlied under the New Hampshire Raevised Statutes Annolated, Chapler 6-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those stalutes, Its Trust Agreemani and bylaws, Primex® is aulhorized to provide pooted riak
management programs established {or the benefil of political subdivisions In the State of New Hampshire.

Each mamber of Primex? is entitled to the categorles of coverage sel forth below. . In addition, Prir,nex’ may extend the same coverage lo non-members.
However, any coverage extended 10 a non-member is subject {o all of the terms, condilions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
thal are applicabte to the members of Pimex?, including but not limiied to the final and binding resclution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex® Board of Trusiees, The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limif shall be deemed included in \he Member's per eccurrence imiY, and
therefore shall reduca the Member's |mit of labllity as sel forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations, The limit shown may have been reduced
by clalims pakl on behall of the member. General Liabiiity coverage Is limited to Covarage A {Personal injury Liabllity) and Coverage B (Propeny
Damage Liabllity} only, Coverage’s C {Public Officlals Emors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices), E-(Employes Benefit Uability} and F
(Educator's Legal Liabilty Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

" The below named enfity Is 8 member in gbod standing of the New Hampshlro Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
howaever, be revised at any ime by the actions of Primex®, As of the dale this certificate ks issued, the Information sat oul below accurately reflects the
catagorles of coverage established for the current coverage year. '

This Certificate Is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the cerfificate holder This certificate does not amend, extend or
aler the coverage afforded by the covetage categories tislad below.

Participating Momber; Member Number: Company Affording Coverape;
Belknap, County ) ' ‘ 607 . NH Public Risk Management Exchango Primex®
34 County Drive’ Bow Brook Place
Laconia, NH 03246 46 Donovan Street .
) Concord NH 03301-2624
.%?ﬁ)_[_ddfm_ermwiw . A \ i APyt NS
Professlonal Liability {describe) _ ' . [_General Aggregste $ 5,000,000
© Clalms Flre Damage (Any one
O Made (J  Occurrence fire)
i Med Exp (Any one person)
[ Automobile Llability _
Deductible  Comp and Coll: S1 000 ' Combined Single Limil
{Each Acckient)
Any auto ) ' Aggregate
X__| Workers' Compensation & Employers’ Liability 11412020 1M/2029 - 1LX ] Statutory
: ’ Each Accident X $2,000,000
Disease - Esch Employee 525000,'000
. . . . Disease - Polcy Limht*

i Proparty {Special Risk inctudes Fire and Theft) éhnkei Limf, Replacement ’

Cost (unloss olherwise statad)}

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATEHOLDER: | | Additional Covered Party | [ Loss Peyee Primex’ - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By: TXary Bk Duncelt

State of New Hampshire . - . Data:  3/23/2020 mﬁumel[@nhm'mex.org .
Pleasant St ‘ Please direct inquires to:
Concord, NH 03301 ] ~ Primex? Clalms/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-2208-3833 fax




GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

_ GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions. S
1.1. State Agency Name 1.2. State Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Justice ‘ 33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301
1.3. Subrecipient Name 1.4. Subrecipient Address .
New Hampshire Legal Assistance . 117 North State Street, Concord, NH 03301
1.5 Subrecipient Phone # 1.6. Account NL;mber 1.7, cémplcnicn'onu: . 1.8 Grant Limitation '
(603) 206-2226 PR BIESO 0913012022 * ” 1,326,550
1.9. Grant Officer fm: State Agency - ' 1.10. St;xte Agency Telephone Number
Thomas Kaempfer : (603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we havc complied wnh any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

LI, Subrccuplcn Signature-1 - 1.12. Name & '.l’i'llc'ofSuhrccuplcm Signor I
‘ (74F7 i
é L(-(_Mn: /)/taﬁr"

Subrecipient Signature 2 If Applicable Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 If Applicable

I I3 Acknowledgmént; State of New Hnmpshlm Counly of " m&m‘mv—J\/ ’

‘( ? 2, before die undersigned officer; personally dppeared the person identificd in block 1.12., known 1o me (or
satisTac{orily proven) 10 be the person whose name is signed in block.1.14., and. acknowlcdbcd lhul hc!she executed this
document in the capacity indicated in block 1. i2. :

1.13.1, Slmfglmmgéncr Justice of the: Pcdcc -
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE j - : )
Bmtwmwﬂwmm . ~
(Seal) My Commist Expres Janory 2 228 P )&,\L@»"w&y

ame & Title of:Notary Public or | HJ’ ace .
T e e s Eny, | ek A I oo s

1.14.  State Agency Signature(s) 1.15. Name & Title of‘ State Agency Signor(s)

772/ L s G

1.16. Approval by Altorney General (Form, Substancc and Execution) (if G & C approval required) -

Assistant Attorney General, On: /
ablmina Aakfimatzols | 041092020

1.17: Approva[ by Govemor and Councrl (lfappllcable)

By: . ) On: : I/

2,8COPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire. acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 {hereinafter referred to as “the State”), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
“the Subrecipient”), shall perform that work identified end more particularly described in the scope of work dtiached hifreto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as “thic Project”).

Rev, 972015 Page | of 25 : Subrecipicil Initinl(s): ‘
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5.5,

7.2.

8.2,

83,

Rev, 92015

AREA - COVERLLL Fxcept es otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Subrecipient shall perform the Project in, and wilh respeet to, the Siate of New
Hampshire, ]
MY :l: TV |T]‘ .
This Agreement, and all obligations of the partiex hereunder, shall become
effective on the dite on the date of approval of this Agrecment by the Governar
and Council of the State of New Hampshire .if required {block 1.17), or upon
signature by the State Agency as ghown in block 1,14 {“the effective date™).

Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to
the date in block 1:7 (hercinafter referred to as “the Completion Date”}). .

T

T gH

1 h H
The Grant Amount is identificd and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B,
attached hercto. .
The manncr of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set [orth in EXHLBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfuctory performauce of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of Lhese general provisions, the Stute shall pay the
Subrecipicit the Grant Amount.  The State shall withhold fom the amount
othérwise payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H, RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shait be the only, end the
complete poyment to the Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever nature,
ineurred by the Subrecipient in the performance hereof, end shall be the only,

* and the complele, compensation (o the Subrecipient for the Project,  The State

shail have no ligbilities 10 the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithsianding amything in this  Agreement 1o the contrary, end
notwithstanding unexpecied circumstances, in no event shall the el of all
payments authorized, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation
set forth in block 1.8 of these gencral provisions.

Y PLIA 3 A N H

with all sstutes, lows regulations, and orders of federal, state, counly, or
municipsl suthorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient, including the acquisition of any end ell necessary permits.

: d
Between the Effective Dete and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date the Subrecipicnt shall keep dotuiled accounts of all expenses incurred in
conncclion with the Project, including, but not limited to, cosis of
administration, Wansportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipls, inveices, bills and
other similar documents, .
Between the Eifeclive Dale and the dute three {3) years after the Completion
Date, ot any time during the Subrecipicat’s normal business hours, znd as often
as the State shall demand, the Subrecipicnt shal) make available to the State all
records pertaining lo matters covercd by this Agreement. The Subrecipiant shall
permit the State to audil, examinc, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of all conlrects, invoices, matcrials, payrells, records of personnel, data
{as Uhat term is hereinafter defined), and other infonnation rclating to all inatters
coveeed by this Agreement. As used in this parugraph, “Subrecipient”™ includes
all persons, naturat or (ictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under comman
awnership wilh, the entity identified as the Subrecipicnt in block 1.3 of these
provisfons .

PERSONNEL.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own cxpense, provide all personinel necessary 10
perform the Project. The Subrecipient warrants that all porsoanel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under atl applicable laws,

The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shalt not permit any subcontracior,
subgrantec, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engnged in &
cambined effort to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual
relationship with the State, or who is # State officer or employee, vlccted or
appainicd.

‘I Grint Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event
of eny dispute hereunder, ihe inerpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and histher decision on sny dispute, shall be final,

As used in this Agreemens, the word “data” sholl mean 2ll information and
things developed or obtuined during the performance of, or acquired or
develaped by reason of, this Agreement. including, but not limited to, all studies,
repons, files, formulee, surveys, maps, chans, sound recordings, video
eecerdings, piclorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer progrems, computcr printouts, notes, letters, memorenda, paper, and
documents, alt whether finishcd or unfinished,
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Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient shall
grant 1o the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access 1o all data
for exemination, duplication, publication, translation, sule, dispesal, or for eny
other purposc whatsoever. .

No data shall be subjeet to copyright in the United States or any ather country by ‘

anyonc other than the State,

On end after the Effective Datc all dnta, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided tor that purposé Gnder
this Agreement, shall be the propenty of the State, and shall be retumed to the
State upon demend or upon termingtion of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first oceur.

The Stats, and anyonc it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to

publish, disclose, distributc end otherwise use, in whole or in pen, all data,

. Natwithstanding anything in

‘this Agreement Lo the contrary, efl abligations of ihe State hereunder, including,

without limitation, the continuance of paymenis hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued eppropriation of funds, and in no evenl shall the
State be liuble for any payments hercunder in excess of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or lermination of those funds, the
State shall have the right to witkhold payment until such funds become
available, if ever, and shall have the right te terminate Lhis Agreement
immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination,

TVE, ! DEFAULE: -REMEDRIES.

Any one or more of the Tollowiig sgls or amissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute. an cvent of defbult hereunder (hercinaler refiricd to as “Events of
Defaalt™): .

Failure Lo perform the Project satisfictorily or on schedule; or

Failure 1o submit any report required hereunder, or

Failure to mainiain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder, or
Failure to perform 2ny of the other covenants end canditions of this Agreement.
Upen the occumence of any Evet of Default, the Stale may take any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions:

Give the Subrceipient & written nalice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it 10 be remedied within, in the absence of A gredler or lesser.

-specification of time, thinty (30) days from the date of the natice; and if the

iZvent of Default is not limely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afler giving the Subrecipient nolice of termination; and
Give the Subsecipient a wrilten notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ardering thel the
pertion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the dare of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid 1o the Subrccipient; and
Set off against sny other obligation the State may owe to Lhe Subrecipienl any
damages the Statc sufers by reason of any Event of Defauli; and
Trent the agreement ay breached and pursue any of ils remedies 8t law or in
equily, or both.

R .

In the event of eny carly termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the complezion of (he Project, the Subrecipignt shall deliver to the Grant Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) days efter the datc of lermination, & repon (hercinafier
refered o s the “Termination Report™) describing in detail all Project Work
performed, ond the Grant Amount camed, to and including the dute of
termination.

tn the svent-of Termination under perngraphs 10 or 12.4 of these genernl
provisions, the Approvel of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitie
the Subrecipient lo receive Lhat portion of the Grant amount camed to snd
including the date of termination..

In the cvent of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 124 of these general
provisions, the upproval of such a Terminztion Report by the State shalt in no
cvent relieve the Subrecipient from gny and a1 lizbility for damages sustained or
incurred by the Siale as e result of the Subrecipient's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement lo the contrary, either, the State or,
excepl where notice defaull has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient, may ferminate this Agreement without cause upon thinty (30) days
writicn notice.
SONFLICT QF RE No officer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no represenistive, officer or employee of the Statc of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or loculities in which the
Project is 1o be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
feview or approval of the undedtaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
panticipate in any decision réliting 10 this Agréement. which affecig hid or her
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17.1.1

17.1.2
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procccd: lhcrcof‘

personal interest or the interest of any corporation, parinceship, or nssociation
in which he or she is directly or indirectly intcrested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecunfary interest, direct or indireet, in this Agreement or the

Agreement the Subrecipient, ils cmployccs and any subcomracter or
subgrantee of the Subrecipient are in all respects independent contraciors, and
are neither agents nor employecs of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, ecmployees, agents, mensbers, subcontractors or subgrentecs,
shall have authority 1o bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by Lhe Stale to s
employees.

me "I'he Subrecipicnt shall not assign.
or otherwisc transfer any miterest in this Agreement without the prior writien
consent of the State, None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgrumcd by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the

prior wnllun cnnsem of the State.

3 . The Subtccipiont shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless ihl: Sute, its officers and employees, from end against any and all
lasses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, und any and all claims,
lisbilitics or penalises asserted ngnms: the Sinte, its officery and cmplcycea by
ar on behalf of any person, on accaunt of, based on, resulting from, arising oul
of {or which may be claimed to arise out of) the acts o omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgranice or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing hercin contained shall be deemed to

_constitute 2 waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is

hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the temination of
this egrccmml ’

The Subrecipient shall, gl its own ¢xpense, obtain and maintain in foree, or
shall require any subcontracior, subgraniee or assignee performing Project
work 10 obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, (he
following insurance;

Statutory workmen’s compensation and employees linbility insyrance for all
employces engaged in the performance of the Project, and

Comprehengive public Inablhry insurance against all claima of bodily injuries,
death or property demage, in amounts not less thun $1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 nggregate for bedily injury or death any one incident, and
$500,000 for propusty dumage in any one incident; and

PPage 3 of 25§

l72 The policics described in subparagraph 17.1 of this parsgraph shall be the

i, In the performance of this -
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siondard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
ascceplable 1o the State, and authorized to do businesy in the State of New
Hampshire, Each policy shall contain o clause prohibiting cancellation - or
modification of the policy earlier than len {10) days ofter written notice thereof
has bccn received b) the State.

u . No fzilure by the Siate lo enforce any provisions
hercof aﬁu any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with

regard 10 that Event, or any subsequent Event. No cxpress waiver of any Event .

of Default shalt be deemed a waiver of any pravisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shail be-deemed a waiver of the right of the Siate 10 enforce cach and all
of the provisions hereaf upon any further or other default on the pant of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be decmed to
have been duly delivered or given al the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage p(cpald in n United Stutes I'est Office addressed to the partics 21 the
addresses first above given.

3 INT. This Agucmcnl may be amended, wajved or discharged only

'by an.instrument in wmmg sipned by the parties hereto and only after approval

of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
Stale ochw Ilnmpahm: lfn:qunr:d or by the sngnmg State Agency,

i This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the %une of New EHampshire, and’ is
binding upon and inures 10 the benefit of the porties end their respective
succcssors and assignees. The captions and contents of the “subject” blank are
uscd only as a matter of convenience, and are not 1o he considered o part of this
Agtecmml or to bc used in determining the mtend of the parties herete,

. The partics hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
nnd th Agrecmcnt shnll not be consirued 10 confer any such benefit.
This Agreement, which muy be executed in u number

. ofcountcrpms cach ofv-hu:h shell be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreemeni and understanding between the parties, and supcru:dca all prior

agreements und understandings relating herclo.

S]:LQIAL_P_O_YJS]_Q_HS The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C

hereto gre incorporated a3 part of this agreement,

Subrecipient [nitial(s): .

Date: %Z[E
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EXHIBIT A
-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. New Hampshire Legal Assistance as Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New

‘Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services provided for
legal services provided to victims of crime, in connection to their victimization, under the
Victims of Crime Act Grant to include expenses for personnel, benefits, travel, contracts
with the Legal Advice & Referral Center and the NH Pro-Bono Dove Project, other
victim service related costs and indirect costs.

. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved ;:xpenditurc reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifieen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered latc and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January I, the first quarterly
report is due on April 1 5% or 15 days after the close of the first quarter ending on March
31

Subrecipient is requircd to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation should be maintained for at least 5 years after the close of the project.

. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual grant application to the DOJ for
review and compliance.

. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shatl be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-7820 or Tanya.pitman{@doj.nh.gov

Page 4 of 25 1
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EXHIBIT B
-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within. thirty (30) days following the DOJ’s
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient’s account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire,

3. The State’s obligation to-compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not -

exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.
3a. The Subrecipient sha!l be awarded an amount not to exceed $663,275.00 of
the total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/20,
whichever is later to 06/30/21, with approved expenditure reports. This shall be
contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $663,275.00 of
the total Grant Limitation from 07/01/21 to 06/30/22, with approved expenditure
reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program
performance.

i.  With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the
. Subrecipient may apply for an extension of the grant period for up to
three months. The Subrecipent must submit the request in writing. No
extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

ii.  Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses

or costs incurred under this agreement prior to Governor and Council
approval, nor after 06/30/22 or 9/30/22 if an extension is approved.

Page 5of 25 : g/]‘j
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EXHIBIT C
-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipients shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.

Page 6 of 25 _ '
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EXHIBIT C
2018-v2-GX-0036

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false
statements

“The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance

with any certifications or assurances submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that
relate to conduct during the period of pcrformance also is a material requirement of
this award. :

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements -- whether a
condition set out in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or a
certification or assurance related to conduct during the award period --may result in
the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") taking appropriate action with respect to the
recipient and the award. Among othier things, the OJP may withhold award funds,
disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. The Department of Justice
("DOJ"), including OJP, also may take other legal action as appropriate.

Any matcfial!y false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government
related to this award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or
34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C.
3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requurement of thls award be held to be invalid or
unenforceable by its terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited
construction 5o 'as to glve it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provnsnon shall be

deemed severable from this award.

Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements- :

The Uniform Admmlstratlve Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800
{together, the "Part 200 Umform Requirements") apply to this FY 2018 award from
OlJpP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26,
2014. If this FY 2018 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under
the same award number (e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the
Part 200 Uniform Requirements apply with respect to all funds under that award
number

(regardless of the award date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial
award or a supplemental award) that are obligated on or after the acceptance date of

Page 7 of 25 _ . .
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EXHIBIT C

this FY 2018 award.
For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they
rclate to QJP awards and subawards ("subgrants”), see the OJP website at
hltps.llolp.govlfundlns../PnrtZO_OUm[om‘nReqummcnls htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and
any subrecipicnt ("subgrantee™) at any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3
years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unless a
different retention period applies -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient
("subgrantee") at any tier) must provide access,-include performance measurement
information, in addition to the financial records, supporting documents, statistical
records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.333.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials
prepared or distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some '
way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Reqmrcments the recipient is to
contact OJP promptly for clarification.

Compllance with DOJ Financial Guide
References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide .

as posted on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available
at https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any updated version that
may be posted during the period of performance. The subrecipient agrees to comply
with the DOJ Grants Financial Guide. '

Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States
Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in
the U.S. Code were editorially reclassified to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control
and Law Enforcement." The reclassification encompassed a number of statutory
provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements),
including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a
statutory provision that has been reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is’
to be read as a reference to that statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This
rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions,
references set out in material incorporated by reference through award conditions,
and references set out in other award requirements.

Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other - ?: :

Page 8 of 25
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EXHIBIT C

applicable law to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 CF.R.
200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis” indirect cost rate, must advise OJP
in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with al] associated
requirements in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis” rate may be
applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined

by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable
information (PII) : '

The recipient (and any "subrecipient” at any tier) must have written procedures in
place to respond in the event of an actual or imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it
(or a subrecipient)-- 1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, .
disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable information (PI)" (2
CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or 2) uses
or operates a "Federal information system” (OMB Circular A-130). The recipient's
breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach.of
PII to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an
actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

. All subawards (“subgrants”) must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee”) at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to
agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements -- oJp
considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement

- "contract"). '

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the
OJP web site at _
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All
subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are
incorporated by reference here. .'

.- Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed $250,000. The Subrecipient at any tier, must

comply with all applicable requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a

noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the

Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to -

agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP

considers a procurement "contract” (and therefore does not consider a subaward):

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in

a procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at

http://0jp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award

condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a

procurement contract (if contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by

reference here. (

Subrecipient Initials,
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EXHIBIT C

Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons
(including reporting requircments and OJP authority to terminate award). The
recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all:
applicable requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to
prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of
recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this
condition) as "employees" of the recipient or of any subrecipient. The details of the
recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons
are posted on the OJP web site at http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-
Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and
subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
QIJP authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events. :
The subgrantee at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies,

_and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting

requirements, where applicable) govemmg the use of federal funds for expenses
related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.
Information on the pertment DQJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to
this award appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currcntly, as section 3.10 of
“"Post-award Requirements” in the "2015 DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

the recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and

effectiveness of activities under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the

manner {including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation
or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the k
Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act

of 2010, and other applicable laws.

QJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient
("subgrantee") at any tier -- develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere
to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, available at \
hitps: /fmn L.O\'/ﬁlr‘ldlnf.,/lmplcmcnlfl rainingPrinciplesForGrantees:Subgrantees him o '

Comptiance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil ;ights and nondiscrimination —
28 C.F.R. Part 42 .

The recipient, and any subrecipient (subgrantee”) at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specnﬁcally mcludmg any applicable
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EXHIBIT C

requirements in subpart E of 29 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment
opportunity program

Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination —
28 C.F.R. Part 54 _

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates.to nondiscrimination on
the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil. nghts and nondlscnmmatlon -

28 C.F.R.Pari 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38, specifically including any applicable
requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective
program beneficiaries. Part 38 of 28 C.F.R.,, a DOJ regulation, was amended
cffective May 4, 2016.

Among other things, 28 C.F. R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious
belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out
rules and réquirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee”)
organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules.
and requirements that pertain to recipients and subrecipients that are faith-based or
religious organizations.

"The text of the regulation, now entitled "Partnerships with Faith-Based and Other

Neighborhood Organizations," is available via the Electronic Code of Federal
Regulations (currently accessible at https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-
bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter"
1, Part 38, under e-CFR "current"” data.

Restrictions on “lobbying”

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be uscd
by the subrecipient at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the
enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any
level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913, (There may be exceptions if an applicable
federal statute specifically authorizes certain actlvmes that otherwise would be barred
by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any ticr, to pay any person to influcnce (or attempt to
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EXHIBIT C

influence) a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or
cmployce of any of them) with respect to the awarding of federal grant or cooperative

- agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract , or loan with respect to actions such as

17.

18.

renewing, extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain
exceptions to this law, including exception that applies to Indian Tribes and tribal
Organizations.

Should any questions arise to whether a particular use of funds by a recipient (ot
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is
to contact QJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior writien
approval of OJP.

The Subrecipient assures that no federal VOCA funds or match funds have been paid
or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of congress in
connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or, madification of
any Federal grant or cooperative agreement. [f any funds other than Federal
appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall
complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities,”
accordance with 1ts instructions.,

Compliance with gencral appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds
(FY 2018)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropnatlons
statutes, Pertinent restrictions, mcludmg from various "general provns&ons in the
Consotidated Appropriations Act, 2018, are set out at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY 18 AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient
(or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law
restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without
the express prior written approval of OJP.

Reporting potential fraud, waste and abuse and similar misconduct.

The recipient and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") must promptly refer to the DOJ

Office of the Inspector General (O1G) any credible evidence that a principal,

employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in W
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19.

EXHIBIT C

connection with funds under this award -- (1) submitted a claim that violates the
False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to
fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this
award should be reported to the OIG by-- (1) mail directed to: Office of the Inspector
General, U.S. Departmdnt of Justice, Investigations Division, 1425 New York
Avenue, N.W. Suite 7100, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (2) the DOJ OIG hotline:
(contact information in English and Spanish) at (800) 869-449% (phone) or (202)
616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is avanlable from the DOJ OIG website at
htlps.llmg.Justlce.gov/hotlmc.

Restrictions and certlf cations rcgardmg non- dlsclosurc agreements and related
matters.

no Subrecipient under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor
to sign an internal confidentiality agrcement or statement that prohibits or otherwise
restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of

-waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal

department or agency authorized to receive such information. The foregoing is not
intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or
any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure
of classified information. '

“a. In acccptmg this award, the rcmplent—

i.  represents that it neither requires nor has required internal
confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or
contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict
(or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from
reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

ii.  certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been
requiring its employees or contractors to executc agreements or
statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to
prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as
described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations
of award funds, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to
do so by that agency. .

b. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards
("subgrants™), procurement contracts, or both--
i. it represents that— it has determined that no other entity
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EXHIBIT C

that the recipient’s application proposes may or will -

receive award funds (whether through a subaward

("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under

a procurement contract) either requires or has required

internal confidentiality agreements or statements from

employees or contractors that currently prohibit or

" otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and
ii. - it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an
adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and
¢: it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient,

contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds under this award
is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described
above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds -
to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so
by that agency.

20. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitiéns on reprisal; notice to

21.

employees)

The subrecipient at any tier must comply with, and is subject to, all apphcable
provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the
employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal
grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant,
a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule,
or regulation related to a federal grant. ‘

The subrecipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the .
predominant native language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies

under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the appllcablhty of the provisions of 41 U. S.C.4712to

_ this award, the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as

appropriate) for guidance.

Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal L.eadership on Reducing Text

Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages
recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning
employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of ’
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EXHIBIT C

performing work funded by this award, and to establish workplace safety policies
and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease crashes caused by
distracted drivers. ' :

The subrecipient authorizes Office for Victims of Crime (OVC) and/or the Office of
the Chief Financial Officer (OCFOQ), the New Hampshire Department of Justice
(NHDOJ) and its representatives, access to and the right to examine all records,
books, paper or documents related to the VOCA grant.

VOCA Requirements ' .
The recipient assures that the State and its subrecipients will comply with'the
_conditions of the Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) of 1984, sections 1404(a)(2),

and 1404(b)(1) and (2), 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2) and (b)(1) and (2) (and the

applicable program guidelines and regulations), as required. Specifically, the

State certifies that funds under this award will:

a) be awarded only to eligible victim assistance organizations, 34 u.S.C.
20103(a)(2);

b) not be used to supplant State and local publi¢ funds that would otherwise be
available for crime victim assistance, 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2); and

¢) be allocated in accordance with program guidelines or regulations .
implementing 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2)(A) and 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2)(B) to, at
a minimum, assist victims in the following categories: scxual assault, child
abuse, domestic violence, and underserved victims of violent crimes as
identified by the State. '

Demographic Data .

The recipient assures that its subrecipients will collect and maintain information on.
race, scx, national origin, age, and disability of victims receiving assistance, where
such information is-voluntarily furnished by the victim. '

Discrimination Findings

The recipient assures that in the event that a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due process ‘hearing
on the ground of race, religion, national origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of
victim assistance formula funds under this award, the recipient will forward a copy of

 the findings to the Office for Civil Rights of OJP.

26. The recipient understands that alt OJP awards are subject to the National

Environmental Policy Act (NEPA, 42 U.S.C. section 4321 et seq.) and other related
Federal laws (including the National Historic Preservation Act), if applicable. The

- recipient agrees to assist OJP in carrying out its responsibilities under NEPA and

related laws, if the recipient plans to use VOCA funds (directly or through subaward

or contract) to undertake any activity that triggers these requirements, such as

v

ot
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EXHIBIT C

renovation or construction. (See 28 C.F.R. Part 61, App. D.) The recipient also

. agrees to comply with all Federal, State, and local environmental laws and

27.

regulations applicable to the development and implementation of the activities to be
funded under this award.

The recipient agrees to submit (and, as necessary, require sub-recipients to submit)
quarterly performance reports on the performance metrics identified by OVC, and in
the manner required by OVC. This information on the activities supported by the

" award funding will assist in assessing the effects that VOCA Victim Assistance funds

28.

29.

have had on services to crime victims within the jurisdiction. -

If:Primary Award Exceeds $500,000 - Recipient integrity and performance matters:
Requirement to report information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative
proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS :

The subrecipient must comply with any and all applicable requirements regarding

reporting of information on civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings connected

‘with (or connected to the performance of) either this OJP award or any other grant,

cooperative agreement, or procurement contract from the federal government. Under
certain circumstances, recipients of OJP awards are required to report information
about such proceedings, through the federal System for Award Management (known
as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and performance system (currently,
"FAPIIS").

The details of recipient obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of
information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal
designated integrity and performance system (currently, "FAPIIS") within SAM are
posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/F APIIS.htm (Award condition:
Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to
FAPIIS), and are incorporated by reference here.

L L [T

The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on
the grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in

future years.
30.

Any publications (written, visual or sound), whether published through Federal grant
funds or matching funds, shall contain the following statements: “This project was
supported by (2018-V2-GX-0036) awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime, Office
of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view in this document are
those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of
the U.S. Department of Justice.” :
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EXHIBIT C

The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work
on or be billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee
directly managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without
the express approval of the NH DOJ.

The Subrecipient must uitlize volunteers to assist in providing VOCA allowable victim
services unless extenuating circumstances justify the exclusion of volunteers, and a
volunteer waiver is obtained from the NHDOJ.

The Subrecipient ag'rccs to assist victims in applying for Victims Compensation benefits.
Such assistance includes: identifying eligible victims; making reasonable efforts to notify

~ eligible victims of the availability of compensation; making reasonable efforts to explain

34.

35.

36.

37.

the program to victims; offering to assist victims with the application process when it is -
rcasonable to do so.

The Subrecipient understands that VOCA non-allowable personnel activities include:
general administration, prevention, active investigation and prosecution of criminal
activities, research and studies, lobbying, capital expenses, compensation for victims of
crime and fundraising. V '

The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims
unless a program income waiver is obtained from the NHDOJ. if permission to

_generate program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrecs that there must be a

sliding scalc that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on
grant allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

Equipment purchased with VOCA funds shall be listed by the Subrccipient on the
agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost,
percentage of federal VOCA funds, and location. The Subrecipient agrees that the title
to any equipment purchased with VOCA funds will revert back to the NHDOJ, Grants
Management Unit, when it is no longer being used for the VOCA program purposes
for which it was acquired. :

The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it be

an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and
any associated management letters to the NHDOJ, Grants Management Unit. The Single
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38.

EXHIBIT C

Audit report must be submitted to the Grants Management Unit within 9 months after the
subrecipicnt’s year-end or one month afier the issuance of the audit.

Sub-Recipients of federal funding frt;m the NHDQJ are required to comply with all
federal regulations that relate to non-discrimination. These requirements are specified
in United States Code of Federal Regulation Title 28, sections 35, 38, 42 and 54.

‘ Indiviaual's who believe they may have been discriminated against by the NHDOJ or

by an organization that receives federal funding from the NHDOJ based on their race,
color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender identity
should print and complete a Discrimination Complaint Form found at

. hitps:#Www.doj.nh.pov/grants-maniagement/civil-rights htm.

39.

The subgrantee, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements
available online (either on the subgrantee’s website, or the NHDOJ’s, or another .
publicly available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (¢) 3 tax status are
considered in compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the °
extent that such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-
EZ), as several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial

_ statements.

40.

41.

The subgrantee, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
submitting a statément to NHDOJ: 1) affirmatively asserting that the recipient is a non-
profit organization and 2) indicating that the subgrantee has on file and available upon
audit one of the following: : '

. A copy of the organization’s 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

. A letter from the State of NH stating that the subgrantee is a non-profit
organization operating within the state, or: oo ‘
. A copy of the sub-grantee’s state certificate of incorporation that substantiates

its non- profit status
SuBgrantees that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should
also have a statement by the parent organization that the subgrantee is a local non-
profit affiliate.

Certification Regarding EEOP Required:

If required, within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for

approval, an acceptable Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28

CFR 42.301 et seq. or a Certification Form to both the NH DOJ and the Office of Civil

Rights, Office of Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, DC

20531. Failure to submit an approved EEOP or Certification is a violation of the Progra
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43,

EXHIBIT C

Guidelines and Conditions and may result in suspension or termination of funding, until
such time as the Subrecipient is in compliance. The EEOP reporting tool and

instructions can be found at:; httQ:ﬂQ'|_|2__‘.govfp bout/ocr/ faq_ecop.him

Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with
that paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per
day or $81.25 per hour. When the ratc cxceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a
proportionate hourly rate (excluding trave! and subsistence costs), a written prior
approval is required. Prior approval requests require additional justification.

Subrecipients that directly pass through grant funding to any other entity must ensure
that there is an effective system of monitoring those sub-award entities. The pass-
through entity is required to monitor their sub-awards programmatic and financial
compliance of the program. Pass-through entities must ensure compliance with VOCA
rule 94.106 Monitoring Requirements and 2 CFR 200.331 in regards to the sub-
award(s) and monitoring. ' ‘

I have read and understand all 43 special provisions contained in this document:

Sarah Mattson Dustin, Executive Director

ized Representative

4/ ?/‘Aéow

Signature Date
-New Hampshire Legal Assistance, 117 N. State Street, Concord, NH 03301

Name and Address of Agency.
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EXHIBIT D

EEOP Reporting
1, _ Sarah Mattson Dustin [responsible official], certify that
_ New Hampshire Legal Assistance [recipient] has completed the EEO reporting tool
-certification ' :
form at: hitps://ojp.gov/about/ocr/fag ecop:htm on 111 8/2018 [Date]
And that Sarah Mattson Dustin . ' [responsible official] haé. completed the
-EEOP

training at htips://ojp.gov/about/oct/oer-training-videosivideo-oer-training.htm on:

11/18/2018 (date]

I further certify that:
New Hampshire Legal Assistance [rec:p:enr] will comply

with applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit dlscrlmmatlon in employment and in the
delivery of services.

Date: [{/’):/’20%

Signature:
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EXIIIBIT E ,

Non-supplanting Certification:

Supplanting defined : ,
Federal funds must be used 1o supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local

funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3) : -
:hllp:?lwww.oip.usdoi.p_ov)’ﬁnanéiaI;'_:'uidc!nﬁrtZszirlZ_ch'aDB.hli‘ﬁ.

Supplanting and job relention
A grantee may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the federal money, would

be'lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it must be able to
substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be, but is not
limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a county or
municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when
making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the terminated
positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or local funds.

The New Hampshire Legal Assistance  (Applicant) certifies that any funds awarded

through grant number __ 2018-V2-GX-0036___ shall be used to supplement existing
funds for program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been

appropriated for the purposes and goals of the grant.

The New Hampshire Legal Assistance _ (Applicant) understands that supplanting
violations may result in a range of penaities, inclhding but not limited to suspension of future
funds under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title:. Sarah,Mattson Dustin, Executive Director
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EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
/OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE
REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they
are required 1o attest. Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in
the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a material
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of Justice
(“Department”) determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Applicant certifies
and assures (to the cxtent applicable} the following: :

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Applicant, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee ofa
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement; :

(b) If the Applicant’s request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this '
Federal grant or cooperative agrcement, the Applicant shall complete and submit Standard Form
- LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities” in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency’s) instructions; and

(c) The Applicant shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352. ' '

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILIT»Y.MATTERS
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EXHIBIT F

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifics,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier “covered transaction,” as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—

(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared meliglble, sentenced 0a
denia! of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convncted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or

_ transaction; '

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that senously and directly affects its
(or its principals’} present responsibility; .

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or-civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or Jocal) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b} of this cemficatlon and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to (his application. Where the Applicant or any of its principals was
convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov,
for OVW Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSRC(@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Applicant is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative
remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner
pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or
liabilities) to the Department (for OJP
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EXHIBITF

~ Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov, or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:

A.The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by— . <

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controfled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;
(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about— _
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The App]icant‘s policy of maintaining a drug-free wo}kplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the

workplace;

(c) Making it a rcqunrement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a'copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee’s conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:
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EXHIBIT F

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145N Streét, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, .
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531. -

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award;-
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(D Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including '
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

{2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-frec workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (&), (b), (¢), (d), (¢), and (f). '

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification, i

Sarah Mattson Du'stin, Executive Director

| Name angslitlo-pf Head of Agency :
- W/’% - _Y3/20m0

=Signature < ' Date

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, 117 N. State Street, Concord, NH 03301
Name and Address of Agency '

Page 25 of 25 : ‘
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‘State of New Hampshire
I : '
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

L

1, William M. Gardner, Secrer.ary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL
ASSISTANCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Apnl 20, 1971. 1
further cenify thet all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far ns this office is concemed.

Business 1D: 63969
Certificate Number: 0004878013

[N TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause Lo be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 1st day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

s, Deborah Butler ___ do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory}

1. | am a duly elected Officer of _New Hampshire Legal Assistance .
i {Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopled at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on _11/13/2019
{Date)

RESOLVED: That the _Execulive Director i 7
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby autharized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,

or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. This authority shall remain valid .

for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Vote.
3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

The 3”L dayof __April _ , 2020.

{Date Contract Signed)
4, _SarabMattson Dusfin___ is the duly élected Executive Direflcr

{Name of Contract Signatory} (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of lﬂ«{r‘m naeX” 7 }-/L .

. . ) : ] -
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 3 day of A7 d ( 20, 'BQ

By D»{/[?Jﬁ’\b\ Q"/‘ 'I”J‘""

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) M i [ L_W-

(NeTTy Potic/Justice of thé Peace)

CHERYL 8, é‘ren
R T
M Commisson Expies lencoy 33 2105

Commission Expires:

Certificate of Vote Without Seal
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE
Board of Directors

' ANNUAL BOARD RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING FUNDING APPLICATIONS

November 13, 2019

Be it resolved that the Executive Director of New Hampshire Légél Assistance
(NHLA) and/or her designee is authorized to seek and apply for funds from:

Endowment for Health,

Local Corrtmunity Development Offices,

New Hampshire Bar Foundation (IOLTA and other), _
New.Hampshire Charitable Foundatuon and affiliated foundatlons and funds,
New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services,

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services,

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority,

‘New Hampshire Department of Justice,

New Hampshire Legislature (for renewal and possible expansion of NHLA's state appropriation),

U.S. Administration on Community Living,

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,

u.s. Department of Justice,

United Ways,

and is further authorized to apply for other publlc and private grants, contracts and
awards, and donations, for civil legal services to the poor, to be used for general revenues
and for special projects, and is further authorized to execute such documents as
necessary to accept such funﬁs in the name of New Hampshire Legal Assistance.

This resolution shall remain in effect through December 31, 2020.

Adopted by the Board of Directors

November 13, 2019

P e ]
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ACORD"
_ _

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

031672020 °

“DATE (MMRDYYYYY

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If tho certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the_policy(los) muat have ADDITIONAL INSURED provislons or be-ondorsed.
If SUBROGATION |5 WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may roquira an endorsement. A atatement on
this cortlficato does not confer rights to tho certificato holder in ey of such gndorsernent(s).

PRODUCER ﬁm‘“ Cara Scala
FIAVCross Insurance PHONE , {603} 860-3218 - I r% Naj: (803) 8454331
1100 Elm Stroet iooRtss; Cscatag@erossogoncy.com ’ B
] INSURER|S) AFFORDING COVERAGE i NAIC #
Manchester NH 0311 INSURER &: MMG (Maine Mutual) Ins.  ~ o N
INSURED iNsurerp: MMG Ins Co 15607
NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE INC weurerc: Almerica Flnancial Aliance -~ 10212 ~
117 N STATE ST INSURER D _
INSURER E :
. 7 CONCORD NH .03301-4407 | \wgurers :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  19/20 Mastor REVISION NUMBER:

“THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY FERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TOALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TAOBTISO0R, ULV Err | POCy EXT —
T _ TYPE OF INSURAKCE wsp | wp POLICY NUMBER {MMDDAYTY) | iMWDONYY) . LIMITS
D¢ COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ' EACH OCCURRENCE 3 2,000,000
- ! 14 "
J, CLAIMGMADE IE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea ocaronce) | ¢ 1:000.000
|| | MED EXP Ay 0w porcony .| 8 5000
A N B8P13385128 | 0710172019 | 0710172020 [ oonsomaL e aovmmmy | s 2:000.000
GEFLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER: GENERAL AGOREGATE 3 4,000,000
POUCY S D Loc PRODUCTS - comProragg | 3 4,000,000
OTHER; . . . d
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY CEWHW !]".GLEL“'T + 2,000,000
|7 anvauro . BODILY INJURY (P pacson) | §
‘A [ | ownER SCHEDULED p
A || atros oy AUTOS BP{13365128 : 070172019 i 07/0172020 | BOOILY INJURY (Per sccidant) | §
S| HIRED NON-OMWNED ' | FROBERTY CAMAGE: s
Ral Py AUTOS ONLY | {Bec setidant)
‘ s
[ <] usereLLAUAD | X< occur £ACH OCCURRENCE 3 1,000,000
8 EXCESS LIAB CLAMSMADE KU13373043 07012018 | 07012020 [, aarecare R
pen | >€] hivmimon ¢ 10.000 - MR
WORKERS COMPENSATION ~ -
AND EMPLOYERS' LABILITY - X siyre | &0 50000
C [Srrcoamemnen excroeor o [N |wia WKVE596241 (3a), NH 07/02/2019 | 07/02r2020 |-Ek-EACHACCIDENT B
(Mandstory INNH) EL DISEASE - £ EMPLovEe | ¢ 1,000,000
If yas, describe ung 1,000,000
DESCRIBTION OF OPERATIONS betow 3 EL DISEASE - oLy Ly | 3 1000,

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS { VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addikionsl Remarks Schedul
Confirmation of coverage

, may be attached If more space Is raquired)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
NH Depariment of Justics * ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
13 Caplto! Street -
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Concord NH 03301
1 d ’
) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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. Department of the Treasur
é"m ]RS Internal Revanue Str_\'leey

(4

017451

P.0., Box 2508 . in reply refer to: 0268459779
Cincinnati OH 45201 June 11, 2008 LTR 4168C EOD
' 02-0300897 pooooo 00 Q0O
' . 00026861
BODC: TE

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE
117 N STATE ST
CONCORD NH 03301-4407170

Emplover Identification Number: 02-0300897
’ ' Person to Contact: MS. LEWIS
Toll Free Telephone Numbar: 1-877-829-5500

Dear TAXPAYER:

This is in response to vour request of June 02, 2008, regarding wvour
tax-aexempt status. ’

Our records indicate that a determinatlion letter was issued in
SEPTEMBER 1971, that recosnized vou as exempt from Fedaral income tax,
and discloses that you are currently exempt under section 501(¢c)(3)

of the Internal Revenue Code.

Our records aiso indicate vou are not a priva{a foundation within the
meaning of sectlon 509¢a) of the Code bscause vou are described in

‘'section 509(a)(2).

Donors may deduct contributions te vou as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or
for vour use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and

2522 of -the Code.’

1t you have any questions, please call us at the telephone number

shown in the heading of this letter.
Sincersly vours,

Michele M. Sullivan, Oper, .Mgr.
Accounts Management Operations I

Mgt Ameme

(PSP PRIE I SR TARTEERPE SRS PR |



* STEPHANIE A. BRAY
NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

EDUCATION

1984-1987

1980-1983

1982

Juris Doctor, University of Virginia
Charlottesville, Virginia

Bachelor of Arts, Chinese Language and Literature
Oberlin College, Obertin, Chio )
Phi Beta Kappa

Intensive Language Curriculum in Mandarin Chinese
Middlebury College, Middlebury, Vermont

EMPLOYMENT

2018-present New Hampshire Legal Assistance

2007-2018

Claremont Branch Law Office

24 Opera House Square, Suite 206
Claremont, NH 03743

(603) 206-2241

Managing Attorney for the Claremont Branch Law office. Supervises two
advocates and staff. Also maintains full case load, which consists of foreclosure
defense, eviction defense, property tax relief work, domestic violence protective
order cases, divorce and parenting matters, debt collection defense, and
municipal welfare advocacy.

Director of NHLA’s Foreclosure Relief Project since 2012. Represents at-risk
homeowners in obtaining injunctions against foreclosure in a non-fudicial
Joreclosure state, and in workouts with lenders. Coordinates intake and case
review among several participating legal services organizations. Maintains

_pleadings and decision bank, and serves as information reference for volunteer

attorneys.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance
Concord Branch Law Office

1t7 North State Street

Concord, NH 03301

(603) 223-9750-

——
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1987.2007  Wiggin & Nourie, P-A. .
670 North Commercial Street, Suite 305
Manchester, NH 03105
(603) 669-2211
Member of the firm in the Commercial f.i_ﬂ,‘g"aﬁaﬁ;depdr!ment: Cases included
civil rights litigation, shareholder derivative suits, civil RICO, contracts, yJee,
‘defamation, automobile:and ofher fianchisé law, lender liability and title
insurance coverage. Admitted to practice in NH, MA and VT.
1986 Internship, Wiggin & Nourie
20 Market Street, P.O. Box 808
Manchester, NH 03105
(603) 669-2211
Summer associate. Researched litigation and insurance coverage issues; took
witness statements; attended and assisted in preparation of depositions.
1985 Internship, New Hampshire Attomey General
State House Annex, 25 Capitol Street
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
(603) 271-2671
Internship in the Criminal Bureau. Researched trial and appellate issues.
SPECIAL INTEREST
2004 Traveled to People’s Republic of China, Shaanxi Province, Xi’An City
Participated as Panel Speaker in Conference on Delivery of Legal Services to the -
Poor . - 4 , . .
Spoﬁsorcd by ABA Asia Law Initiative and the National Legal Aid Center of the |
Ministry of Justice of China
Opportunity to discuss. concepts of g_o'vernmenr funding of legal services, and pro
bonp service, in a nation experdencing enormous social and economic change
1983 Traveled to People’s Republic of China, Guangdong Province, Xin Hui City

Maniaging Altorriey for the Concord Branch Law office. Supervised four to six
advocates and staff. Also:maintained full case load as described above.

Taught English for a summer program at the Xin Hui Overseas Chinese
Middle School




SERVICE

2017-present

2016-present

2000-2007

2003
1998-2001

1998-2007

1591-2005
1991
1989-1992

PUBLICATIONS

New Hampshire Judicial Council

The Council is stablished pursuani to RSA 494 t6 provide assistance and.
information about the-state's courts and justice system to all branches of

" state government as well.as to the bar. dssocidtion. In addition, the

Judicial Counéil provides funding for the Indigent Defense Fund, the

Contract Attorney Program, the New Hampshire Public Defender's Office,

CASA, NH Legal Aid for civil matters and Guardians ad Litem in
guardianship, termination-of parental rights and abuse & neglect matters.

Federal Court Advisory Committee, United States District Court for
The District of New Hampshire

The Committee provides feedback to the Court on local court rules and
assists in interfacing between the Court and practitioners

President of Board of Directors, ° ~
New Hampshire Legal Assistance and Legal Advice and Referral Center

Intimately involved in'identifying initiatives, budgeting, fundraising; and
short and long term plarining for bith organizations: Working ta define.
the role of both orgariizations In the larger camminity of legal service
providers in New Hampshire. ‘

Recipient, New Hampshire Bar Assaciation’s :
L. Jonathan Ross Award Tor Legal Service to the Poor

American Bar Association Standing Committee on
Prepaid Legal Services :

New Hampshire Bar Foundation

New Hampshire Bar Association Committee on
Delivery of Legal Services to the Poor

Recipient, New Hampshire Bar Association’s
President’s Award for Pro Bono Service in Hillsborough County

Board of Directors, Visiting Nurse Association of
Manchester and Southern New Hampshire

Co-author, Liability of Accountants, 31 N.HLB.J. 95 (1990).
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KAY ELIZABETH DROUGHT :

Education S ‘ . i

BOAL"I‘ HALL SCHOOL OF LAW, UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, Berkeley,
California
.Juris Doctor, May 1985

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, Berkeley, California
Master of Arts, City and Regional Planning, May 1985

WILLIAMS COLLEGE, Williamstown, Massachusetts
Bachelor of Arts, cum laude, Political Economy, May 1981

Legal Employmernt

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Litigation Director, 2004 to present

Branch Law Office Managing Attorney, 1997 to present

s Supervise and co-counsel significant litigation

o Lead counsel, 42 U.S.C. Section 1983 lawsuit to enforce ch11dren s rights to dental
care under federal Medicaid law, Hawkins v. Commissioner, 99-CV-143 (D.N.H)

¢ Lead counsel, Right-to-Know case involving Medicaid records,

Hawldns v. Depariment of Health and Human Services, 147 N.H. 376 (2001)

» Co-counsel, successful challenge to State’s inclusion of children’s SSI as TANF
assistance group income, Hendrick v. Department of Health and Human Services,
New Hampshire Supreme Court August 2016. '

Conduct community outreach on Medicaid dental issues

o Organize and lead case acceptance meetings and case review discussions
Represent individual clients in unemployment, eviction defense, and public benefits _
cases .

TEXAS RURAL LEGAL AID, FARM WORKER DIVISION, Plainview and

Hereford, Texas

Regional Counsel, 1993 to 1997

Branch Manager, 1988 to 1992

Staff Attorney, 1987 to 1997

« Litigated employment, civil rights, housing, environmental, education, and consumer

cases, primarily in federal courts

o Lead counsel in numerous class action and mass plaintiff cases, including:
Murillo v. Texas A & M University System et al., 921 F. Supp. 443 (S.D. Tex.
1996) and Salinas v. Rodriguez, Goodpasture, et al., 963 F. 2d 791 (5th Cir.

~ 1992), reh’g denied 978 F. 2d 187 (5th Cir. 1992)

1
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Organized press conferences and media coverage of significant cases

Gave prescntations on pretrial procedure and federal labor laws at numerous seminats
for new farm worker attorneys; prepared outlines, video demonstrations, and other
training materials

MONTGOMERY & ANDREWS, P.A., Santa Fe, Ncw Mexico

Associate Attorney, Commercial Department, 1985-1987

o Represented business clients in collection lawsuits; advised hospital, utility, and
financial institution clients on a variety of issues; represented individuals in real cstate
purchases : .

» Gave presentations to large groups of hospital and public utility employees about
legal issues affecting their work

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, BEREKLEY, DEPARTMENT OF CITY AND

REGIONAL PLANNING, Betkeley, California
Teaching Assistant, graduate level Land Use Law course, 1985

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY, Oakland, California
L_aw Clerk, 1984 - 1985

Volunteer Experience

‘NEW HAMPSHIRE SUPERIOR COURT RULE 170 MEDIATION PROGRAM
Volunteer Mediator, 2002 to 2010 '

ROCKINGHAM COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION
Member, Board of Directors, 1998 to 2000

STATE BAR OF TEXAS, DISTRICT 13A GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
Member, 1994 to 1997

STATE BAR OF NEW MEXICO, PRO BONO COMMITTEE
Member, 1986-1987




- RUTH BEINTZ

_ EDUCATION *

University of Californta, Boalt Hall School of Law, Bezkeley, CA
.X.D., May 1995

Dartotouth College

B.A. cum luda with major in enfiooering seienses, Tune 1988 -
‘BAR ADMISSIONS ' '

State Bar of California - 1996 (inective)
State Bay of Ohlo - 1997 (inactive)

State Bar of Oregon - 1999 (submitted Form A regignation inZOO;T)
State Bar of Now Hampshire -2004 - : |

EXPERIENCE ‘ ) -
‘Now Hampshive Legal Assistance, Littieton, Now Fampshire .

Stiff Attoriiay, stirting June 2004, Managing Attornsy, Soptember 2008 to presont. .

Reprosent and provids Jegal advics to low-incoms and senior clients iving in nbuthismNew Hampshire

with a wide varicty of legal problema: “houslng (evictions, conditions, Section 8 teyminations, fair

honsing); Soctal Security and Medicaid; family law (divarcs, custody.and visitation, child support;

demestic violenco restraining ordere); ncinploymeat compensation and other public benefity; utilities;

sod other mattcrs, Appodr in-stuts end-foderal courts and at administrative hearings.

Southenstern Ohlo Legal Services, Portsmouth, Zanosvills, and Newark, Qhio

Staff Attoraéy, May 1996 to March 1999, Apsil 2001 to May.2004. :
‘Represented mid provided legel advico to lowstncomo clients living in rural Ohio with s wide varioty of
Iegel probloma: firnily law (divorce; custody.and visifaticn, child enpport, domiestic viclenes); houging

* . +(ovigtions, conditiong, rent cscrow; Jand installmont contraéts, forecloguron); consmmer law including

prodatory leniling and 8ebt colleotion; utilities; Social Sceurity, fnriploymant compousation, and other
_public benefits; speoinl education; wills; énd other snattors, Momber of the “housing tedm".and:’
“predatory lending toa™ to strategize and sddress conoerns of low-incoms people. Appeared in stato
-amd fsdoral courts and #t administrative heavings. ) )

Leg(al Ald Services of Oregon, Peadleton, Oregon

. Staff Attorney, April 1999 to April 2001. , , ‘ '
Represented and provided legal advico primaarily to members and othor Native American residents of

the Urnatilla Indian Reservation in vérious aveas of poverty law and Indian law. Appeared in tribal and .
stato courts and at administrative hearings. ’ . ,

San ¥rancisco Nelghhorhood Legal Assistance Foundnﬂon, Sen Prancisco, Galifornia |
* ' Domestic Relations Untt Law Clerk, January 1994 to May 1995. - -

East Bay Comnumity Law Center, Barkeley, Califorma
HIV Unit Intern, Tanmary 1995 to May 1995.

Laogal Ald Soclety of Alameda County, Oakland, California
Law Clerk, Tune-1993 to Junc 1994,

: i?‘nmily Violence Law Center, Berkeley, CA.
Volunteer, Spring and Summer 1993,

Tongass Alaska Girl Seout Councll, Fomeau, AK .
VISTA Volunteer, November 1989 toqucmber 1990,

P. 24
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Mary Krueger, Esq.

caftnmE. SATARA aa, SR e—
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Educafion

University of New Hampshire School of Law Keene State College

Concord, NH
J.D., 2006
GPA 3.76, top 10%

Robert M Vxles fellow full scholamh1p

Keene, NH

B.A. Psychology, 1994
GPA 4.0 .
Honors, summa cum laudc

Licensed Vermont and New Hampshire Atrarney ,

Member, Vermont Bar Association, New Hampshire Bar Assoclation.

orlCExpcrience

2019-,pmént

2017-2019

2014-2017

New Hampshire Legal Asslstance, Claremont, NH

" Staff Attorney .

Advocate for low-income victim/survivors of domestic and sexual
violence and human trafﬁckiﬁg in family law and related civil legal
matters including public housing, homelessness, town welfare, food
stamps, unemployment, consumer law, TANF and other public benefits.

Vermont Packinghouse LILC, North Springfield, VT
General Counsel .

Work with General Manager on various business and legal issues. Ensure
regulatory compliance in areas of Federal and State law; manage
workers’ compensation claims and safety; conduct legal research,
participate in staff engagement activities; perform human resources
tasks; oversee company communications; era_t_egic planning.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, stal.eWIde bascd in Claremont, NH
Deputy Director ‘ . .

Work with Executwe Director as pact of the Senior Management team to
manage statewide civil legal services law firm mission and vision;
manage NHLA programs, priorities, and staff to achieve organization
goals; oversee legal work, litigation, policy advocacy, staff development
and training, standards of practice and case management system; oversee
hiring process; oversight of personnel matters; oversee IT and
operations; input and decision-making responsibility on budget,
insurance, audits, retirement planning, purchasing and other fiscal
matters; oversee and update NHLA Policies and Procedures Manual,
oversee leases, vendor contracts, office maintenance needs; oversee staff
time and work duties; oversee client intake, client grievance procedures,
conflicts, income eligibility waivers; maintain relationships with partner
agencies; oversee internal and exterrial communications via press and
social media; manage individual case [oad.

Cr i wae e




Mary Krueger, Esq.

B Lt

2006-2014 New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Claremont, NH
Project Director, Domestic Violence Advocacy PlOJecl {DVAP), Staff
Attorney

Advocate for fow-income victim/survivors of domestic and sexual
violence in family law and related civil legal matters; oversee and

- coordinate DVAP activities including project attorney and paralegal
work; serve as the liaison to project partners and community gioups such
as the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,
New Hampshire's Bar Association Pro Bono Program, domestic violence
crisis centers and shelters, New Hampshire’s Legal Advice and Referral
Center, and New Hampshire Catholic Charities; responsible for drafiing
federal and state grant applications and biennial grant reports; serve as .

“ faculty on biennial statewide domestic violence trainings for pro bono
lawyers and crisis center advocates; serve on the New Hampshire
Governor’s Commission on Domestic and Sexua! Violence and Human
Trafficking Commission; Advocate for clients on various legal issues
including public housing, homelessness, town welfare, food stamps,
unemplayment, bankruptcy, TANT and domestic violence.

2001-2003 New Hampshire Public Radio, Concord, NH
Executive Producer, “The Bxchangc » statewide daily public affairs

program.

Managed program, host, staff, schedule and overa!l vision; researched,
selected and assigned program topics; pre-interviewed and booked
program guests;, wrote and edited copy; produced and edited recorded
elements; produced election coverage and other specizal projects.

1995-2001 New Hampshire Public Radio, Concord,.NH

Producer, “The Exchange,” statewide daily public effairs program
Assistant Producer, “The Exchange,” statewide daily public affairs
program.

Assistant Producer, “Perspectives,” daity half hour interview program.
“Voter’s Voice” Election project coordinator, 1996 Presidential Primary.

Volunteer Activitics

2016-present Springfield Elementary Schools Parent Teacher Association,
Springfield, VT
President; lead PTA in various efforts to improve Springfield schools;
engage parents and teachers i in building strong educational systems and
experiences. -

2016-present  ° Girl Scout Leader: Troop #51293, Springfield, VT _
Lead girls in learning, leadership, life, outdoor and business skills.

2012-2017 American Clvil Liberties Union New Hampshire, Concord, NH
Board of Directors, Vice Chair




2007-2016

2007-2017

Mary Krueger, Esq.

o
By A e easo—

Executive committee, finance and economic justice committees and
other board duties. '

Turning Polats Network, Crisis Center, Claremont, NH
Board of Directors, Past Treasurer, Past President
Suppott agency's current and future goals; fundraising, event planning;

participate in strategic planning; oversee agency budget in collaboration

with executive committee and Director,”

Access to Justice Commission, Concord, NH
Member, appointed by New Hampshire Supreme Court.
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MARY MASON

B i i s ek L

EDUCATION
Vermont Law School, South Royalton, VT
1.D..May 2018
e Social Media Editor for the Vermont Journal of Enwronmental Law.

‘ Rutgers University, New Brunswick, NJ
B.A., Political Science & Art History, May 2012
« Spent Spring 2011 studying Art History and Political Science at John Cabot University, Rome, Italy

EXPLRIENCE
New Hampshlire Legal Assistance
Staff Attorney September 2018 — Present
» Represented clients in a variety of family law matters such as protective o:dem divorces, and
© parenting cases,
s Provided counsel and adviseto clients in a manner that allowed them to make educated, well informed
decisions in their cases.
o  Prepared clients and witnesses for hearings, managed hearing preparauons and filed motions and
pleadings with the court in a timely manner.
+'  Obtained a favorable New Hampshire Supreme Court interlocutory appeal decision.
South Royalton Legal Clinic
Student Clinician Janvary 2018 — May 2018 :
# Prepared witnesses for hearings and conducted direct examinations in Washington and Windsor
Counties.
¢  Helped with intake f‘or potentlal new clients and provided Iegal information to call-ins that could not
become clients, -
e Helped counsel clients on intimate partner violence, relief from abuse orders, dwurce and parental
rights and responsibilities,
» Filed a variety of motions in Washingion, Orange, and Windsor Counties.

Garﬂeld Goodrum, Design Law
Law Clerk, May 2017 — August 2017
‘e Assisted in preparation for litigation regarding copyright infringement including preparing deposition
digests,
.« Researched and prepared a memo on attomey s fee under the Lanham Act.
= Researched state copyright laws and sate, filing requirements.

VT Department of Labor, Montpelier, VT

. Legal Intern May 2016 — August 2016, June 2017 — August 2017

' *  Wrote regulations for Vermont's Earned Sick Time Law (Act 69) and rescarched Eamned Sick Time
rules from other states and mumclpatmes

s Researched and prepared a memo on the changes to overhme eligibility under the new 2016 Fair
Labor Standards Act regulations.
Researched and prepared responses for worker’s compensation, unempldyment, and FLSA Inquiries.
Drafted Appeals briefs to Vermont Supreme Court. '

MA Department of Public Health Prevention and Wellness Trust Fund (DPH), Boston, MaA -
Program Coordinator, December 2014 — August 2015

e
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o Provided overall program assistance for DPH Prevention and Wellness Trust Fund including:
contract/fiscal coordination, administrative support, meeting and event planning.

o  As Fiscal Coordinator, processed and tracked all contracts, contract plans, encumbrances,
engagements, amendments and invoices; communicated with grantees and vendors to assist in

: paperwork and ensure compliance with required timelines; helped manage the budget.
Fiscal Coordinator, contracted through Ripples Group—Boston, MA; May 2012 — December 2014

o  Provided fiscal and administrative assistance for. DPH Tobacco Cessation & Prevention Program

(MTCP), including; contract/fiscal coordination and edministrative support.




JESSICA MORRISSLY

EDUCATION

Unlverslty of Maine Law, Portland, Maine
Juriz Doctor, May 2019

New England Law | Boston, Bostan, Massachusetts
First Year Law Student, August 2016 - May 2017

Framingham State University, Framinghem, Massachusetts
Bachelor of Arts, Sociology (Human Services concentration), May 2015

EXPERIENCE L L

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Portsmouth, New Hampshire
Paralegal, December 2018 - May 2013
" Extern, September 2018 - December 2018
» Providing legal assistance to low-income residents of New Hampshire.
« Practice in areas of law including: family law, domestic violence, education law housing law, and
income maintenance,
+ Conducting client interviews, counseling, negotiations, investigating cases, taklng depositions,
conducting legal research, drafting pleadings, representation in Circuit Court.

Cumberland Legal Aid Clinic, Porttand, Maine
Prisoner Assistance Clinic, Student Attorney, Spring 2019
« Providing civil legal aid to women incarcergied al Maine Correctional Center.
« Practice in areas of law including: smal! ciaims, bankruptcy, family law, and guardianshlp matters.
« Conducting client interviews, counseling, legal research and investigation,
* Drefting pleadings, carrespondences, and other writien edvocacy.
Student Attorney, Roger A. Putnam Fellowship, Summer 2018
* Providing legal assistance to low-income residents of Maine.,
» Practice areas including: domestic violence protection orders, family, guardxansh ip and small claims
matters.,
« Conducting client counseling, discovery, case investigation, and representatlon in Maine District Court
« Practice with aral and written advocacy, document drafting, cass strategy, negotiations, and conducting
hearings and trials.

Legal Assistant, August 2017 - December 2018
+ Answered calls, and placed phone messages into the case management system.
« Completed print jobs, referrals, and pre-intake assistance.

Morrizon Mahoney LLP, Boston, Massachusetts
Legal Intern, September 2016 - April 2017
+ Drafted correspondence and legal documents.
« Obtained affidavits and other formal statements for use in court; filed exhibits, briefs, appeals, and
other legal documents with thecourt; am\nged for delivery of documents to opposing counsel.
« Organized and maintained documents in paper and electronlic filing systems.
- Scheduled and handled arrangements for interviews, meetings, and depositions.

Connections for Kids, Kittery, Maine
Behavioral Health Professional, September 2015 ~ April 2018
+ Partnered with a Master's level therapist in the home and in the community to provide social,
emotiond! and behavioral support and instruction for parents and children. ’
« Organized and prioritized a substantial workload under deadlines.
+ Connected with community and cutside resources.
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JILLIAN C. REIHL . ‘

Staff Attorney, New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Manchester, NH January 2017 - present

» Represent income qualified victims and survivors of intimate partner violence, sexuel assault, and
staking during protection order proceedings )

« Provide holistic legal representation to victims and survivors of intimate parter violence during family
law proceedings, including both divorce and parénting cases

¥ Assist immigrant victims of domestic violence and scxual assault with seeking legal status, Lawful
Permanent Resident status, and U.S. citizenship _

= Work to build community partnerships with local service providers, law enforcement agencics, courts,
and cuiturally specific community groups '

» Represent and advise clients about other civil legal issues, including benefits and landlord tenant law,

“ in an effort to provide holistic legal services. :

Associate Attorney, Drew Law Office, PLLC, Manchester, NH October 2012 - January 2017

* Independently manage and conduct all aspects of client intake and representation

« Develop standardized procedures, questionnaires, and form letters to improve case efficiency and

minimize staff errors or omissions o

» Maximize profitability by utilizing free or low cost resesrch tools such as Casemaker and Fastcase

's. Conduct legal research and analysis and draft memoranda, briefs, and opinion letters -

*» Consult with outside counsel to provide comprehensive legal advice and on interdisciplinary issues

= Collaborate with social service providers and probono attorneys to secure ancillary services

# Empower clients to make meaningful contributions to their representation through education

-+ Expanded the areas of expertise within our practice to include the preparation of U-visa applications

Research Assistant, Professor Symeon C. Symeonides, Salem, OR August 2011 - May 2012
Research Assistant, Professor Warren Binford, Selem, OR - July 2011 - May 2012
'« Hdited chapters of a textbook to be published on Private International Law (Professor Symeonides)
» Performed research and compiled a bibliography to support the writing of a textbook, law review
articles, and a successful Fulbright application (Professor Binford) N

- Law Clerk, ICE - ._Oﬁice of the Chief Counsel, Portland, OR June 2011 - August 2011
« P'repared legal filings for submission to the Immigration Court and the Board of Immigration Appeals

* Assisted staff attorneys by invesiigaling legal issues and drafting memoranda

Legal Intern, Willamette International Hunian Rights Clinic, Salem, OR August 2010 - May 2011

’ » Asylum Work: Represented clients in affirmative.and defensive asylum procecedings .

« Non-profit Legal Assistance: Advised a non-profit organization about legal strategies for the
ratification of a treaty and sustainable business practices .

¥ y FESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: -
Assistant Director/Internship Coordinator, Colby College, Waterville, ME  May 2008 - July 2009
» Developed and presented workshops on professional skills and networking - ' ,
= Motivated students by creating a plan of action during individual counseling
« Coordinated the College’s internship programs '
» Rdited and drafted informational student resources
-« Collaborated with Alumni Relations, Admissions, and other departiments to develop and implement
strategies for expanding student opportunities

Willamette University College of Law, Salem, OR - GPA: 3.41 (18/121) 1.D., cum laude, May 2012

Thomas College, Waterville, ME - GPA: 3.96 M.B.A., July 2009
- William Smith College, Geneva, NY - GPA: 3.75 B.A., May 2008
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Chelsie Rommel

L L EDUCATION -
Jduris Qgct'gr Candidate University of New Hampshire School of Law December 2018

Public service fellowships:

o Janet D. Steiger Fellowship (2018), awarded by the American Bar Asswnatton

e Rudman Summer Fellowship (2017), ewarded by the University of New Hampshire School of Law.
Activities: Domestic and Sexual Violence Project, Treasurer (2015 to 2018,

Master of Public Pollcy: University of New Hampshire, Carsey School of Public Policy  May 2618

Capstone Project: Reducing Domestic Violence in Central America: The Impact of Government Intervention.

Diial Defices: BS/BA Central Washington University June 2015

Dual Degrees: Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Bachelor of Arts in Law and Justice.
'EXPERIENCE , .

Staff-Attornéy New Hampshire Legal Assistant January 2019 to Present

‘Represent survivors of domestic violence, stalking, human trafficking, and elder abuse in civil legal cases. Legal
‘cases include, but not limited to, protective orders, divorces, parenting plans, Social Security Disability cases,
Supplemental Security Income cases, and housmg cases. Draft and create Social Media Policy for New
Hampshire Legal Assistance advocates.

Intern New Hampshire Women’s Foundation " August 2018 to December 2018
‘Collect and analyze data for reports affecting women in New Hampshire. Help edit New Hampshire Women’s
Foundation’s Status on Women publication.

DOQVE Project Assistant’ ‘New Hampsbire Bar Association - August 2017 to November 2018

ntern Pro Bono Referval Program — DOVE Project : Summer 2016
Coordinate with community partners to organize successful several DOVE trainings. Present on New
Hampshire’s domestic violence and stalking restraining order laws. Participate in organizing and designing the
Continuing Legal Bducation (CLE) materials for NH’s CLE on Diversity in New Hampshuc (2018} and New
Hampshire’s Supervised Visitation Centers (2016).

.J;iile'j_l) :‘St'clncr.‘FelIdw New Hampshire Department of Justice - Sumnier 2018
v Consumer Protection imd Antitrust Bureau

Performed extenswe research on New Hampshire legislative history concéring theft by unauthorized taking,

healthcare data access, and the operation of the ballot law commission. Drafted legal documents such as an Ex

Parte Motion to Return Property, an Assurance of Discontinuance, and a Subpoena Duces Tecum. Produced

correspondence with’ opposing party detailing a proposed Assurance of Discontinuance. Interviewed consumers

and conducted investigations based on consumer complaints of various product and service industries.

Rudman Summer Féllow. ‘State of Alasks, Office of Public Advocacy Surimer 2017

Criptinal and Parental Representation Unit
Represcnted criminal clients in juvenile, misdemeanor, and felony cases, which involved charges of drug
possession, assault, arson, theft, or burglary. Participated in child protection hearings, mcdlatlons contested
child placement hearings, and contested guardianship hearings.

Legal Intern. ~ New Hampshire Legal Asslstance January 2017 to Aprit 2017
Research and analyzed NH legal issues affecting low-income citizens, including first and second mortgage

practices, illegal debt collection practices, discounted property.tax policies, child custody agreements issues, and

divorces. Drafted legal memos for the supervising attomey based on mortgage practices and family law.
Interviewed and corresponded with low-income clients regarding debt collection issues.
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COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES
Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire, volunteer/shelter advocate/on-call advocate {2016 ta 2018)
e ‘Tieiiied in trauma-informed pragtices, Provide supporl and resourdes to domestic and sexual violence
survivors, including responding to emergency room calls, providing crisis counsefing, communicating
‘Léthal Assessmetit Program sheels with police officers, and creating safety plans.




Christopher Schott

.RBducation_,

University of N;:w Hampshu:e ‘School of Law, Concord, NH B Graduated May 2018 -

Juris Doctor Candidsate
GP 'A 3.21, Recipient of Presidential Scholarship and New Hampshire Grant
Advanced Criminal Practice Clinic - Aug. 2017 = Dec. 2017

Student Attorney

«  Served indigent clients in New Hampshire and federal criminal proceedings.

o Researched New Hampshite and federal criminal law and filed written motions on behalf of client’s

defense.
Criminal Practice Clinic : Jan. 2017- May 2017
Student Attomey
_®  Represented indigent dlients in misdermeanor and felony ctitninal cases in New Hampshire state court.
¢ Appeared in court to conduct cross examinations and assist supervising attorney.

Geﬂysburg College, Gettysbutg, PA Graduated May 2015

Bachelor of Asts in Political Science, Environmental Studies Minor
GPA 3.49, Dean’s List Recipient, Member of Pi Sigma Alpha Political Science Honor Society

Employment = _ e L e
‘New Hampshire Legal Asslsmncc Portsmouth, NH
Staff Attomey May 2018 — Present

s Represent victims of domestic violence in protective order, dworce, and parenting cases.
‘¢ Advise victims of domestic violence regarding variety of legal issues they face 25 the result of abuse.
¢ Track New Hampshire bills and observe legishative hearings related to issues of domestic violence and family law.

New Hampshire Department of Justice — Envitonmcntal Protection Bureau ’ Concord, NH
Legal Intern - Residency Jan. 2018 — May 2018
o Aided supervising attorney in conducting 4 criminal investigation, '
e Duafted complaints to enforce New Hampshire enviconmental regulations.
& Researched and advised on questions of criminal, propetty, and consumer protection law.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance . Portsmouth, NH
Legal Intern May 2017 ~ Auvg. 2017

* Aided in the representation of client’s’ domestic violence, landlotd-tenant, and housing discrimination cases.
®  Researched and advised on questions of healthcare, welfare, and education law.
e Conducted direct and cross examinations in domestic violence cases before New Hampshire state courts.

New Hampshire Dcpatlment of Environmental Services Concord, NH
Legal Intern o May 2016 — Aug. 2016

e Drafted documcnts to enforce state regulations of public bathing facilities.
»  Conducted tesearch and advised on legal questions for members of the department.
e - Participated in on-site regulatory inspections of public bathing facilities. .

Adams County Public Defender’s Office _ " Gettysburg, PA. .

Legal Intern ' Feb. 2015 — May 2015

* Petformed research on Pennsylvania and federal law to form arguments for court cases.
»  Observed first hand plea bargaining, revocation hearings and ctiminal trils.

Competencies ., _

WestLaw Néxt, Lexis Advancc Bloombcrg Law, Geogmphlc Infonnauon Systcms STATA




Michelle E. Wangerin

Bosion Callege:Lnw School . Newlon, MA
Juris Doclor ! : May, 2606
Awards, . 2004 Bqual Justlce Works Hducatlonal Scholarship Reclpient -

Organitzations  Public Interest Law Foundation: 2005-2006 Vics President; 2006 Alumni Auction Dircstor; 2005 Auction
and Activitics:  Direotor; 2004 Auction Committee, Corporate Donatlons Co-Chuir
Tnanigration Law Saclely (2003-2004); Immigrallon Trips Donations Comilttes, Comumlc Donations
Chair, Public Interest lmmigration Lav Spring Bresk Trip In Miami

Darimouth College ' : Hanover, NH

Bachelov o['Arls. Major:  Psychology, Minor: Qovernment June, 2003
Derimouth Language Study Abroad, Borlin, Gonnauy

EMPLOYMINT :

New Hampshire Legnl Assistanco, Portsmoulh, NH

Staff Attorney! Youth Law Frofect Direcior January, 2010-Present

Provide clvil legal advocaoy to couit involved youth at the adminisirative, cireuit. court nnd Naw Hafrihire Supreins Court levels 1o
seoure necessary educational, henlth, and community based services. Reprosent youth st major school disciplinary-hoarings. Eugago’ In
policy advocnoy (o lncrease stulowide. use of evidenco based preotices:in education and juvenilc Justice. Conduct local and. regional
trainings on Interplay botweon. spocml educdllon nnd juvenileju.sﬂco.

NH Publie [)ercnder . Congord, NH
Staff Ariorney . January, 2007-January, 2010

Provided logal defense to indigent juvenliles and adults charged wlth mlsdomeanor and felony level offenses, Tralned Incoming public
‘defenders on juvenilo dellnguency law and dispositions. Sclccted to attond Juvenile Dof'wdcr Leadership Sunumnit in Oclober 2008.

Disabiltles Rights Center : Concord, NH _
Law Clerk August 2006-January 2007

Sorved as court appolntcd GIAL for children in nsed of educatlonal services, Negotlated with school districts to ensure children with
disnbllitics receive proper educational servicos. Engaged In the formal complaint process with the New Hampshire Departinent of

Educatlon. Researched legal and polioy issuss in disability law areas including specinl educetion, Medlculd, and reasonablo

accoimnodations.
Boston College Legn} Assistnnce Bureau ) Whaltham, MA
Legal- Assistant, Women-and ihe. Livw Clinte rhrough Boston. Coﬁcgc Law Sehoo! Fall 2005-Spring 2006

Drafted and orgued clvil motlons In faibity court. Negotinted with both aitornoys and pro se parties n various areas including housing,
worknian's compensalion ‘claims, and. domestic relutions, inciuding child cuslody andsuppori. -Secured *SS1.uhd 8301 bonofits -for
chients, nmnd nssisted in cnforcing judgmonu. Filed complainl on bohalf ‘of a client o the Massachusolls Commission. Againsl
Discrimination and successfully negotiated housing trnnsfer,

The Logal Center for People with Disablitles and.Otder People ) Danver, CO
Spectal Educallon Depariment Legal Intern. ’ Smmner 2004
Drafted fedéint complaint:and rebintal for special educatlon case, Conducted logal rosearch and drafied memoranda on school of
cholce, compensatory education, IEP procedure, and discipiine Issues, nfong with & more oxtensive momornndiiny on the-appropriaio
statute of limitations for federal complainls, due procoss hearings, stato leve! roviow hoatings, and clvil actions In federal district court.

Amerienn Bar Assoclation . Washinglon, DC
Comtnission on Mexial end Physical Disabliitles Departinent Intern Stmmer 2002
Proofiead and cite-checked for the Menral and Physical Disability Law Reporter and the Handbook on Mental Disabllity Lawr, by
John Pani 'y, 1.1, and Phitips Gllitam, J.D. Prepered the Reporter's 2001 Title [ survey. Drafted major cass headlines for Roponor.
Assisted in oulreach Lo disabillty law community, Updated and maintaincd ABA lawycr databoso.

Commupnlty Connections ' . Cralg, AK

Counnnilty Living Support Asslsiont ‘ Fall 2001 .

Implemented after-schoal behoviornl and ecademic programs for children with auttsm, Aided in re-ovalunting and updnting obsolote
programs. Provided respito reliof to the Famllles of children with autism,
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Erin P. Jasina
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WORK EXPERIENCE

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE (NHLA)
Domestlc Violence Advocacy Praject Director October 2017-present
o Responsible for training, mentoring, and supervising project stnff mcluding seven attorneys, one parslegal,
and one administratlve manager
+ Prepare Pederal and State grant progress reports on an annual, blannual, and quarterly basis
s  Serve aspoint person for media and general public inquiries related to domestic violence and family law
issues . . . .
o Pacilitate quarterly meetings of the Domestle Violence Advisory Council made up of project partness and
other key community stakeholders

Domestic Violence Advocacy Project Co-Director December 2014-October 2017

Paralegnl Advocate, Domestic Vielence Advocacy Project January 2008-present
o Assist attorneys in the representation of domestic violence victims/survivors in family law related matters,
including divorce, parental rights & responsibilities, child support, and termination of parental rights
s Provide counsel & advice, under the supervision of project attorneys, to clients of the Strafford County
Family Justice Center

«  Coordinate with domestic violence crisls centers statewide to locate altorneys within NHLA to represem
clients at final domestic violence protective order hearings

s Coordinate statewide D'V AP referral process with crisis centers, NH Bar Association’s Pro Bono Program,
and the Legal Advice & Referral Center '

, & Assist attorneys with trial preparation by drafting court forms and pleadings, creating exhibit binders, and
preparing financial affidavits

= Participate in the dlscovery process by obtaining and analyzmg records fiom bank institutions and police
departments, and drafting answers to interrogatories

s Maintain client contact and provide support throughout case process, including attendance at court hearings
¢ Train crisis center advocates on safe and effective parenting plans

. Provide advocacy to clients seeking emergency assistance from lown local welfare offices

¢ Conduct legal research using Westlaw, the Internet, and public records

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE - September 2013-present
Intern Coordinator .

RHODE ISLANIi DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 2005-December 2007
Paralegal, Elder Abuse Unit and White Collar Crime Unit, Criminal Division
s  Responsitile for the preparation and filing of motions, including answering discovery requests
Acted a3 a contact for the public to report and ask questions regarding elder abuse
Maintained statistics for all pending and disposed cases handled by the Elder Abuse Unit
Participated in investigations of elder abuse
Communicated with local and state law enforcement agencies throughout criminal proccedings
Prepared presentations and assisted in the training of law enforcement personnel and elder advocates

P
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Erin P. Jasina

RHODE ISLAND DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL "'. 2005
Paralegal, Insurance Advocacy Unit, Civil Division
e Assisted with the preparation of insurance rate hearings, including trackmg responses to all data requests,
maintaining atiormeys’ files, and overseeing the production of trial binders

e Responsible for the preparation and filing of legal briefs
» - Compared and reviewed proposed insurancé laws and regulations

SKADDEN. ARPS, SLATE, MEAGHER & FLOM LLP, Boston, MA 2004-2005
Legal Hiring Assistant
¢  Assisted in the hiring process of Summer Associates
s  Responsible far arranging interviews of all prospective attorneys
Represented fim at taw school job fairsfraceptions
' Prepared materials used by attorneys at weekly Hiring Committee Meeting and partimpated in the mectings
e Maintained firm-wide database of all attorney applicants
«  Point of contact for attorneys regarding any HR related matters

DEBEVOISE & PLIMPTON LLP, Washingtdn, DC 2003-2004
Legal Receptiontst
* Handled all i incoming calls from clients, attorneys, and lhc general public

¢ Assisted managing partner on special projects
s Maintained and arranged office space for attorneys, clients, and staff
o  QOrganized office wide events, working with outside venders and suppliers

EDUCATION

NORTHEASTERN UNIVERSITY, Boston, MA : ‘ January-March 2005
Paralegnl Professional Certificate Program '

THE CATHOLIC UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA, Washington, DC 1999-2003
B.A. Media Studles . :

s QOverall GP.A. - 1.76/4.0; Magna Cum Laude

«. PhiEta Sigma (Fall 2000 — Spring 2003)

s Highest Honor in Senior Comprehensive Exam

COMMITTEES AND SPECIAL TRA INING
e  Member of the New Hampshire Family Mediator Certification Board since July 2015
¢ Served as Chair and NHLA *s representative to the Strafford County Family Justice Center Advisory
Council
s  Afiended the National Pamily Justice Center Alliance Conference (2011, 2012, 2014, 2016)
+  Altend annual NH Statewide Conferences on Domestic and Sexual Violence and Stalking

¢ April of 2007- Attended the Courtroom Technology course given by the National District Altorneys
Association at the Nationa! Advocacy Center in Columbia, SC. This four day course focused on using
PowerPomt as & tool for case analysis and courtroom prescatations.

COMPUTER SKILLS
».  Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Westlaw, Lexis, FLAPS, and Web—based research

-
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Frojcet Diveetor
WTah Dcscrlnﬁm_;
3107

Qvorvisip: Projest Directors performya koy role at NELA and are responsille for
fabageniett of substantive law-units. Thoy are expeoted to {ake an active rolo ju
‘mauaging {ho wotk of staff asslgned to tho projoot; overseoing projeot grants, and
Jpromoiing tho objeotives of tho tinit. Project direotory haye the autharity to delegate
work and coordinate work of the unit wifl other managern and advocates. Projeot

_ manages report to the Deputy Direotor, Duties inoludo but are not Limlted to: ™

o Working wlth sonlor management team and othors fo dovelop and maiutain
Project goale and objectives: ‘
" o IdentHy niid wotk In collabocation with Litigation Direotor.fo pursd idoas
for litigatlon, inglnding impsot and appoltate.
o Identifyiind work in colisboration with Polloy Dircotor fo.pursuc ideas for
adinInisirative and logislalive ndvacacy. ,
o Shars Information sbout Profect woik {bxoughout NHLA, fnoluding via

Litlgation Repost, . .
o Identifyand pursuo avenues for pfo.bono attornoys to further Projeot
goala, ,

o ‘Dévolop and maintain a national pérapéctive on the legal servicss dud
‘othet substantive law work padtaining to Projeot, (The Projeot Direotor 1
ot bo oxpsoted tobo'an expert in each component aroa of practios .
covered by the Projoot. 'Tho Priojeot Difeotor may dslegate responsibility
for teacking national developmonta Iri certein praotice avess to other

Profect membors.)

o Having primaty responsibility:for grant menagomont which includes famifiarity
with grait termé, obligations and limitatiops and grant reporting,

s Ensuring that objeotives of Project and goals and objeotives required by grants -
funding the Prcject are met. ]

s Working collaboratively with Controllor to set budget and hours’ oxpectations for
advooates working in Projeot, ‘

o Working in aotive collaboration with tio Dovelopmet Dirdotor to submit repotts
and to apply for ongoing gante. Bo alert to néw grants of furids to support and
guatsl work of Procot and notify Dovelopment Direotor of such opportunitles,

¢ Workingn sotivo.collabdratioi with managing attomeys in each BLO to
regularly superviso legal work dono by advocates In Project.
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5

Working with Deputy Dlfeotor to iw&ivé' aroas of couf] let between Maﬁaglng
‘Aftoinsy, Projeot Director, and/or individual advooates.

Working collabdratively with pioject term momboys afd assfsting them i
doveloplig their knowledgoand skills, )
o Rnoourage project toam membira to pursuo trainjug to dovelop

. complomentary areas of oxportiso. o
. o Inoonjunction with Députy Diveotor, Litigatlon Direotor, and Managing
Alfornieys; ansure thet cach NHLA sdvooate Lins o workplan {nchiding
professional devolopment goals, andt Kelp to identily opportunities,

Juoluding training and co:counseling, whioh would fulfill:ths warkplan.

Hstablishing mecharisms stigh as team mectings, case aeosplanco mestings and
staff fraining programs to develop th cfficaoy and gkill of tho unit,

Providing direct servioes o olients,

Working collaboratively to develop community outreach stratoglos.




Now Hampshire Legal Asslstance
' Staff o
. Job Desctiption « Miroh 2008
ogal Responsibifitios

"The StafF Attoiiiey provides oomprehensive logal sarvices to-eligtble olienta n
civ]l oases in accordance with pmgmm guldalines-aiid thé Code’ of Professlunl
Responsibility.

Dutieg '
¢ Handles a diversified oasaload of individual services cases in v number

commensurate with hisfher experionce and sompaterioo, and with the domands -

of his/her community.
& Develops a working knowledge of community needs, resources and deairos
-and establishes meaningful contaot and ties to community groups, -
otganizations, oto,

o Incrédses knowledge and exportise in apartioular substaniive area go a8 fo be .

-able to:
o ' 8. help train othm fawyers and support staff, sto, ‘
) - b. paitioipate in task forces or other groups aoﬁvo in developing
' strategy and tactlcy to furikier the Mterests of low-income
ollents in those areas,
s . Supetviees tho regular work of pamlegals and support staff. .
» Reports fo supervisors cageload statistios and goueral information rcpmdmg
hig/har actlvities at legulm Intexvals,

B._fci] atloyshig

Reparts ditectly to the Maneging Attorney or other direct Suparvlsm,
applicable, and {o the Bxeoutive Director of NHLA.

irement;

Member of the NH Bar ot must take flust available oxem

Demonstrated coimniliorent to serving low-income ollents,

Willingness to commit herherself to the program for a minunum of two yoars,
Prior legal servioos oxporience desireble,
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAIL ASSISTANCE

Board of Directors (Ubdated February 2020)

"KILE ADUMENE
(Secretary) .

Manchester Community

Health Center

145 Hollis St., Manchester, 03101

603-820-2121

N

JOHN T. BEARDMORE
{Treasurer)

Fidelity Investments

' 873 Rollins Rd.

Hopkinton, 03229

603-717-8092

John.Beardmoref@fmr.com

GEORGE DANA BISBEE, Esq _

{Co-Chair) . )

DEBORAH BUTLER, CPA Deborah Butler, CPA P.0O. Box 323, 20 Central Sq., 603-352-2448 dbutler@memxi.com

(VP) ' 1911 Office Keene, 03431 -

LAUREN SNOW CHADWICK, National Education P.O. Box 713 603-731-4296 _

Esq Association New London, 03257 . S
McLane Middleton 900 Elm St., P.O. Box 326 michae].delaney{@mclane.com

MICHAEL DELANEY, Esq: ‘ ) | Manchester, 03105-0326 603-625-6464 I

(SAMANTHA ELLIOTT, Esq.) Gallagher, Caliahan & 214 North Main St., P. 0. Box 1415 . . elliott(@gcglaw.com

(VP-LARC) (LARC Board only) { Gartrell, P.C. Concord, 03302-1415 ‘ 603-228-1181 '
CLAIRE H. GAGNON, CPA Easterseals NH .555 Aubum St. Manchester, 03103 603-621-3559 ‘cgagnoniiléastersealsnh.org
bey (GARET GOODLAND R, | 603-404-4017 N
I ELIZABETH GREENWOOD N eaercenwood 1@plymouth.édu -
' Gallagher, Callahan & 214 North Main St., P. O. Box 1415 603-545-3622 jennesstaAlgcalaw.com
ANNE JENNESS, Esq. Gartrell, P.C. Concord, 03302-1415 :

QUINN KELLY, Esq..

Boyle, Shaughnessy &

650 Elm Street, Suite 404

603-668-6216

Kellevimbscrrialattomeys.com

(Treasurer) Campo PC Manchester, 03101 . )
Rath, Young & One Capital Plaza, P.Q. Box 1500 603-226-2600 .msl@rathlaw.com
MICHAEL S. LEWIS, Esq. Pignatelli; PC Concord, 03302-1500 :
SINDISO MNISI WEEKS, LLB, | University of 100 Morrissey Blvd. re———.y _
Ph.D. Massachusetis-Boston Boston, MA 02125 : :
' Holistic Therapeutic 49 Ashuelot Street, Upstairs 315-409-3578 —
REBECCA NANN Arts Keene, NH 03431
| J0HN J. PELLETIER, SR. P.O. Box 1893, Derry, 03038 603-505-9710 __

DEBORAH KANE REIN, Esq.
(Co-Chair)

Hess Gehris Solutions

95 N. State Street, Concord, 03301

603-724-5081

deborah@hessgehris.com

TALESHA SAINT-MARC, Esq.

Bemstein Shur

670 N. Commercial SL, PO Box 1120
Manchester, NH 03105-1120

603-665-8814

‘tsgintmarc(@bemnsteinshur.com,

ERIN VANDEN BORRE, Esq.

Orr & Reno, PA

45 South Main St., Ste. 400
P.O. Bcng 3550, Conc. NH 03302-3550

603-568-8764 cell

‘EvandenBorre@orr-reno.¢om
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,g’ I‘RS Depariment of the Troawury
A Internal Rovenue Service

P,0. Bax 2508 - In reply refer to: 02484659779
Cincinnati 0OH 45201 ' June 11, 2008 LTR 4168C EO
02-0300897 000000 00 000
00026861
‘BODC: TE

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTARNCE

117 N STATE ST
CONCORD NH 03301-4407170

E%%

017451

Emplover Identification Number: 02-8300897
Parson to Contact: MS. LEWIS

Toll Free Telephone Number: 1-877-829-5500

Dear TAXPAYER:

This is in response to vour request of June 02, 2008, regarding vour
. tax-exempt status.

Our records indicate that a determination letter was issued in
SEPTEMBER 1971, that recognized you as axempt from Federal income tax,
and discloses that you are currently exempt under section 501(c¢)(3)

of the Internal Revenue Code. :

our records aiso indicate vou are not a priva{e foundation within the
meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because yvou ara described in

section 509(a)(2).

Donors’may deduct contributions to vou as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Begquests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts top vou or
_for your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2104, and

2522 of the Code, :

If vou have any questions, please call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of thls letter,

"Sincerely vours,
. ‘7( 5 .

Michele M. Sullivan, Oper. Mgr.
Accounts Management Operations I’




"GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. Identification and Definitions. .
1.1, State Agency Name 1.2. State Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Justice 33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301
1.3. Subrecipient Name 1.4. Subrecipient Address
Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. PO BOX 1327, Manchester, NH 03105
1.5 Subrecipient Phone # 1.6. Accaunt Number 1.7. Completion Date }.8. Grant Limitation
, 3
02-20-20-201510-5021-0
603-626-4600 72-500575 09/30/2022 1,313,258
1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency 1.10. Siate Agency Telephone Number
Thomas Kaempfer {603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
Including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

I.11. Subrecipient Signature 1 1,12, Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor |
W gz : Z ) Marcia Sink, PresidentVCEO
Subrecipient Signature 2 [f Applicable Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 if Applicable

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of

on . before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the perso [ ed in block 1.12., known to me (t;r
satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. k\(\\‘ hzg }Iged that he/she executed this
document in the capacity indicaied in block 1.12. \~} ;“E"E"" f,,
1.13.1. Signature of Notary Public or hustiee-ofthe-Peare 5§ oo 4 Z

S ¢ oms E g

2 ey, i E

Z % &F §
s Iy g Melay 5 2B
1.13.2. Name & Titlf of Notary Public or-}usluo\-'oﬁho-ﬂuoo- ’/ A S N

”"Immum\\\“

1.14.  State Agency Signat )

W& /k’ T homas Ko&rqoﬁg AdmaAc s retey

1.16. Approvel by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By— Assisiant Attlorney General, On: ~ / /
7akhimena fakhimaldoa 04/13/2020

1.17. Approval by Govemor and Council (if applicable)

1.15. Name & Title of State Agency

By: On: !

2.SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State.of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hereinaRer referred 1o as “the State™), the' Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
“the Subrecipient™), shall perform that work identified and more panticularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as “the Project™).

Rev. 972013 Page 1 of 27 . Subrecipient Initial(s):

Date: w




5.2,
53

54,

55

12

82

83,

9.1,

Rev. 972015

AREA COYERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for hercin. the
Subrecipient shall perform the Project in, end with respect (0. the State of New
Hampshire.

This Agreemnent, and all obligations af the pentics hercunder, shall become
¢ffective on the dotc on the date of approval of 1his Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the Siate of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17). or upon
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1,14 (“the effective date™).
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including ol
repons required by (his Agreemient, shall be completed in [TS enlirety prior to
the date in block 1.7 (hereinafler referred 10 a8 “the Completion Daie™).

GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOQUNT: YOUCHERS: PAYMENT.
The Grant Amount Is identified end more particularly described in EXHIBIT 1,
autzched hercto,
The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIINT B.
In aceordance with the provisions sct forth in EXHIBIT B, gnd in considerstion
of the satisfectory performance of the Project. as determined by the Siate, and os
limited by subparagreph 5.5 of these peneral provisions. the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount.  The State shall withhold from the emount
otherwise payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 (hose sums
requited, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only. and the
complcic poyment (o the Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever nsture,
incurred by the Subrecipient in the performence hercof, and shall be the only.
end the complcte. com ion to the Subrecipicnt for ihe Project. The State
shall have no lisbilitics (o the Subrecipicnt other than the Grant Amount,
Notwithsignding anything in this Agreement o the . and
notwithstanding uncxpected circumstances, in no cvent shall the taial of all
payments outhorized, or actually made, hercunder exceed the Grant limitation
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions.

In connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipiens shall comply
with all siatetes. lnws regulntions, and orders of federal, siate, county, or
municipal awthoritics which shell imposc any obligations or duty upen the
Subrecipient, including the scquisition of eny end all necessary permits,

Between the Effective Date and the dale three (3) years nfter the Completion
Date the Subrecipient shall keep detailed sccounts of all expenses incumed in
conncction  with the Project. including, bwt not limited 1o, costs of
administration, transpontetion. Insurence. telcphone calls, and clerica! malerials
and services. Such accoums shall be supponied by receipts, invaices, bills and
other similar documents. .

Between the EfMcctive Date and the dato three (3) years ofer the Completion
Date. &1 any time during the Subrecipicnt’s normal busincss hours, and as oficn
&s the Stzle shall demand, the Subrecipient sha!l make aveilsble to the State al)
records pertnining 10 maners covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shatll
permit the Siate to sudiL cxamine, and reproduce such records, and o make
sudits of all contracts. invoices. materials, payvolls, records of personnel, data
{as that 1erm is hercinafier defined). and other information relnting to all matters
covered by this Agreement.  As used in this paragraph, ~Subrecipient™ includes
all persons, nzturdl or fictional, affilisted with, controlled by. or under common
ownership with, the entity identificd as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions
The Subrecipient shall, al its own expense, provide all personnel necessary 1o
perform the Project. The Subrecipien warrants thes all personne) engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed
end authorized to perform such Project under all epplicable laws.

The Subeccipicnt shall not hire, and It shall not permit any subcontractor.
subgrantee, or other person, firm or comporation with whom i is engaged in o
combined cffort to perform the Praject, 1o hire eny person who has o contractua)
relationship with the Sizie, or who is o State officer or cmployee., clesied or
gppointcd.

The Grant OfMicer shall be the representative of the State hercunder, In the event
of any dispute hercunder. the inlerpreiation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and higher decision on any dispute, shall be final,

As used in this Agreement, the word “dama™ shall mean &l information and
things devcloped or obtained during the performance of, or acquined of
developed by reason of, this Agreement, including. but not limited to, oll stodics.
reports. fiks. formulsc, surveys. misps. chans, sound mcordings. video
recordings. pictorial acproductions, drewings. analyscs. graphic representations.
compuler programs, comptter printouls, notes, letiers, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
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Beiween the Effcctive Date and the Completion Date the Subeecipient shall
grent (o the Stete. or any person designated by it, unrestricted gooess to ell data
for examination. duplication, publication, transiation, satc, disposal, or for any
other purposc whatsocver.

No data shall be subject to copyright in the United Statcs or any other country by
anyone other then (he Siate, :

On ond after the Effective Date o)l data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the peoperty of the State, and shall be retumed 10 the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for sny reasan,
whichever shall first occur.

The State. ond snyone [t shall designate, shall have unrcstricied authorily to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise usc, In whole or in part, ell data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the Siate hereunder, including.
without limitation, the continugnce of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or cominued appropristion of funds, and in no event shall the
State: be liable for any payments hercunder in ¢xcess of such available or
appropriated funds, In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
State shali have the right to withhold payment unlil such funds become
available, il cver, and shall have the right to terminate this Agreement
immedietcly upon giving the Subsecipicnt natice of such termination.

Any onc or more of the following acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shail
constitute an event of defeult hercunder (hercinafier referred to as “Events of
Default™):

Failure 10 petform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or

Failure to submit any report required hereunder: or

Failure to maintain, or permit secess to, the records required hereunder: or
Failure to perform any of the other covenents and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Deflault the Statc may take any one, or
more, or afl, of the lllowing actions: :

Gilve the Subreciplent 8 written nolice specifying the Evem of Default and
requiting it 10 be remedicd within, in the sbsence of a greater or lesser
specification of fime, thiny (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
Event of Defeult Is not timely remedicd. terminatc this Agreement, effective two
(2) days efter giving the Subrecipiemt notice of termination: and

Give the Subrecipient o written notice specifying the Evem of Defeult and
suspending all payments 1o be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Urant Amount which would olherwise ocerue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the dae of such notice uniil such time as the State
determincs that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid 10 the Subrecipient; and

Sct off egainst any other obligation the State may owe 1o the Subrecipient eny
demages the Stste suffers by rezson of any Event of Default; end

Treal the agroement es beeached and pursuc any of its remedies a1 law or in
cquity, or both.

In the event of eny cerly termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Projct, the Subreciplent shall deliver to the Grant Officer,
nol later than fifteen (135) days afier the dae of 1erminaiion, a report (hereinafter
referred 10 as the ~Termination Report™) describing in detail all Project Work
performed. and the Grant Amount camed. to and including the date of
termination,

In the cvent of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 124 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Terminstion Repont by the State shall entitle
the Subrcciplent (o reecive that portion of the Grant amount carned to and
including the date of wermination.

{n the cvent of Termination under paragrephs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such 8 Termination Report by the State shall in no
cvent relieve the Subreciplent from any and #il lishility for damages sustaincd or
incurred by the Siate as o rosuht of the Subrecipient's breach of its obligations
hereunder,

Notwithsianding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, cither the Statc or,
exeept where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipicnt, may termingte this Agreement withowt cause upen thirty (30) duys
wrilten notlce.

CONFLICT QF INTEREST. No oflicer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the localily or localitics in which the
Project is to be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilitics in the
review or approval of the undentaking or carrying out of such Project. shall
pasticipate in any decision relating (o this Agreement which affects his or her

Subrecipient Initial(s))

Date:
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pmmalimcrmorummatstol‘m eotpmuon pastnership, of association 17.2. The policics duscrided in subparagraph 17.) of this paragrph shall be the

in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary intercsi, direet or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thensof,

SUBRECIPIENT'S RECATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Submucipicnt. its employces, end ony subcomimactor or
subgrentee of the Subrecipient are in !l respects independent conlraciors, and
are neither agents nor cmploycecs of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers. cmployecs, egents. members. subcontractors or subgronices.
shall have suthority to bind the State nor arg they entitled to any of the benefits,
workoen's compensation of cmoluments provided by the Statc 1o it
cmployccs.

" ASSIGNMENT AND SURCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shali not assign,

or otherwise transfor any intcrest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. Nonc of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipicnt other than as set fonth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State,

INDEMMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shell defend. indemnify and hold
harmless the Siae, its officers and employves. from and sgainst any and ol
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employces, and eny and all claims,
liabilities or penallics asseried against the State, its officers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person. on account of. based on, resulting from, arising out
of (or which may be claimed 1o zrise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgranice or other agent of the Subrecipicnt,
Notwithstanding the foregoing. nothing herein contsined shall be deemed to
constiluie 8 waiver of the sovercign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement,

The Subrccipient shall. at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or
shall require any subcontractor, subgrantce or assignec performing Project
work 1o obigin and maimain in force, both for the benefit of the Sitic. the
following insurance:

Sistutory workmen's compensetion end employess lisbility insurance for oll
employces cngaged in the performance of the ijccl. and

Comprehensive public liability insurence against all claims of bodily injuries.
desth or property damage. in smounts not kess than $1,000,000 per occumence
and $2.000.000 eggregate for bodily injury or demth any one incidemt. end
$500.000 for praperty damage in any one incident; ond
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standard form employed in the Siste of New Hampshire, fssued by underwriters
sccepioble to the Siate, ond suthorized to do business in the Sinte of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contein a clausc pmh:hhmg cancellation of
modification of the policy carlicr than ien (10) days sficr writien notice thereol
has been reecived by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No fallure by the State 10 enforce any provisions
hercof afier any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard 1o that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express walver of any Event
of Defauli shall be decrned o waiver of any provisions hereof, No such fallure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the Swaie to enforce cach and i)
of the provisions hercol upon eny further or other defhull on the part of the
Subreeipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party herelo to the other perty shall be deerned 10
have been duly dellvered or given ot the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepald. in o United States Post Office eddressed lo the partics &1 the
addresscs first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived of discharged only
by an instrument in m'illna signed by the parniics hereto and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govemor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, il‘mqu:red or by the sigmns Steic Agency.

This Agreement shall be
construcd in occordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and s
binding upon and inurcs to the benefit of the perties and their respective
suceessors and assignees. The ceplions and contents of the “subject™ blank are
used only a3 a matter of converience, and are not 10 be considered a part of this
Agreement of 10 be used In determining the intend of the partics hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties bereto do not intend (o benefit any third partics
and this Amcmcm shall no1 be construed to confer any such beneflt,

. This Agrcement, which may be exccuted in a number
of counterparts, cach of whlch shai] be deemed on original, constilutes the entire
egreement and understanding between the pantics, and supersedes all prior
sgreemnents and understandings relsting hereto.

SPECIAL_PROVISIONS. The additional provisions se1 forth in Exhibit C
hercto are incorporated as part of this agreement,

Subrecipiem Initial(s)

Date:



EXHIBIT A
-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

. The Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. as Subrecipient shall
receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses
incurred and services provided for Child Advocacy under the Victims of Crime Act Grant
(CFDA 16.575) to include expenses for personnel, benefits, travel, and insurance. The
amount of the subgrant is further specified in Exhibit B, paragraphs 3a and 3b.

. Subrepient shall also receive a subgrant from the DOJ as a result of a competitive bidding
process for funding. This subgrant includes cost incurred and services provided for Child
Advocacy under the Victims of Crime Act Grant (CFDA 16.575) to include legal services
expenses for personnel, benefits, travel, a laptop, printing, advertising, software, program
consultants and insurance. The amount of this subgrant is specified in Exhibit B, ‘
paragraphs 3¢ and 3d. :

. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures -
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifieen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly ectivities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly
repor! is due on April 15% or 15 days afier the close of the first quarier ending on March
31.

. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation should be maintained for at least 3 years after the close of the federal
award.

. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual grant application to the DOJ for
review and compliance.

. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

Page 4 of 27 .
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7. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice
Grants Management Unit
33 Capitol Street
Concord, NH 03301
603-271-7820 or Tanya.pitman@doj.nh.gov

Page § of 27 ' W
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EXHIBITB
-METHOD OF PAYMENT-

I. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ’s
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient’s account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State’s obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $565,347.00 of
the total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/20,
whichever is later to 06/30/21, with approved expenditure reports. This shall be
contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $565,347.00 of the
total Grant Limitation from 07/01/21 to 06/30/22, with approved expenditure
reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program
performance. S

3c. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $104,062.00 of
the total Grant Limitation from Govemor and Council approval or 07/01/20,
whichever is later to 06/30/21, with approved expenditure reports. This shall be
contingent on continued federal funding and program performance

3d. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $78,502.00 of the
total Grant Limitation from 07/01/21 10 06/30/22, with approved expenditure
reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program
performance.

4. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient may apply for
up to three-months grant extension for each subgrant. The Subrecipient must submit the
request in writing. No extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

Page 6 0f 27
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5. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred
under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, nor afier 06/30/22 or
9/30/22 if an extension is approved.

6. The Subrecipient expenditure report provided for one subgrant cannot be used for another

subgrant. The DOJ will provide the Subrecipient with an expenditure report for each
subgrant upon award of the subgrant,

b
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EXHIBIT C
-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the Special Conditions, which are subject to annual review.

Page 8 of 27 W
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EXHIBIT C
2018-V2-GX-0036

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false
statements
The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance
with any certifications or assurances submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that
relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material requirement of
this award. ,
Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements -- whether a
condition set out in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, ora
certification or assurance related to conduct during the award period --may result in
the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") taking appropriate action with respect to the
recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may withhold award funds,
disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. The Department of Justice
("DOJ"), including OJP, also may take other legal action as appropriate.
Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government
related to this award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or
34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C,
3729-3730 and 3801-3812).
Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or
unenforceable by its terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited
construction so:as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be
deemned severable from this award.

2. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements-
The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800
(together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2018 award from
OJP. ‘

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26,
2014, If this FY 2018 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under
the same award number (e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the
Part 200 Uniform Requirements apply with respect to all funds under that award
number ,

(regardless of the award date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial
award or a supplemental award) that are obligated on or after the acceptance date of
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EXHIBIT C

this FY 2018 award..
For more information‘and resources on'the, Part. 200: Uniform Requirements as:they:
rélate:10.OJP awards'and subawards ("Subgrants™), see: the QJP websiterdt ‘

.hum //om govlfundm |art700Umfnrch uifcments: hun

Record retention and-access: Recordspertinent to the award that the: rec:plent (and
any subrecipient ("subgrantee”) at any: ticr). must-retain.<-typically, for a.period of'3
ycars from lhc datc of submlssmn ol'the f'nal ewpend:turc rcport (SF 425), unlcss i

("subgramcc") at any ucr) must provide access, mcludc pcrformancc measurcment
information, in-addition to“the financial records, supporlm[, documents, statistical
records,-and other pertinent records indicated.at 2 C:F.R.'200.333.

In the évent that an dward-rélated question arises from docunients or other.magerials
preparcd ordistributed. by OJP that may appear-to-conflict with,-or differ/in some
way frbm, the:provisions of the Pari 200'Uniform Requirements, the.recipientisito
contact OIP promptly for¢larification:

Compliance with DOJ.Financial Guide.

Referencés to'thé DOJ Grants Financial Guide are:to'the: DOJ, Grants,Einancial Guide:
-as posted.on the QJP-website (currently, the "DQJ Grants Financial Guide"-available:
at hitps://ojp.gov/financialguide/DONindex. htm),-including:any updaied version:that:
may be: ‘posted; durm;, the period ot"pcrf'onnancc The: subrcclptcnl agrees 10" compl);
with-tfie DOJ'GrantsFinaneial Guide.

. Reclassification-of various:statutory:provisions 1o neW Title 34-0f the Uniited:States
Code:

On September 1,.2017,.various statutery provisions previously codified elsewhere in:

theiU.S. Codé were Lduonally reclassified 16:a-hew Titléi34, entitled "Ciime Coritrol

and Law.Enforcement.” The reclassification.encompassed a nuniber of. statutory

provisioiis, pertirient to OJP-awards (that is, QJP grants and coopcratlve dagrecments),

including many provisions, prcvlously codified’in Title:42-of the. U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference inthis award documenitto-a
statutory: provision.that has been reclassificd 10 the new Title 34°of the:U'S. "Cade:is
1o be rcad as;areference o thm ‘statutdry provision as- reclassnﬁed to Title 34. ThlS
rule:of construction. spccnl' cally includes-references set.out in. awnrdfcondltlons
‘Feferehices;set-out inmaterial incorporatéd by réference.1hrough dward. conditions;
and references set out ini other award: requirements.

Requi réments rélatea?lb‘ "de minimis".indirecl costtale ,
A recipient:that is eligible under-the’Part.200 Uniform.Requirements;and:othgr
Page 10 of 27.
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EXHIBIT ¢

applicable law to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R.
200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis” indirect cost rate, must advise OJP
in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated
requirements in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis” rate may be
applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined '
by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable
information (PII)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient” at any tier) must have written procedures in
place to respond in the event of an actual or imminent "breach” (OMB M-17-12) if it
(or a subrecipient)-- 1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains,
disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable information (PII)" (2
CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or 2) uses
or operates a "Federal information system” (OMB Circular A-130). The recipient's
breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of
PII to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an
actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

. All subawards (“subgrants™) must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee”) at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to
agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements — OJP
considers e "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement

“contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the
OJP web site at

https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Subaward Authorization.htm (Award condition: All
subawards {"subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are
incorporated by reference here.

. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed $250,000. The Subrecipient at any tier, must
comply with all applicable requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a
noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Thresheld (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to
agreements that - for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP
considers a procurement "contract” (and therefore does not consider a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval 1o use a noncompetitive approach in
a procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award

condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract (if contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by

reference here.
Page 11 0f27 W
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13.

EXHIBIT?Q

Requiremients: pertdining 10- 'p‘rohibitcd conduct rclated to/trafficking inspersons
(mcludmg reporting requirements and. QJP authority to.terminaie award) The
recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantec™) at any tier, must comply with:all’
applicable:requirements (including:requircments to report allegations) pertaining:to
prOhlbllCd conduct.related.tg the trafficking of persons, whither-on'the part-of
rccnpncms subrccuplcnts( :,ubg,rantccs ) or mdmduals del"ncd (for purposes OfIhIS
rcc1pienl s. obhgauons rclaled 10 prohlblled conducl related to traff‘ ckmg in: pcrsons
are posted.on:ithe QJP wéb'site at_htip: lojp: gov/fundng\plorefProhlblledCOnducl-
Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients-dnd
subrecipients related 10'trafficking in persons (mcludmg, reporting requirements-and
QJP authority to terminaie award)), and are incorporated by:-reference here.

. Comphance with- appllcablc rulcs rcg,ardmg approval, plannmg,, and: repomng of:

¢onferences; meetings, trainings, and olhcr events,

The: subg,ranlcc at any tiér, must comply with ail uppllcab]c laws, regulations, pohmes
and official DOJ guidance! (moludmyspemﬁc cost.limits,.prior-approval-and reporlmg;
réquiréments;” “Where<@pplicable) L,ovcrmng the use of fedcral flinds’for. ¢ expenses
relaied.to conférences:(as that: term is defined by: DOJ) mcludmg the provision; of Tood:
and/of, beverdges at such: conferences; and costs of aticndarice at: such.conferences.
Information on:the pcmnent DOJ:definition’of conferencesand the fules apphcab]e to
thiis-award.appears in the DOJ Grants'Financial Guide (currently; as'section 3.10°0f"
"Post-award Réquireménts” if the "2015°DOJ Grints: Financial Guide"):

Requirement-for-data on performance:and effectiveness:under the:award

the récipient must éolléct dnd maifitain’ dala that me@asuie the! perfon'nance and ,
éffectiveness.ofactivitics under this-award. The data must be provided-to OJPinihe

manner. (including - wnlhln the timeframes) specified by OJP. in the prograni solicitation:

or othier-applicable wiitten. guidance.-Data.collection. supports.compliance with the

Government Performance and Results Agt: (GPRA) and the:GPRA Modemization. Act

6f201.0;.and other: qpphcable Taws:

. OJP Training Guiding:Principles

Any traifing o training.materials that the:recipient:-- or any subrecipient
(“subgrantee") at.any tier :- develops-or delivers with.OJP award funds.must adhere:
to the OJP Training; Gu1dmg Principles’ for Granlees and Subgrantces avallablc at

Compliance with-DOJ regulalions;pertaining!to civil rights:and wondiscrimination —
28:C.IF.R. Part-42 '

The; rec1p1enl .and any subrccaplent (subgrantec "} at:any tier,' must comply with all
applicable:requiremenis,of 28 C.F.R. Part:42,specifically including any appllcable

I’ng‘cfh of 27
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15.

16.

EXHIBITC

requirements in subpart E of 29 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employmcnt
opportunity program.

Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination -
28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee™) at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on
the basis of sex in certain "education programs.”

Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination —
28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee™) at any tier, must comply with alf
applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38, specifically including any applicable
requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective
program bencficiaries. Part 38 of 28 C.F.R., a DOJ regulation, was amended
effective May 4, 2016.

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of
discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious
belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out
rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee")
organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules
and requirements that pertain to recipients and subrecipients that are faith-based or
religious organizations.

The text of the regulation, now entitled "Partnerships with Faith-Based and Other
Neighborhood Organizations,” is available via the Electronic Code of Federal
Regulations (currently accessible at https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-
bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter
1, Part 38, under e-CFR "current” data.

Restrictions on “lobbying”

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used
by the subrecipient at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the

- enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any

level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable
federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred
by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to

Page 13 of 27
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17.

EXHIBIT C

influence) a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or
employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of federal grant or cooperative
agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract , or loan with respect to actions such as
renewing, extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352, Certain
exceptions to this law, including exception that applies to Indian Tribes and tribal
Organizations.

Should any questions arise to whether a particular use of funds by a recipient (or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is
to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written
approval of QJP.

The Subrecipient assures that no federal VOCA funds or match funds have been paid
or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of congress in
connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of
any Federal grant or cooperative agreement. If any funds other than Federal
appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting toinfluence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall
complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities,” in
accordance with its instructions.

Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds
(FY 2018)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations
statutes. Pertinent restrictions, including from various "general provisions” in the
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2018, are set out at
hitps://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY 1 8 AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient
(or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law
restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without
the express prior written approval of OJP.

Reporting potential fraud, waste and abuse and similar misconduct.

The recipient and any subrecipients ("subgrantees™) must promptly refer to the DOJ
Office of the Inspector General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal,
employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in

Page 14 of 27
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connection with funds under this award -- (1) submitted a claim that violates the
False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to
fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this
award should be reported to the OIG by-- (1) mail directed to: Office of the Inspector
General, U.S. Department of Justice, Investigations Division, 1425 New York
Avenue, N.W. Suite 7100, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (2) the DOJ OIG hotline:
(contact information in English and Spanish) at (800) 869-4499 (phone) or (202)
616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at
https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related
matters.
no Subrecipient under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor
to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise
restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of
waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information. The foregoing is not
intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award; to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or
any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure
of classified information.

a. In accepting this award, the recipient—

i.  represents that it neither requires nor has required intemnal
confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or
contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict
(or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from
reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

ii.  certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been
requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or
statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to
prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as
described above, it will immediately stop any further-obligations
of award funds, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to
do so by that agency.

b. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards
("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or both--
i. it represents that— it has determined that no other entity

Page 15 0f 27
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EXHIBIT C

that the recipient's application proposes may or will
receive award funds (whether through a subaward
("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under
a procurement contract) either requires or has required
internal confidentiality agreements or statements from
employees or contractors that currently prohibit or
otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and
ii. it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an
adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and
¢. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds under this award
is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud. or abuse as described
above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds
10 or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so
by that agency.

20. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to

21,

employees)

The subrecipient at any tier must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable
provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the
employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal
grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant,
a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule,
or regulation related to a federal grant.

The subrecipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the
predominant native language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies
under 41 U.S.C. 4712,

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 10
this award, the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) for guidance.

Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text
Messaging While Driving,” 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages
recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning

employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of
Page 16 of 27 _ M
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EXHIBIT C

performing work funded by this award, and to establish workplace safety policies
and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease crashes caused by
distracted drivers.

The subrecipient authorizes Office for Victims of Crime (OVC) and/or the Office of
the Chief Financial Officer (OCFO), the New Hampshire Department of Justice
(NHDOJ) and its representatives, access to and the right to examine all records,
books, paper or documents related to the VOCA grant.

VOCA Requirements :

The recipient assures that the State and its subrecipients will comply with the

conditions of the Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) of 1984, sections 1404(a)(2),

and 1404(b)(1) and (2), 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2) and (b)(1) and (2) (and the

applicable program guidelines and regulations), as required. Specifically, the

State certifies that funds under this award will:

a) be awarded only to eligible victim assistance organizations, 34 U.S.C.
20103(a)(2); ,

b) not be used to supplant State and local public funds that would otherwise be
available for crime victim assistance, 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2); and

¢) be allocated in accordance with program guidelines or regulations
implementing 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2)(A) and 34 U.S.C. 20103(a)(2)}(B) to, at
a minimum, assist victims in the following categories: sexual assault, child
abuse, domestic violence, and underserved victims of violent crimes as
identified by the State.

Demographic Data

The recipient assures that its subrecipients will collect and maintain information on
race, sex, national origin, age, and disability of victims receiving assistance, where
such information is voluntarily furnished by the victim.

Discrimination Findings

The recipient assures that in the event that a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due process hearing
on the ground of race, religion, nalional origin, sex, or disability against a recipient of
victim assistance formula funds under this award, the recipient will forward a copy of
the findings to the Office for Civil Rights of OJP.

The recipient understands that all OJP awards are subject to the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA, 42 U.S.C. section 4321 et seq.) and other related
Federal laws (including the National Historic Preservation Act), if applicable. The
recipient agrees to assist OJP in carrying out its responsibilities under NEPA and
related laws, if the recipient plans to use VOCA funds (directly or through subaward
or contract) to undertake any activity that triggers these requirements, such as

Page 17 of 27
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EXHIBIT C

renovation or construction. (See 28 C.F.R. Part 61, App. D.) The recipient also

agrees to comply with alt Federal, State, and local environmental laws and
regulations applicable to the development and implementation of the activities to be
funded under this award.

27. The recipient agrees to submit (and, as necessary, require sub-recipients to submit)
quarterly performance reports on the performance metrics identified by OVC, and in
the manner required by OVC. This information on the activities supported by the
award funding will assist in assessing the effects that VOCA Victim Assistance funds
have had on services to crime victims within the jurisdiction.

28. If Primary Award Exceeds $500,000 - Recipient integrity and performance matters:
Requirement to report information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative
proceedings to SAM and FAPIIS
The subrecipient must comply with any and all applicable requirements regarding

reporting of information on civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings connected
with (or connected to the performance of) either this OJP award or any other grant,
cooperative agreement, or procurement contract from the federal government. Under
certain circumstances, recipients of OJP awards are required to report information
about such proceedings, through the federal System for Award Management (known
as "SAM"), to the designated federal integrity and performance system (currently,
"FAPIIS").

The details of recipient obligations regarding the required reporting (and updating) of
information on certain civil, criminal, and administrative proceedings to the federal
designated integrity and performance system (currently, "FAPIIS™) within SAM are
posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/FAPIIS.htm (Award condition:
Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, including Recipient Reporting to
FAPIIS), and are incorporated by reference here.

29. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on
the grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in
future years, .

30. Any publications (written, visual or sound), whether published through Federal grant

funds or matching funds. shall contain the following statements: “This project was
supported by (2018-V2-GX-0036) awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime, Office
of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view in this document are
those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of

the U.S. Department of Justice.”
Page 18 of 27 '
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EXHIBIT C

31. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDQYJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work
on or be billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee
directly managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without
the express approval of the NH DOJ.

32. The Subrecipient must utilize volunteers to assist in providing VOCA allowable victim
services unless extenuating circumstances justify the exclusion of volunteers, and a
volunteer waiver is obtained from the NHDOJ.

33. The Subrecipient agrees to assist victims in applying for Victims Compensation benefits.

Such assistance includes: identi fying eligible victims; making reasonable efforts to notify
cligible victims of the availability of compensation; making reasonable efforts to explain
the program to victims; offering to assist victims with the application process when it is
reasonable 1o do so.

34, The Subrecipient understands that VOCA non-allowable personnel activities include:
general administration, prevention, active investigation and prosecution of criminal
activities, research and studies, lobbying, capital expenses, compensation for victims of
crime and fundraising.

35. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims
unless a program income waiver is obtained from the NHDO). [f permission to
generate program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a
sliding scale that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on
grant allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

36. Equipment purchased with VOCA funds shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the
agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost,
percentage of federal VOCA funds, and location. The Subrecipient agrees that the title
to any equipment purchased with VOCA funds will revert back to the NHDOJ, Grants
Management Unit, when it is no longer being used for the VOCA program purposes
for which it was acquired.

37. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it be
an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and
any associated management letters to the NHDOJ, Grants Management Unit. The Single
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Audit report must be submitted to the Grants:Management Unit within'9 months:after the:
subrecipient's yearzend or one month-afler-theissuance of the audil.

Sub-Recipients of federal funding from the NHDOJ aré required to comply with all
federal regulations that-relate to.non-discrimination. These requirements are specified
in United States Code of Federal Regulation Title 28, sections 35, 38,'42:and 54..
Individuals who believe they may ‘have been. discriminated against by the NHDOJ or
by-an orgamzauon that.receives federal ﬁmdmg from the NHDOJ based on (heir race,
¢olor, national origin, religion, sex, disabitity, age, sexusl ‘orientation or genderidéntity
should print and compléte a Discrimindtion Complaint Form found at

hitps: //www’dm nh. uovfﬂrants-managcmen'l/mv1l nghts him.

[ B 3 e ——r—

The subgrantee, if a non-profit-organization, agrees to'make’its-financial statements.
available onling: {(either.onithe- subg,rantce s-website,sor the NHDOJ"s, 70 ancther
publicly, avmhblc wcbsnlc) Otgarizations thar havc chcral SOT (¢)'3-14ix. status Arg
Sorisidered iy conipliaiiée viith ihis requireifienty Withiilo furheraction igéded:to lié:
extent that such organization files IRS'Form 990:or similar tax dogument (¢.g., 990-
EZ). as several sources already:provide searchable online databases of.such finanéial
statements.

The subgrantee,iif a*hon-profit Grganization; must cénify eirnan-profitstatisby
subritting a statement to NHDOJ: 1) affirmativély asserting that the'récipicnt i5-a, -
profit organization and 2) indicating that the subgraniee has on file and available upon:
audit one of the following:

. A copy of the organization’s 501 () 3 designation letter, or:

. A letter fronvthe State of NH stating that the subgrantee is.a non=profit
Grgdhizalion opetating within. the'state; or:

‘ A:EBpY of the siib-graritee s:staté certificate of i mcorporauon ‘tiat substamlates

its:non+profit status.: ~
Subgrantees-thatare: local non-profit-affiliates of state or:national non-profits should
also have a'statement by the parent organization that the subgrantee is a-local-non-

profit.affiliatc.

Certification:Regarding EEOP Requircd:

Ifrequnrcd -within.30: days from the:date-of.the award ‘lhe Subrcmp;enl -will:submit:for-
approval -t adeéptable:Equal Employment Opporwiity Plan, (LLOP) ast reqmred by*28
CFR42:301 ot scq..or-a'Certification Forme1o both the NH DOJ and’the:Office of,Civil
Rights, Office of Justice Programs; US DOJ-at 810 7th Slrccl NW, Washmgton DE
20531. Failure, lo submiit an approved EEOP or Certification is a-violation of the: Progmm
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EXHIBIT C

Guidelines and Conditions and may: resultiinssugpension-or.ierminationiof” iundmg, until
such time as;the.Subrécipient is in compl:ancc ‘The'EEOP reporting:teal .and
instructions can be found at:: _h_tm.//om 20v/nboul/ocr/fag ecop.hiiv,

42. Compensation {orindividual consultant.sérvicesis to.be reasonable arid consistent-with:
that paid for-similar services iivthe. marketplace. The current consulfant limitis'$650, per
day'or $81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for'an 8-hour: day,‘oras
proportionate hourly-rate (excludingtravel and:subsistence costs) .a.written: prior
approval is. rcquucd frém QVC, Priot approval. requests réquire- addmonal Justlf'cauon

1 have:read and undérstand all 42 special provisions:contained in this docunent:

Maecin Sive. Fresweor /r oo

3d Title

- Namgr

)h‘orucd Representative

' '_‘S'i_gna_tq're.-
(st 51 N4

Nameand Address.of Agency
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EXHIBIT D.

EEOP Reporting

L. A/L‘l-ﬁ@;’ﬂc SNUL [resporisible official), certify that

CASA of Nt [Fecipieni] has-¢ompléted the EEO:reportingtool.
‘certification

ov/about/ser/ g éeo

And 'iha; '/_-Mﬂf“&f\'ﬁ -g;‘rUL/. - [respansibie official] has completed the
EEOP C herstive Du hacme

form at: httpsi/foip:

raining al https:/foip:gov/aboiitiott/ocr-training-videasividén eer-tratning: At on>
/4;0@/4, " A030 fdate]
Ffurther certify. that: i h : . L .

CHSA 5) New tHampshoe  epismiil coniply
with applicable:federal civil_rights.laws that.prohibit discrimination in'employment and:in‘the:
delivery of services.,

.Sigﬂﬁlqrq_:WW%@ Date: "5/5/30 a@

1
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EXHIBIT E

‘Non-supplanting Certification

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be. used to supplement existing funds for program acfivitiesiand must,not
replace those funds. that have been appropriated for the:same purpose. Supplanting:shall. be-the.
subject-of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monilorin‘g and audit. If.
there is a poteritial presence of supplanting, the.applicant or grantee will be requu'ed to supply
documentation “demonstrating thal the reduétion in nion-Federal resources occurred for reasons
-otherithan ‘ihe TecEipt or expected réceipt of Federal funds.. For -certain programs; :a wntlenj
certification may be requésied by ‘the:awarding ageiicy or récipient -agency -stafing that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local

funds will- not be used to supplant State or local. finds, See the QJP Financial Guide (Part. 1,
:Chapter 3y

Supplanting and job réténtion

A.grantee'may use federal funds to retain jobs that, withoui the-use.of the federal.moriey, would.
‘be, lost. If the grantee is planning:on:.using federal funds to-retain.jobs, it:must be ableto.
substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can:be, but is:not
limited to, one of the following:forms: an official memorandum, official minutes 'of'a'counly or
municipal board: meclmg or any ‘docuriientation, that is-usual and: customarily produced when
iiaking determinations about employment. The docuificitation. miust describe the terminated
‘positions:and that the-termination i$-because of lack of thé availability of State.or local funds.

“The: C" ASA 5?3/\}3% HiﬂDSf‘l (A pplicant) cetifies that anyfurids.awatded
through grant number ___2018- VZ-G)\ 0036. shall’be.used -‘IO.S}_l_pplgmt_fl]l,CX!_Slihg;

funds. for program.activities and“will ot replace’(supplant)nonfederal funds that'have been
nppr,gpriziled. for the- purposes.andgoals of the-grant.
The: C‘l’ﬂ—Sﬂ of NawHamPZﬁ(f& (Applicini indeeandg it it sglantifg

funds: under ‘lhl$ program,.suspension’or d;cb_armem_.from:federal grants; rccoupmcm;kof monies

provided underthis.grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name:and Title: /Mﬂ(‘m gmlL \Pff‘r?ﬂcla_m‘{’ /C eo
Signature:; (\ LU W/@
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EXHIBIT.F

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE.
REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations citcd below td:deterniine the:¢ertification:to,whichthiey’
are‘required tonattest. Applncams should dlso reviewsthie instructions for:certification: mcluded in:
‘the; reguhuons beforefcompletmylhts form. The certifications shall be;treated.as a:material.
représertation of fact. upon whichirélidnce: will be; placed whén‘thg:U:S; Department; olistice
(*Departmeni™) defermines.to.award the:covered transaction, grant,.or. coopcratwc agreement.

1. LOBBYING,

As required by, 31 U.S.C. § 1352, asimplemented by 28.C.F.R.,Part §9, the:Applicant:certifies,
and-assures {10 the-extént uppllcable) thie” I'ollowmg

{(a) No Federal’ appropriated funds have been-paid-or will'be paid, by,oron. behalfiof the
Applicant, 16'any person for'influencingor. atiempting w:infuencéan officcror-cmployce:of any
agency, a Member of Congress an officer.or employee. of Congress ‘or an employee of ;
Member: ofCongress in connection; with-the: makmg of any Federal grant, ihesentering into:of
any. coopcralwc agréément, or the éxtension;.continuation, rericwal, amcndmenl or modx['cauon
,of any Federal.grant or coopcralwe agreement;

(b) if thie Applicant’s request for Federal.furids is-in excess of $100,000,.and any funds other-
than Federal appropriaied funds have been paid or will be pmd to any person for influencing.or
attempting to influénce an 6fficer-or eniployce-of any ageicy, a mémber of Congress, an. officer
or employee of" Cong,rcss or an cmployce of.a. memberof Cong,rcss in.connection:with.tHis
‘Féderal-gran or- ‘cooperative, agreement, the Applicant shall-compléte-dnd subiilitSlandard Fori
--LLL, “Dis¢losuic owaObbymg Activities” in accordarice with:its (and any- .DOJ awardlng
agency ’s) instructions; -and

{c) The Appllcam‘shall require lhat the language of this.certification‘be.included in thé-dward
documents for all subgrants and procirement. contracts (and their subcontrdcts) funded: with
chcral award fi unds and shall ‘ensure thahany cernﬁcallons or'lobbym;, dlsclosures requlred -of:

-ﬁlcd m accordance wuh 31 U S.C.- “ 1352.
2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION;, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS.

Page 240127 _
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EXHIBIT ¥

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier “covered transaction.” as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—

(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntanly excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals’) present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or defeult.

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application. Where the Applicant or any of its principals was
convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov;
for OVW Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Applicant is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative
remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner
pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpald tax liability (or

liabilities) to the Department (for OJP
Subrecipient Initials
Date %@O

Page 25 of 27



EXHIBIT F

Applicants, to OJP at Qjpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:

A. The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;
(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free wopkplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse: violations occurring in the
workplace; .

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (&) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee’s conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

Page 26 of 27 W\
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EXHIBIT F

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rchabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b}, (c), (d), (), and (f).

If you ere unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

| /Mam‘qg cnll _?7re9dm;l-/ CED

Name and Title of Head Aggncy
W&a@;@ /f/é/a,o;w

Signature Date /
Cpca a3 New HampShire  Po. Box 1337
Name and Address of Agency / 3z 58le dé& Alvre
/f/lcw chovter N
03165 _
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State of New Hampshire:

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. Williani'M. Gardniér, Secretary of State of the Siate.of New Hampshire:.do-hercby centify; ihal COURT APPOINTED. -
SPECIAL ADVOCATES'OF NEW [TAMPSHIRE, INC..i3.a Néw Hampshire Nonprofit Corpotaiion:régistercd

to-transact business-inNew Hampshireion April 19,1989 T furthcr éénifytharal) fees.ind docunicdts' requirdd By tic:Seeréiliry 51

Siaté’s office have been.reccived'and is’in:good stendinig s far ds this officc.is cofiéemed.,

Biisiness:ID; 140761
Céntificate Niniber: 0004885342

v pow s o o it

IN.TESTIMONY WHEREOF,,
I:HieFét sct iy, hinuHrid catise 40 afMixed .
the Seil‘6f.ihe State of-Néw, Hampshire;

WKi§ Guk ay, Gr: April:A-D:2020;

"Willigm M Gardner

‘Secrctary of Sate,
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

CASAOFN-01 DBRUINOOG
DATE {MWDO/YYYY)

3/30/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THllS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provislons or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policles may require an endorsemant. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lleu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, LLC.
11 Concord Stroet
Nashua, NH 03064

CcT
| eV, Exy: {803) 882-2766

[ FA% no:(603) 886-4230

NAIC®
23850

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE
msurer A : Phlladelphia Insurance Company

INSURED

CASA of NM, INC
PO BOX 1327
Manchester, NH 03105

msurer B : Wesco Insurance Company

INSURERC :

INSURER D ;

INSURERE :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

N TYPE OF INSURANCE ATy POLICY NUMBER AT | AN ) LMITS
A | X | COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
| cLamsmaoe [ X] ocour PHPK2005180 71112019 | 7/1/2020 | BAMAGE TORENTED s 300,000
| MED EXP [Any ona parson) | § 20,000
] PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 3 1,000,000
EN'. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 3 2,000,000
| X | poricy D & Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
OTHER: 3
A" | automosie LBy [CoMBREDSGE TR [ 1,000,000
|| anv auTo PHPK2005180 7/1i1201%8 7/1/2020 | pODILY INJURY (Per person)_| 3
OWNED SCHEDULED
|| AUTosonLy AUTGS BODILY INJURY (Par scckient} | $
| X | RIS onwy ROPRONEY | PN AMAGE s
3
A | X |umsreLatue | X | occur | EACH OCCURRENCE s
EXCESS LIAR CLAIMS-MADE PHPK2005180 7/17/2019 7M12020 AGGREGATE $
oeo | | mevenTions $
PER TH-
B |wonKens coMnENSATION X|Singe | IR
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE @ WWC3421944 TNI2019 | TII2020 | .\ cocnaceipenT 3 500,000
BLH E&fuﬁua;r EXCLUDED? NIA 500,000
ry In NH) £.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § '
If yos, describe under 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF QPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § '

DESCRIPTION OF GPERATIONS { LOCATIONS / VEKICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached il mors space Is required)
VOCA Grant - Covering operations of the Named Insured during the policy perl

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH Department of Justice

33 Capital St
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WiTH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registerad marks of ACORD



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

I, Amy Coveno, hereby certify that | am the duly elected Chair of the Boord of
Directors of Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA) of New Hampshire. | hereby
certify the following is a true copy of a vote taken electronically by the Board of
Directors/shareholders, duly called and held on April 6, 2020 at which a quorum of the
Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Marcia Sink is President/CEO of Court Appointed Special Advocates
of New Hampshire, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of
New Hampshire with principle offices located ot 138 Coolidge Street, Unit 1,
Manchester New Hampshire (CASA-NH”). Ms. Marcio Sink is duly authorized to
enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of CASA of New Hampshire with the
State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and is further
authorized to execute any documents which may in her judgment be desirable or
necessary to effect the purpose of the vote.

) hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in
full force and effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. |
further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this
certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position’
indicated and she has full guthority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are
{imits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Tﬁe undersigned is the duly authorized Chair of CASA-NH.

COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, Inc.

By: Q&:WD' April 6, 2020
Amy Covend) Chbir



CASA of NH Board of Directors — 2019/2020

Amy Coveno'= Chalrman
WMURTV, ABC 9

Thomas Buchman-Treasurcr
-Derry Madical Center

John 2ahr - Secretary
GYK-Antler

Evelvn Alssa:
Reachlng Higher New Hampshire inc.

Elien.Arnold

ludv Bergeron
"MTS Services

Adele Boi:ffnn_! Baker

Michael Burns, .
‘Anthem BlueCross and BlueShield

‘Susan Chollet

‘Pat Clancey
Pat'Clanccy Reaity

“David €by
Devine Millimet.

Nlck Glncoumakls

New England Investmenk 8 Retirament’ Group, Inc.

"Chief. David.Goldstaln’
F'r'arikl!ﬁ,"NH‘Poiié"e"DEi;iartmh‘rit

Terry Helnzmann

Ellen Keenig:

"New’ Hampshlre Women' s Foundation &

NonProfit Consuh:ant
Bryan Lord’

New'Vénture AdvisarsLLE
Alan, Rclschc

Sheehan, Phinnev
Kathieen Thamas

NewDay Selutions:,

Marcia (Marty) Sink--Prosident/CEO
CASA of NH

Botsy 'Pdina- Staff Attérnoy
CASA of NH.

,CASA Contact.Information’

138 Coolidge Avanuo
Manchostor, NH 03102

Toll-freé tolophonc :800-626-0622
603 626-4600 n 603 623 6362

Wo.b,:!tv m.ss.*snh.o,:sr



Top 5 Key Personnel

CASA of NH
2020-2021
|
Name Job title ! Salary
Marcia Sink President/CEO { $110,083.00
Elizabeth Paine Staff Attomey | $75,075.00
Bemadette Melton-Pla Senior Prcgram Manager | $67,000.00
Diane M. Valladares |State Wide Training & Recruitment Director : $62,000.00
Jonelle Gaffney Senior Program Manager $55,697.00

$369,855.00



..
Accomplishments
President of Family Support New Hampshire
SPARK NH Council Member - Vice Chair
Wellness and Primary Prevention Council
Positive Solutions for Families Trainer
Presenter at 2013 & 2017 Strengthening Families Summit

PIC Parent Advocate
National Child Passenger Safety Technician

Experience
Program Manager ' August 2018 to Present
CASA of New Hampshire Manchester, NH

¢ Supervise CASA GALs

Review and approve court reports

Represent CASA'in court

Plan and facilitate support groups for advocates
Assist in-facilitating new CASA training

Work in the child’s best interest

Family Support Service Coordinator _ Jan 2012 to August 2018
Easter Seals Child Development & Family Resource Center Manchester, NH
» Consults with Department of Health and Human Services, school personal, medical
providers, and other local agencies to assist families in utilizing existing services and
minimizing duplication.
s Acts as an advocate for and assists families in gaining services.
Coordinates parent education, adult education, and other classés as needed.
Evaluates, plans, designs, organizes, and directs program activities, either directly or
through subordinates to meet the needs of the families served.
« Collaborate with other organizations to further the mission of the agency.

Lead Preschool Teacher Sep 2008 to Dec 2011
Visiting Nurses Association _ Manchester, NH
¢ Created and implemented developmentally-appropriate curriculum that addresses all
learning styles.

« Promoted good behavior by using positive behavior interventions and supports method.

» Organized activities that developed children’s physical, emotional, and social growth,

» Worked closely with center director, family support service coordinator, classroom
teaching teams and other specialist.

Physical & Health Educattion Teacher Aug 2006 to Jun 2008
Bishop Brady High School Concord, NH

o Designs physical education and health curriculum in conjunction with department
head.

¢ Maintained up-to-date lesson plans, and scope and sequence for all courses.

+ Established positive relationships with students, parents, colleagues, and
administrators.

Erin Boylan-Resume



L

+ Kept accurate records of student performance, maintaining a confidentiality of
student records and information at atl times.
+ Drafted letters of recommendation for students’ college applications.

Paraprofessional Dec 2005 to Jun 2006
Kimball School - Concord, NH
» Worked with special education staff and classroom teachers to implement and
evaluate instructional programs and individual student progress.
Conducted small group and individual classroom activities based on differentiated learning levels.

Kindergarten Teacher Aug 2002 to Aug 2005
The Learning Center at Concord Hospital Concord, NH
» Used a variety of activities and instructional methods (songs, stories, medla
structured games, art, outdoor activities etc.) to motivate and stimulate children’s
abilities
» Fosters cooperative social behavior through games and group projects to assist children in forming
satisfying relationships with other children and adults.
s Observed and evaluated children’s performance, behavior, social development, and
physical health.
» Provided a variety of materials and resources for children to explore, mampulate, and
use, both in learning activities and in imaginative play.

Education
MS, Sports Administration ) 2012
" Southemn New Hampshire University - Manchester, NH
Sports Administration
BS, Elementary Education 2002

Elmira College - Elmira, NY
Elementary Education -

Additional Work Experience

Assistant Cheerleading Coach 2014 -2016
Southern New Hampshire University - Manchester, NH

Head Cheerleading Coach 2009 - 2013
Plymouth State University - Plymouth, NH

Head Cheerleading Coach 2002 - 2008
Bishop Brady High School - Concord, NH

Certifications

NH Early Childhood and Family Mental Health Intermediate Credential
NH Early Childhood Teacher Level 3 ,
New York State Provisional Teacher Certification

Erin Boylan-Resume
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FPumeln M, Carbee
o ]

SKILLS

Non-profit Management
Grant Manggement
Fundraising

Project Management
Recruitment & Retention
Public Speaking & Quireach
Presentation & Curriculum
Development

Social Media & Web Updates
Inter-Agency Relations
Research, Writing & Editing
Independent & Team Oriented

EDUCATION

Southern NH University

Graduate Certificate - Community
Mental Health and Substance Abuse
Services for Children, Youth, & Fomilies
Courses:

Human Cevelopment &
Research Methodology
Counseling & Guidance with
Children )

Mental Health Group Counseling
& Psychotherapy

Child & Adolescent Counseling
Behavioral Mental Health
Helping Relationships
Community Resources and
Rehabilitation

Diagnosis and Assessment
Clinical Skills | & I: Integrated
Community Mental Health
Treatment for Children, Youth &
Families

Social and Cultural Foundalions,
Career & Lifestyle Development

Granlte State College
BS, Behavioral Science
Courses:

Perspectives of Human
Personality

Fundamentals of the Helping
Process

Educational Psychology

WORK EXPERIENCE
CASA of New Hompshire | Manchester, NH

CASA Program Manager

2019 - Present

Adhere to all policy, protocol and procedures adopted by
CASA of NH, '
Ensure that all court case data and files are accurgie and
up to date, ‘

Act as liaison to court persennel, DCYF and other strategic
partners,

Assist in interviewing & screening advocate applicants.
Coordinate and porticipate in advocate support groups
and in-service trainings.

Provide coaching/supervision and support to advocates.
Maintain current monthly supervision data in CASA
database.

Coordinate case coverage as needed during CASA
absence.

Conduct performance evalugtion of assigned advocates.
Review and edit court reports and ensure that they are
delivered in g timely manner to the court ond dll relevant
parties in the case.

Assist advocates in developing skills o enable them to
discover answers for themselves and improve their
performance.

Southern NH Services | Manchester, NH

Workplace Success Program Coordinator

2017 - 2019
Assisted participants in completing vocational assessments
and developing Career Pathway Plans,

Provided career guidance, educational counseling and
support services as needed to participants.

Delivered programming to assist participants in gaining the
job skills necessary to obtain employment,

Used evidence-based practices including motivational
interviewing to create individudlized career plans based on
participants’ strengths.

Completed casework documentation, extensions and track
participant accomplishments to ensure compliance with
NHEP requirements.

Facilitated and support participants' engagement in the use
of other cormmunity resources while assisting them in
resolving obstacles to participation.

Recruited and maintained relationships with community
partners to provide programming and services with center
staff in-house or via Zoom Trainings. '
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Home Visitor/Family Worker 2016 -2017

« Successfully coordinated all training and meeting logistics, including fegistration,
presentations and handouts. ,

« Reviewed and revised the Media Literacy for Safe & Healthy Choices Cumiculum.,

« Increased organization visibility through social media and marketing campaigns.

« Developed procedure and training manuals to ensure staff expectations are clearin
regards to performance and specific processes 1o be followed.

« Recnited and trained new staff, AmerCorps VISTA's and intemns.

« Coordinate workflow among staff, VISTAs and interns.

« Coordinated and participated in the grant application process including creating
budgets, ensuring funds are spent as allocated in the grant, and generating reports.

» Responsible for purchasing office/training supplies and equipment.

»  Answered queries of stakeholders, media and other organizations regarding the agency’s
policies, maternials, and services,

+ Created and maintained respectful partnerships with families.

¢ Delivered health, educational, nutritional and child growth and development information
to parents via weekly meetings in the family home.

+ Coordinated with parents to ensure that well-child exams, immunizations, health
screenings, and nutrition assessments are complete and necessary follow up occurs.

» Assisted and supported families in locating resources and scheduling appointments with
communlty resources that best meets their needs.

+ Coordinated with community partners to provide appropriate services to the family.

Media Power Youth | Manchester, NH

Administrative Coordinator- Execufive Assistant 2010 - 2015

Managed office operations to ensure efficiency and productivity. Prioritized and delegated tasks,
managed all projects and provided motivation and direction to create a positive work
environment and ensured accurate on-time completion.

NH Coalition Against Domestic& Sexval Violence | Concord, NH
Sexuat Assault Nurse Examiner ([SANE) Program Assistant 2002 - 201!
* Managed office operations to ensure efficiency and productivity,
« Created and distributed infomationat & training brochures, newsletters and other
publications.
e Recruited Nurses for the SANE Program and ensure fhey meet training requirements and
currency of practice.
« Program research and development.
Provided technical assistance in regards to the NH Sexual Assault Evidence Collection Kit
protocol and sexual assault database tracking, as well as other provider needs.
Handled sensitive and confidential information with discretion.
Creoted and maintained the SANE Internship, including the oversight of all interns.
Facilitated all meeting and training logistics.
Developed, formaited, & maintain all program databases

COMMITTEES/COMMUNITY SERVICE

Weed & Seed Steering Committee Member | Community Organization | Manchester, NH
Manchester's Weed & Seed strategy is @ community-based multi-agency approach to law
enforcement, crime prevention and neighborhood restoration with the intent to control viclent
crime, drug trafficking. and drug-related crime in designated elevated-crime neighborhoods.
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LISA A. CIOFFI

EDUCATION

J.D. NEW ENGLAND SCHOOL OF LAW, May 1997
magna cum laude
B.A. BOSTON COLLEGE -

Political Science, May 1991

Graduate Program BOSTON COLLEGE

Human Services & Government, May 1992

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CASA of NH
Program Manager, January, 2020 - Present

Office of Lisa Cioffi

Court Investigator & Guardian Ad Litem for the Juvenile Courts of Massachusetts, 2011-Present
As a Court Investigator/GAL for the Massachusetts Juvenile Courts, I perform independent factual
investigations of families who are the subject of child welfare cases filed by the Department of Children
and Families in the Juveniie Court.

In this capacity, [ conduct interviews of parents, children, social workers, law enforcement personnel,
professional clinical providers, medical personnel and other relevant sources of information.
Additionally, I review records maintained by the Department of Children and Families, medical records,
law enforcement records, clinical treatment records, and drug and alcohol treatment records, Following
completion of my investigation, I prepare and submit a written report, with recommendations for
services, to the Court.

Massachusetts Department of Children and Families, 1999-2008

Assistant Counsel

As counsel to the Department of Children and Families, I represented the agency in all phases of trial
practice in the Juvenile Court and Probate Court in custody, termination of parental rights, guardianship
and adoption cases. Additionally, I represented the agency in all phases of appellate practice, including
preparation of briefs and oral argument, before the Appeals Court and the Supreme Judicial Court.
Provided training for newly hired attorneys and supervision of agency trial counsel in all phases of trial
practice.

Mass Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Children, 1993-1996

Advocacy Program Administrator
Researched legislation affecting children and families. Preparation of agency policy statements
regarding pertinent legislation. Testimony before state legislative committee hearing.




Jennifer Curran _ ,

Excels at building relationships and leveraging the varied skills of individuals. Demonstrates a
proven record of effective communication to leadership teams and key stakeholders. Experienced
leader who thrives in a diverse and extended team environment. Life-long learner. Mother,
Marathoner, Ironman, Marine Corps Veteran.

EXPERTISE INCLUDES:
Effective Communicator Dynamic Leader ' Conceptual Thinker
Strategic Influencer Inclusive Collaborator Strong Analytical Skills
I . . PROFESSIONAL & VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE - f
CASA of New Hampshire September 2019 - Present

Laconia, New Hampshire
Skills: Leadership, Training, Coaching
* Training, supervising, and building the skills of approximately 25 individual volunteers who act
as guardians ad litem for abused and neglected children in the NH courts
¢ Recruit and organize guest speaker opportunities and support groups
+ Liaise with various agencies in advocacy of children’s safety and permanency

BabyQuip Independent Quality Provider April 2018 - Present
Co-Founder, Central New Hampshire
Skilis: Training, Recruitment, Attention to Detail, Leadership
» Co-founded baby equipment rental business serving the Lakes and White Mountain regions
» Established training and service requirements as well as reporting and analysis functions
* Oversee marketing operations, inventory acquisition, and effective yield management
* Recruited hotels, vacation rental businesses and AirBnB operators to join the affiliate program

RiverWalk Resort at Loon Mountain May 2017 - March 2018
Real Estate Executive, Lincoln, New Hampshire
Skills: Sales growth, strategic inventory analysis, opportunity identification
* Responsible for growth of ownership base YOY for luxury residences
* Team lead on new B2B revenue channel for upcoming resort expansion plans
¢ Manage inventory mix to ensure proper fit for customer as well as optimal financial
~ performance for the company

UPS (United Parcel Service) March 2016 - January 2017
Account Manager, Aerospace and Defense, Singapore
Skiils: Global trend analyzation, streamline business processes, revenue growth -
* Grew UPS market share in Asia by winning contract for the largest Aerospace and Defense
company in the country
¢ Understand the impact of technology in logistics and translate that to revenue growth for UPS
customers. Won new contract for multi-national Aerospace company with new location in
Singapore
e Relay how global trends will impact customers and deliver proactive solutions for their supply
chain, mitigating risk and streamlining technology solutions to capitalize early before
competitors
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ADP (Automatic Data Processing) October 2013- October 2015
Human Capital Management, Major Accounts, Orlando, FL
Skiils: Effective communication, proactive needs assessment, strategic action planning, SASS
+ Consulted with executives to increase the productivity and ROI of their HCM investment
» Thought leader on sociopolitical and economic influences, which drive market decisions and
need for business transformation
» Proactive liaison between external and internal service teams. Built trusted relationships by
delivering on service promise

Wyndham Destinations (RCI) April 2010- October 2013
Manager, Business Development, Orlando, FL
Skills. Project management, vendor management, budgeting and execution, CRM
. Lead internal and external cross-functional teams in varying
geographies on projects that included mobile applications, website execution, and sales
center effectiveness. All projects completed on time, on budget, and recognized by several
company and industry level awards

. Ensure consistent communication and deliver on expectations
throughout client’s lifecycle, Established trust and rapport as point of contact for new clients
. Conduct industry research to provide valuable insight to clients and

internal teams

Cork & Olive November 2009- April 2010
Marketing Director and Social Media Manager, Orlando, FL
Skills: Customer relationship management, campaign development, social media marketing
« Directed public relations and social media efforts resulting in the addition of 800 new
customers
* Responsible for email marketing campaigns, surveys, and distribution of promotional
materials. Initiated a customer relations program to follow-up with all new and existing
customers

United States Marine Corps May 2003- May 2008
Senijor Intelligence Analyst and Section Manager
Skills: Leadership, analytic problem solving, presentation ability, critical attention to detail
* Instructed, supervised, and evaluated the performance of 30 personnel and managed the
production and quality control of all released intelligence products
« Prioritize mission critical tasks and execute in a fast-paced environment
» Monitored oversight and compliance procedures as well as directed daily operations and
training of junior analysts
» Researched, developed, and coordinated the dissemination of more than 1,000 reports for
upper management personnel, including top military ranks -

| . ., HONORS; AWARDS, AND.RECOGNITION - . .o

« 2013 Speaker for Florida Diversity Council Young Women in Leadership event
* 2013 Speaker at Southeast ARDA conference on social media and customer engagement
+ Published in November/December 2013 Developments (ARDA) magazine
+ Four-time COM! Recipient {internal Wyndham award); two team and two individual awards
] : EDUCATION e ] I
University of Central Florida, Rosen College Orlando, FL
Bachelor of Science in Hospitality Management, Graduated with Honors, May 2011
Foreign Language Training Center Europe Garmisch, Germany
Serbian and Croatian language, Graduated with Honors, February 2005
Defense Language Institute Monterey, CA

Associate of Arts in Serbian/Croatian- Linguist and Baltic Region Specialist, November 2004



CAROLINE K. DELANEY, ESQ.

LEGAL EXPERIENCE

COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE (CASA-NH) Manchester, NH
Staff Counsel September 2016-Present
Act as in-house staff counsel for CASA-NH staff and volunteers. Provide initial and on-going service
training for staff and volunteers on the legal process in Abuse/Neglect (RSA 169-C), Termination of
Parental Rights (RSA 170-C) and Mediated Adoption (RSA 170-B: 14) proceedings. Represent CASA-NH
in court filing appropriate motions and memos of law. Review and edit reports submitted to Court by
CASA-GAL's and prepare CASA-GAL's to testify as witnesses in court proceedings. Assist the
President/CEQ with personnel and other management issues including contract review.

New Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration (DRA) Concord, NH
Revenue Counsel ‘ March 2014 - September 2016
Served as general counsel to the DRA. Advised DRA Commissioner and administration on tax matters,
and personnel issues. Managed all DRA litigation and represented DRA in administrative hearings.
Managed DRA's administrative rule making process including testifying before legislative committees.
Drafted and reviewed business contracts. Conducted department wide trainings.

Morrison Mahoney LLP -Manchester, NH
Associate January 2009 - February 2014
Handled all aspects of varied insurance defense litigation including professional liability, premises
liability and worker's compensation cases. Regularly advised insurance companies in the areas of New
Hampshire insurance coverage and worker's compensation law.

Wiggin & Nourie, P.A. Manchester, NH
Associate Sept. 2006 - Oct. 2008
Attorney in Insurance Defense Practice Group. Attended hearings, mediations, depositions

and drafted pleadings.

Law Office of John B. Schulte Manchester, NH
Staff Litigation Counsel March 1998 - Sept. 2004
Served as in-house trial attorney for Liberty Mutual Insurance Company. Represented Liberty Mutual
insureds in automobile and premises liability cases in all state courts. Represented employers at the
New Hampshire Department of Labor in worker's compensation hearings and appeals.

EDUCATION

Northeastern University School of Law
J.D. 1997
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College of the Holy Cross
B.A. English 1991

OTHER EXPERIENCE

Community Family Life Services Washington, D.C,
Grant Administrator/Casemanager/Qutreach Coordinator Aug. 1992 - May 1994

Administered Department of Housing and Urban Development grant, Supervised six grant
casemanagers and coordinated referrals. Provided case management to homeless families living in
CFLS’ transitional housing program working towards achieving self—suffucnency Provided case
management to families living in Washington D.C. city shelters.

The Jesuit Volunteer Corp Washington, D.C.
Emergency Services Coordinator/ Advocate for the Elderly Aug. 1991 - June 1992

Served low income families and seniors volunteering for two Washington D.C. social service agencies,
The Northwest Settlement House and Community Advocacy and Referral for the Elderly {“C.A.R.E.”).

MEMBERSHIPS

New Hampshire Bar Association
New Hampshire Women's Bar Association
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Kathleen Deviin

SUMMARY: Friendly, self directed, organized professional with strong written and
verbal communication skills. Possesses significant administrative and social work
experience with children/youth and families.

SKILLS: Microsoft Word; Excel; PowerPoint; Outlook and Internet Navigation.

CURRENT AND PAST ADMINISTRATIVE / SOCIAL WORK EXPERIENCE:

Supervision
¢ Directly supervise/train CASA/GAL volunteers that advocate for the best interest
of children within the juvenile court system.
» Directly supervised/trained nine management staff and provided general oversight
for thirty department staff/volunteers for health and nutrition services department,
¢ Directly supervised/trained twenty Parent Aide / MIMS staff,
¢ Directly supervised/trained twenty-eight Family Day Care Home Providers.

Management / Organization _
¢ Manage assignment and monitoring of CASA/GAL cases for two counties.
» Managed six program budgets within health and nutrition program department.
¢ Facilitated all aspects of three national senior anti-hunger annual training
conferences as part of national volunteer Board of Directors.

Social Work

¢ CASA/GAL casework supervision for court appointed child protective cases.

¢ Group facilitator for teen section of family centered group through school system,

o Parent Aide working directly with DCYF caseworkers, school officials, therapists,
foster parents, parents, Guardians Ad Litems and other case related contacts.

e Family Day Care Protective Social Worker dealing directly with parents, Family
Day Care Providers, MA DSS workers, schools, therapists and other
professionals.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

CASA of NH — Manchester, NH : ' 2014 - Present
Program Manager, Cheshire & Sullivan Counties

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. — Manchester, NH 1997 - 2014
Director Community Health and Nutrition Services
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Kathleen Devlin
Page 2

Jaffrey-Rindge School District — Jaffrey NH
Families Matter Teen Group Facilitator

Area Agency for Developmental Services of Greater Nashua, Inc.
Community Projects Coordinator/Development Consultant

Monadnock Developmental Services — Keene NH
Assistant Parent Aide Coordinator/Parent Aide

Guild of St. Agnes Day Care Services — Worcester MA
Family Day Care Coordinator / Protective Services Social Worker

Montachusett Opportunity Council, Inc. - Gardner, MA
Child Protective Supportive Services Social Worker

EDUCATION:

Worcester State College — Worcester, MA
Masters — Human Services Management

Anna Maria College - Paxton, MA
Bachelor’s Degree - Social Work

Reference furnished upon
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Tessa Dyer

|'C:)__bjectiile" ] Accomplished youth development professional with a proven ability to build and manage successful programs.
Dedicated, caring, and career minded individual seeking fulfilling work in which I can make a positive
difference in someone’s life.

Professional: .| June 2006 - Present CASA of NH Manchester, NH
Experence: © . - Program Manager
i Recruit, Train, and Supervise volunteers who serve in the Merrimack County Area as Guardian Ad Litems for abi
neglected children whose families are involved in the Court system.

May 2000 - June 2006  Concord Boys & Girls Club Concord, NH
: Unit Director ' <
Manage daily operation of a Club with an after-school membership of 100 children ages 6-12 and
6 part-time staff. Plan and implement programs and activities for children that foster a sense of
belonging, usefulness, influence, and competence. Participate in meetings between school stafT,
parents, and other agencies regarding the well-being of chiidren who are clients. Manage daily
operation of a summer day-camp program of 120 children and 23 staff. Compile weekly, monthly,
and yearly statistical reports. Collaborate on several partnerships with other child serving agencies
and schools. Assist in developing budgets for the overall program. Ensuring that operations stay within the
budget. .
» Increased Club membership from 40 to 100, with a daily attendance increase from
approximately 20 children to 30,
* Formed a strong relationship with Even Start’s ESL program, which increased the Club's
participation in outreach to the refugee community in Concord.
¢ Collaborated with the Friends Program to match over 20 Club members with senior friends over the
last two years. '
»  Created strong relationships with the families the Heights Unit serves

2000 Child & Family Services Manchestet/Franklin, NH

Tracker
Tracking and supervision of adjudicated youth ages 11-17. Compile and present reports to juvenile probation
officer regarding youth. Attend court hearings with youth and the juvenile prebation officer.

1998 — 1999 Boys & Girls Club of the Nashville Area Nashville, NC

Program Directorfinterim Unit Director

Manage Club operations of after-school and summer camp program. Compile weekly and monthly statistical
reborts. Direct involvement with daily activities for Club members

1994 - 1998 North Carolina Wesleyan College Rocky Mount, NC

[Education -~ " | pa Justice Studies
T ‘ Team player, self starter, energetic, mediation skills training, report writing, compassionate, Responding to
I'Sk'lls‘ N 1 Emergencies certified, CPR/AED for the Professional Rescuer, aggression awareness training, and S.O.L.V.E.
certified

Addiﬁiina?lﬁ%r;naﬁbni I Experience working with children with challenging behaviors, quick leamner, self-starter, ability to work well in
high stress situations, flexible, ability to work with a diverse population

Tessa Dyer-Resume



Tessa Dyer-Resume

o



Jonelle Geffne

Objective  To obtain full time employment that would allow me the opportunity to continue to work with families
and children in the social service spectrum by helping to assist in providing services to families in
need.

Education Southern New Hampshire University - - Manchester, New Hampshlre
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology
Minor in Sociology, 2000-2004
Graduated Cum Laude

2002-2004: Treasurer of the National Honor Society for Psychology {PS! CHI)

Professional Experience
CASA of NH, Manchester, NH
" {October 2009 to Present)
CASA Guardian Ad Litem Supervlsor

« Responsible for the recruitment, tralnlng, and on-going supervision of volunteer guardlan ad litems assigned to
abused and neglected children in the court system.

Devereux Florlda, Orando, FL -

(October 2008-September 2009) -
Family Case Manager-Speciallzed Medical Unit

» Identified needs of and provided direct care services to families in meeting the specialized needs of medically involved
or medically fragile children within the child welfare system - ‘

+ Developed, implemented, and monitored family case plans and provided families with the necessary skills and
motivation in order to meet the goals of the case plan to ensure child safety and well-being

+ Determined the need for child removal, continued services, or termination of services based upon an expert child
safety assessment

* Empowered and promoted self sufficiency of clients

» Wrote documents for the Court; including Shelter Petmons Predisposition Reports, Judicial Reviews, Status Reports,
and Case Plans

* Provided testimony to the Court and served as a liaison between the Department of Children and Familles and the
Court

» Provided clients with services, such as daycare and other referrals. to community agencies for counseling and
financial assistance

"+ Facilitated multi-disciplinary meetings to collaborate on |deas and suggestions to help families successfully-meet the
needs of their children

» Attended meetings with the tegal department, foster care department, and the child protection team to‘make informed
decisions regarding child safety and permanency planning

+ Acted as a mentor to other workers within the service center

Devereux Florida, OrIando, FL
{June 2007-October 2008) Family
Case Manager

« Provided direct care services to families where some lndlcalors of abuse, abandonment, or neglect issues have been
identified
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+- Developed, implement, and monitored family case plans

+ Determined the need for child removal, continued services, or termination of services based upon an expert child
safety assessment

- Empowered and promoted self sufficiency of clients

+ Wrote documents for the Court; including Shelter Petitions; Predisposition Reports Judicial Reviews, Status Reporis,
and Case Plans

. (F;rovuded testimony to the Court and served as a liaison between the Department of Children and Families and the

ourl

« Provided clients with services, such as lower cost daycare and other referrals to community agencies for counsellng

and financial assistance.

+ Attended meetings with the legal department, foster care department, and the child protection team to make informed
decisions regarding child safety and permanency planning

Key Program, Inc., Methuen, MA
(September 2006-June 2007)
Assistant Program Supervisor

« Assisted the program supervisor in managing residential facility, including staff supervision and ensuring clients’
treatment goals and needs are being met. Monitor program organization, client files, scheduling, and general
program maintenance

"« Utilized techniques from the Crisis Prevention and Intervention Inst:tute to facilitate the de-escalation of clients who are
in crisis

» Provided twenty-four hour on call support to resmennal caseworkers in ensuring clients' and staff's safety

+ Utilized the Situational Leadership Model in providing formal and informal supervision to direct care staff with regards
to their performance and professional development

"« Facilitated client referrals, inlakes, and discharge meetings

Key Program Inc., Methuen, MA
(May 2004-September 2006)
Rasidential Caseworker

+ Supervised children (aged 12-18) in a residential setting on achieving their treatment plan goals, documenting their
stay, managing behavioral problems, |mplement|ng consequences, and helping clients develop positive social skills -
and life skills

« Worked directly with families of various ethnicities and backgrounds to understand the families different needs

« CPR, First Aid, and CPI Certified

« Attended multiple trainings focusing on family works, juvenile justice, 51A repomng common dlagnosis

(bi-polar, multiple personality disorder, ADHD, and schlzophrenla

Specialized Trainings and/or Certifications

+ Certified Family Services Counselor (March 2008)

+ Specific trainings as they relate to the following: Health and Information and Accountability Act {HIPAA), Code
of Ethics, Medical Neglect, Chitd Abuse Prevention, Early Childhood Trauma, Domestic Violence,
Supervising Visits for Sexually Abused Children, Educational Trainings, Drug Abuse, and other various
trainings as they relate to the field of child welfare.

References available upon request
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Lura Herbrecht

Professional Summary

Dedicated and compassionate professional experienced working with homeless, at risk, and special
needs youth. Substantial background in supervisory and leadership positions. Knowledgeable in
cross cultural sensitivity and interpersonal communication. Trained in Trauma Informed Care and

Motivational Interviewing.

Experience
Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire ' (603) 626-4600
Program Manager August 2019 - Present

Supervises 30 - 40 volunteer CASA Guardian Ad Litems.

Conducts interviews with potential CASA GALs.

Facilitates monthly support groups for CASA GALs.

Works one on one with new CASA GALs to assist in training.

Facilitates communication between the Division of Child Youth and Families and CASA GALs.
Speaks in court hearings on behalf of CASA GALs as needed. -

Reviews and edits court reports.

Enters case information in CASA Manager data entry system.

Organizes case files.

Covenant House Alaska, Ancliorage. AK . (907)272-1255

Youth Engagement Specialist Lead October 2015 - July 2019

Supervised and directed shift.

Conducted one on one supervisions and training with staff.

Monitored youth activities and behavior.

Intervened in crisis situations,

Conducted intake interviews with youth.

Wrote detailed reports of child neglect and abuse for Office of Children’s Services.
Worked with Office of Children’s Services for child safety and placement.
Facilitated family mediations, and helped families strengthen healthy communication skllls
Mentored youth and provided emotional support.

Worked with homeless and at-risk youth to identify barriers to stable living.
Developed individual case-plans.

Referred youth to mental health services.

Facilitated entry into inpatient treatment.

Assisted youth in finding employment.

Aided youth in completing employment certifications.

‘Helped youth find and apply for housing.

Assisted youth in school enrollment.
Helped youth complete applications for assistance programs.
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Lura Herbrecht

Referred youth to skill building groups and helped youth develop healthy coping techniques.
Entered and audited data in Efforts to Qutcomes software.

Wrote detailed progress notes related to youth interactions,

Transported youth to and from Covenant House as needed.

Imagination Station Daycare and Preschool, Anchorage, AK ' {907) 563-8290

‘Lead Teacher and Closing Supervisor March 2013 - October 2015

Supervised staff and daily closing procedures.

Provided training for new employees.

Taught in classrooms’ throughout center for children ranging from 6 weeks 12 years of age.
Worked with special needs children to develop appropriate interpersonal skills.
Deescalated children during behavioral issues and engaged them in coping behaviors.
Designed age appropriate curriculum, activities, and projects.

s Worked with families to create effective intervention plans for behavioral issues.

¢ Strengthened basic self-help skills through real world problem solving.

Providence Alaska Medical Center, Anchorage, AK (907) 562-2211
Medical Records Technician May 2009 - August 2012

» Systematically analyzed electronic records for quality assurance.

* Worked with multiple departments to diagnose errors and system malfunctions.

» Worked with medical providers to ensure satisfaction of medical record requlrements
¢ Provided training for employees.

¢ Managed the front desk of the Health Information Management department.

* Received and analyzed authorizations for release of protected health information.

Education

University.ofAlasRa Anchorage
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology with a minor in Philosophy

References

Josh Louwerse, Pl'ogram Director
Covenant House Alaska (907) 272-1255

Jeni Lachance, Assistant Program Coordinator
Covenant House Alaska (907) 272-1255

De Cyril, Owner and Operator
Imagination Station Daycare and Preschool (907) 563-8290
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' Rebecca J. Hester :

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CASA NEW HAMPSHIRE September 2019 to present

PROGRAM MANAGER

. Supervise approximately 35-40 volunteer advocates
s Review and approve advocate court reports and cover court appearances when necessary
s Liaison with DCYF _ )
*  Provide support, mentorship and coaching for advocates on their cases to ensure that they are fulfilling their
mandated duties.
PORTSMOUTH POLICE DEPARTMENT : April 1996 t6 September 2019
" DETECTIVE & DETECTIVE SERGEANT, Investigative Division March 2008 to September 2019

Detective Sergeant (July 2016 through the present) .
. Direct supervisor for the School Resource Oﬁ':cer {(SRO) Program overseeing the daily tasks for both the
middie school and high school SRO.
Coordinate with Middle School and High School staff members regarding the SRO program
Direct supervisor for juvenile investigator responsible for assigning and reviewing all reports and
investigations related to juvenile offenders and victims.

. Continue to coordinate our response with the Division of Children, Youlh and Families.
¢ Continue to conduct investigative duties
. Responsible for conducting employee background investigations
Juvenile Prosecutor (December 2009 through the present)
. Review police reports for prosecutoriai merit and determine appropriate charges.

Initiate court process to include filing petitions and ensuring proper legal service,

Prepare discovery and case-related subpoenas.

Coordinate with all involved witnesses and victims.

Negotiate plea agreements with juveniles, attorneys and families.

Prepare for trial and represent the State as prosecutor in trial proceedings.

Maintain communication with Juvenile Probation/Parole Officers. *

Co-founded the Portsmouth Resource Connections Team, a multi-disciplinary wrap-around team including
the Division for Children Youth and Families, Juvenile Justice, Portsmouth School District, Seacoast Mental
Health, Families First and the Chase Home for Children.

Investigator (June 2009 through July 2016)

. Skrve as primary investigator in Chlld abuse and neglect allegatlons as well as crimes rangmg from burglary
to death investigations.

. Certified as a trained forensic interviewer responsible for interviewing child victims and witnesses.

. Primary department liaison with the Division of Children, Youth and Families in abuse and neglect:
investigations.

. Interview adult victims and witnesses and interrogate adult and juvenile suspects of crimes ranging from
fraud, to rape and serious assaults.

e - Responsible for recognizing, locating and collecting evidence at crime scenes.

Process evidence in a manner according to policy and best-practice to best allow for the successful
identification and prosecution of a suspect.
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Liaison te Rockingham County Attorney’s Office (2010 through the present)

. 'Assist in preparation of felony level case files for submission to the RCAQ for prosecution.
. Coordinate required or requested follow-up investigation both pre- and post-submission.
. Present felony cases at Grand Jury.
. Prepare and coordinate subpoenas for service for Supcr:or Court witnesses, boLh law enforcement and
civilian.
School Resource Officer / Investigator (2008-2009)
. Assigned to be a police liaison for the staff, students and families of the four elementary schools.
. Impiemented a teaching program for children 5-11 years old emphasizing safety skills.
) Supervised crossing guards assigned to all Portsmouth schools, including the development and

implementation of a written protocol for crossing guards.

CANINE HANDLER, Patrol Division November 2000 to March 2008

. Assigned as sole handler for K-9 Viktor, a dual-certified patrol and narcotics detection dog.
. Maintained all appropriate documentation of continual training and certifications in a court ready format.
L Responsible for directing responding officers, recognizing and utilizing additional resources and

coordinaling appropriate perimeters to maximize the effectiveness of the canine at a crime scene while
minimizing the contamination of potential evidence.
) " Regularly represented the Department in a highly visible public relatlons role throughout the state.
] Received numerous awards through a nationally recognized association for profi cwncy to include a
National Cemﬁcatlon in narcotics detection in 2006.

PATROL OFFlCER. Patrol Division : - April 1996 to March 2008
»  Performed patrol related duties to include the preliminary investigation of serious crimes such as sexual
assaults, assaults and significant property crimes.

DEPARTMENT INSTRUCTOR

. Field Training Officer from 1999 to present; those duties included the immediate supervision of assigned
trainees, field instruction in tactics and policy and procedure.

. Defensive Driving instructor for the Department since 2000; those duties include developing practical as

well as classroom lesson plans geared towards improving risk management in this high liability arena.

NH POLICE K-9 ACADEMY ' May 2004 to March 2008
Assistant Trainer, Patrel and Narcotics Detection
. Responsible for supervising the training of canine teams from multiple agencies with handlers to include
annual practical evaluations of team proficiency.
. Developed and implemented lesson plans for basic training as well as in-service teams.
. Selected by the Academy Head Trainer to fill in that position when he was absent.
SPECIALIZED TRAINING

CASA New Hampshire Permanency Training - November 2019
CASA New Hampshire TPR Training = October 2019
CASA New Hampshire Volunteer Advocate Training — October 2019

109th Police Academy — NH Police Standards and Training Council - April 1996
Supervision:

FBI-LEEDA Supervisor Leadership Insututc ‘May 2017

First Line Supervision — May 2017

Prosecution:
Basic Police Prosecutor — December 2009

Juvenile Investigations:
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Conducting Child Abuse Investigations — March 2018
Partmering for a Future Without Violence Conference — October 2017
12+ Annual New England School Safety Conference — April 2017
Conducting Unexplained Child Death Investigations — February 2017
Domestic Minor Sex Trafficking - November 2014
Child Death and Homicide Investigations — April 2013
24+» Annual Crimes Against Children Conference (Dallas, TX) — August 2012
Juvenile Justice — Juvenile Compliance update - November 2010
Emerging Trends in Child Sexuval Abuse - May 2009
Chiid Investigative Interviewing — November 2008
NH Attorney General’s Conference on Child Abuse and Neglect — September 2008 through 2013
Child Abuse Injury Reconstruction — September 2008
Basic School Resource Officer - July 2008
General Investigations:
Cold Case Homicide Investigations — June 2016
Background [nvestigations — December 2015
[nvestigating and Prosecuting Human Trafficking — June 2013
NH Attorney General’s Conference en Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault - June 2012
Sex Crimes Investigation — October 2011
NYPD Homicide Investigation Training ~ November 2009
Basic Criminal Investigation — September 2009
Death and Homicide Investigation — April 2009
Certified Electronic Evidence Collection — January 2009
Reid Interview and Interrogation Technique — September 2008
Sexual Assault Investigation and Prosecution ~ September 2007
Digital Photography for Law Enforcement — May 2007
Instructor Training:
Child Victims in the Commercial Sex Industry (Train the Trainer) - April 2013
instructor Development — April 2001
Defensive Driving Instructor — May 2000
Field Training Officer — February 2000
- Peer Support Training:
Critical Incident Peer Support — October 2013
Critical Incident Peer to Peer Training — May 2014

-

CURRENT CERTIFCATIONS
United States Police Canine Association Level 1 Patrol Dog Trainer
United States Police Canine Association Narcotics Detector Dog Trainer

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
Seacoast Community Diversion Program — Advisory Board 2017- present
Portsmouth Resource Connections Team - Founding member 2010-present
Working Dog Foundation — Lifetime Board member
Chief Administrator 2006-2008
Secretary 2005-2006
United States Police Canine Association
Member since 2000

EDUCATION
Middlesex Community College Mass. (1995-1996)
Criminal Justice Major
Umversnty of Massachusetts — Ambherst (1989-1993)
Studio Art Major
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Jennifer Saunders Hollinrake

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

Knowledge of the principles and methods of social work, availability and use of community resources.
Knowledge of involved psychological and environmental problems arising in connection with case work.
Ability to exercise good judgement in evaluating situations and in making decisions. Ability to

_communicate effectively both orally and in writing. Ability to establish and maintain effective working
relationships with representatives of other social agencies, institution officials, the public and cIienfs
Ability to counsel children who are in distress, to offer guidance and solutions to their issues to help
them to maintain good mental health.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CASA of New Hampshlre Manchester NH

Program Manager

January 2019-present

* . Duties include supervising volunteers and assisting in court report writing, assisting in
recruitment of Volunteer Advocates and Peer Coordinators, assisting in interviewing and
screening Volunteer Advocate applicants and Peer Coordinators, assisting in training of
Volunteer Advocates and Peer Coordinators, ensuring all court case data and files are accurate
and up to date, acting as a liaison to court personnel, the Division for Children, Youth, and
- Families, and other strategic partners,

Goffstown School District Goffstown, NH
“Student Support Services/Coordinator
September 2017-2019
« Duties include processing with students who are under distress or are acting out in the

classroom. Workings closely with the guidance department to help counsel students with issues
that come up at school or with things that have happened at home. Supporting teachers to help
maintain balance in the classroom when a student becomes disruptive or combative in the
classroom. Supporting administration with issues that arise with students within the building.
Contacting parents to discuss issues that their children are having at school. Working with
students to find better ways to manage their behaviors so that they can be productive learners.

Substitute Teacher
September 2016-June 2017 ‘ .
¢ Duties include but are not limited to assisting with classroom instruction in the absence of the
lead teacher. Performing all the jobs of the regular teacher including handling lessons and
ensuring that-classroom supplies are aplenty. To ensure that normal classroom routines are
followed and discipline is maintained.

Jennifer Hollinrake-Resume



SAU 19 Goffstown, NH
Behavior Analyst Assistant
October 2015-July 2016 .

o Directly working under the guidance of the BCBA for the Goffstown School Dlstnct Duties
include working directly with children in the district with Autism and Behavioral issues.
Conducting ABA/DTT with the autism population in the district, collecting data, graphing, input .
of data into the database, working on case plans with the Behavior Analyst. Providing materials
to all the paraprofessionals. Trained in CPI {Crisis prevention). °

Care.com
Safety Analyst Waltham, MA-
September 2015-October 2015
" o Duties included reviewing cases, researching to make certain members on the website were safe
to be on the website, conducting background checks on members, ensuring the safety and
security of the members within the online community, maintaining service agreements, '
following escalation process and reporting system issues.

Profile Review
June 2015-August 2015
¢ Reviewed and evaluated the quality of members' profiles and ensured the safety and security of
the content within the online community

SAU 19 Goffstown, NH

Paraprofessional

October 2014-June 2015

e Assisted students one on one in the classroom and with their studles Assisted students during

lunchtime, using the facilities, and at the nurse’s office. Assisted students in art, gym, and music
classes. Assisted students at the beginning of the day to undress from cold weather, and at the
end of the day to dress for cold weather. Assisted students with problem solving. Helped to
facilitate and maintain a safe and comfortable environment for students at all times.

.Bedford Youth Performlng Company Bedford, NH
Volunteer
September 2006- June 2013
s  Assisted teachers and staff at the Bedford Youth Performing Company. Assisted the children
with typical daily needs, reading groups, writing skills, outside activities, snack/lunch time, field
trips, show performances at off-site facility, and cleaning up the classroom for the day.

Department of Children, Youth, and Famllies Nashua, NH
Child Protective Service Worker I
November 2001-May 2004
* Interviewed alleged victims and alleged perpetrators of abuse and neglect, prepared reports for
assessment of child abuse, sexual abuse, and/or neglect referral
+ Developed and recommended plans for crisis intervention to ensure protection of children
- Prepared petitions and presented evidence to court of jurisdiction to support agency
assessment of abuse and neglect
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Evaluated the risk to the child {ren) to remain in the home and recommended appropriate
course of action '
Located suitable alternative placement to meet a specific' child’s needs and to meet policy and

" guidelines; counseled the child{ren) and family in preparation for placement

Testified in court to the findings of child abuse/and or neglect

‘Interviewed clients and made recommendations for appropriate resources for children and

families
Transported clients and/or their familles to and from visitations and various appointments
Supervised family visits in the DCYF office

Mercury Computer Sy.f;tems Chelmsford, MA
Human Resource Assistant/Junior Recruiter
January 2000-October 2001

Provided site specific administrative support for associates & customers at Mercury's
Chelmsford office

Coordinated arrangements for conferences, meetings, and travel plans

Maintained and processed confidential information

Compiled and prepared reports/presentations

Routed resumes to specific managers -

Draper Laboratories Cambridge, MA_
Administrative Staff Assistant
July 2000-December 2000

Provided admlnlstratlve support to the Director of Human Resources and Human Resources
staff . :

Duties inciuded creating and tracking various reports, tables, charts, memos and other
miscellaneous documents

Tracked and maintained resume system

‘Maintained records/logs, filing systems .

Arranged and coordinated meetings and travel arrangements
Answered and s¢reened telephone calls
Typed purchasing requisitions and other office memorandum

EDUCATION

University of Massachusetts, Amherst
May 2000
Bachelor of Arts/Psychology and Sociology.
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Jeri Larson
Education:

High School: North Middlesex Regional ngh School Townsend, Mass.
Graduated May 1971

Cotlege: - Vermont Technical College; Randolph, Vermont.
Associates Degree in Civil Engineering
Graduated May 1973

Additional college:-

North Eastern University; Boston, Mass.
Night Classes in structural design
Lowell Technical College.

Classes in computer programming

Training and seminars: (a partial list)
November 2000: completed 40 hour CASA volunteer training

2003 to 2005: worked with the Green Book Project in developing a co-occurrence
protocol for abuse/neglect cases that also include domestic violence.

October 2004: New Hampshlre Attorney General’s conferencc on abuse and
neglect. '

October 2005: World Conference on Prevention of Family Violence, Banff Albert -
Canada; three day conference and training

May 2006 New Hampshire Attorney General’s conference on Domestic violence;
- two day conference and training.

Work experience:
1973 to present, structural steel detailer and project manager for various
construction projects.

Nov. 2000 to October 2004, CASA volunteer, acting as GAL in abuse/neglect
cases out of Belknap County. Advocated for abused/neglect children in 12 cases.

September 2004 to present, CASA Program Manager of the North Country.
office of CASA of New Hampshire. The office is based in Colebrook, NH. This
office has supervision responsibility for CASA assigned cases in Coos, and
Carroll County’s.

)
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| BERNADETTE M. PLANTE |
S

- omeernve ]

To obtain a challenging full or part time position within the educational, childcare, or social services
field that will fully utilize my diverse knowledge, education, and experience.

: _ PROFESSIONAL PROFILE -

Guardlan Ad Litem, Court Appointed Special Advocate
» Excellent knowledge of Juvenile Court/Child Welfare

System. » Proven track record for providing quality dient
* Assisted in development of organizational polides for assessment, counseling, and referrals,
Guardian Ad Litems & Staff. * Experlence In networking with local/state agencies
* Represented organization at both state and local level. - " and grant writing.
= Supenrvision and Tralning of professional development = Ability to work productively both independently or as a
of staff. cooperative team member.
» Member of the Senlor Management Team, * Solld background in designing/implementing new

* Uptodate on cument industry trends with staff + behavioral and vocational programs
recrulting and development experience. .

Parent Child Mediation, City of Nashua, NH

' WORK HISTORY :

CASA (COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATE) OF NEW HAMPSHIRE (2001 - pment)
~ Senior CASA Supervisor (2008-Present)
= Court Diversion-Program (2007-2009)
» Supervised Staff Supervisors in Colebrook, Berlin, Plymouth, Manchester and
Nashua District and Family Courts to ensure effective service delivery to
. abused and neglected children.
* Acted as a liaison to all North Country, Lakes Region, Manchester and Nashua
local offices of the Division of Children, Young and Families (DCYF).
» Developed and provided training standards for both Staff, Volunteers and
Guardian Ad Litems.
» Conducted performance evaluations of Staff.
= Valuable Professional of the Senior Management Team.

Supervisor of Guardian Ad Litems (2001-2008) :
» Recruited, screened, trained and supervised CASA Guardian Ad Litem

Volunteers, providing 40 hour intensive training.

» Responsible for matching case’s to appropriate Volunteer (all cases are abuse
and neglect petitions filed through either District or Family Court).

» Co-managed all cases with volunteer, maintaining monthly supervision data in
CASA database, provided data quarterly, or as needed, to Executive Director

» Ensured all Court Reports prepared by CASA/GAL are typed, edited,
reproduced and delivered with the statutory time frames to court and all
relevant parties.
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= Acted as a liaison to Court Personnel.

NASHUA PASTORAL CARE CENTER INC, Nashua, NH (1996 -2001)
wmmmnm (1998 - 2001)
Continuously handled a high-risk caseload, managed Annual Grants, and prepared
statistical information for the United Way.
»  Assisted in résumé writing and preparation for non-skilled working population,
» Developed job opportunities for professional, skilled, and non-skilled clientele.
* Represented organization as a public speaker at public relations events and fund-
raisers.
» Managed 200 volunteers and coordinated annual Christmas Program which served
over 680 families.

Case Manager (1996 - 1998)
"= Managed high-risk caseload working with women in recovery from addictions.,

» Co-facilitated bi-weekly support group for women to empower and assist with integration
into the-community.

= Co-facilitated weekly parenting group for women in recovery.

* Facilitated educational, housing, and individual plans to become non-recipients of
welfare.

» Developed close working relationships with educational personnel from local colleges, the
City, and Welfare Department.

* Maintained up-to-date on local and state changes pertaining to welfare reform,

BIG BROTHERS/BIG SISTERS OF GREATER NASHUA, Nashua, NH (1996 '1997)
Case Worker
* Handled caseload of 25 families and recruited/trained volunteers,
Assisted in major fundraising projects and writing press releases.
Provided sexual abuse prevention training to children, parents, and volunteers.
Interviewed and screened adults and children for program eligibility. ,
Alded in providing support groups for parents and volunteers, addresslng parenting )
issues of elementary aged children to teenagers. -
* Researched potential grant possibilities and represented organization at public speaking
engagements

- EDUCATION :

MELTON MOWBRY COLLEGE, Leicester, England
B.S. Degree Equivalent in Social Work & Child Welfare with additional post graduate study.

- CONTINUING EDUCATION

NH Attormney General's Task Force Conference on Child Fetal Alcohol Syndrome, Rivier Collegé, Nashua, NH
Abuse & Neglect Dynamics of Child Abuse and Neglect within

PSNH Conference on Electric Utllity Service for Low-income the Family; Division of Chlldren, Youth &

Families Famllies

Nurturing Families through Recovery, Coalition on Addiction, Cultural Awareness, Rivier College, Nashua, NH
Pregnancy & Parenting Assessment & Case Planning, Blg Brothers/Big Sisters of
Intake 8 Assessment; Division of Children, Youth & Famillles America

Working with Chronically Mentally Ill Patients, Manchester Physical & Psychological Adolescent Changes

Mental Health ' Mediating Divorce, Child Parent Medlation

Juvenile Court Process; Div of Children, Youth & Families Dealing with Domestic Violence

Waorking with Sexually Abused Children; Division of Children, Community Conference; Division of Children, Youth &
Youth & Families Famllies
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REFERENCES ARE AVAILABLE ON REQUEST -
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'Educ'ation

Stephen G. Pruyne

1994-1996 M.S. in Environmental Education, Lesley College
1983-1988 B.A. in Mathematics, Amherst College

Employment

2006-present CASA Program Manaéer, CASA of NH

2002-2006

2000-2002

Supervise volunteer CASA GALs in Portsmouth and Brentwood
Family Courts. : ‘

Plan and organize monthly support groups for volunteers.
Work aspart of a training team to train new volunteers.
Update database on all court cases.

Leaders' Project Director, Dover Middle School

Work with teachers and administrators to plan and coordinate a
wide array of after-school classes. :
Responsible to oversee US Department of Education grant.

Plan and facilitate monthly Advisory board meetings to bring local
youth organizations and school personnel together.

Regional Coordinator, PlusTime NH .

Coordinate technical assistance, training, networking meetings and
grant research for out-of-school providers in Seacoast.

Increase community awareness of the need for high quality out-of-
school programs for a healthy community.

Supervise AmeriCorps VISTA members in their role with
programs. ' '

References available on request
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Shiloh Remillard

Education

Granlte State College 2009-2012
Bachelor in Individualized Studies English Language Arts.

White' Mountains Community College 2004-2008
Associate in Early Childhood Education ’
Certificate in Special Education .

Berlin High School 1997-2001
High School Degree

Workshops and Training
" CPR and First Aid certified _ - March 2016
CLASS Reliaoble Observer September 2016
Teaching Strategies Gold Interater Reliable June 2014
Practice Based Coaching March 2017
Early Childhood Experiences
CASA of New Hampshire Program Manager October 2017- Current

The Program Manager is responsible for supervising the CASA advocates and overseeing their
management of the cases appointed to them. The program manager also is responsible for entering
and updating data in the CASA Manager system, providing support groups and training for the
advocates, partnering with the other service providers and ensuring that best practices are followed.

< 40 Hours per week

Tri-County Head Start Education Content Manager and Site Supervisor Aprll 2014-September 2017

The Education Content Manager is responsible for the planning dnd administering of the Head Start
Performance Standards related to education services for children and families. Services must fall in line
with the program's multiple systems and must include ongoing assessment to ensure the quality of the

- sarvices provided. The education manager is responsible for overseeing the education stoff, managing
the Teaching Strategies Gold system, analyzing the child outcomes data as well as the CLASS

' observation data, and organizing the development of a professional development system for the

program, which includes Practice Based Coaching.

The Site Supervisor is responsible for overseeing day-to-day operations at a specific site. supervision, and
training of site staff to ensure quality program services in a positive and nurturing environment.

< 40 Hours per week
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Trl-Counf'y Head Start Center Lead Teacher January 2011-Aprll 2014 .

A center Lead Teacher oversees day-to-day operations, to provide quality care and active supervision
to all preschool children in the Head Start classroom. The teacher must ensure all Head Start
performance standards are being met as well as all NH licensing rules. The teacher is responsible for
creating o developmentally appropriate environment and lesson plan that follows the Creative
Curriculum program. The teacher must complete ongoing quality assessments on the children in the
classroom and utilize the Teaching Strategies Gold system. The teacher must also develop supportive
relationships with the children and families through daily interactions and scheduled visits.

% 35 hours per week

'Trl-Counfy Head Start AssOcIcte Combo Teacher September 2009-January 2011

The Associcate 1eccher is responsible for assisting the Lead teacher in all doy-to-day operations and to
provide quality care and active supervision to oll preschool children in the Head Start classroom. The
Associate teacher must help to ensure all Head $tart performance standards are being met as well as
all NH licensing rules. The Associate teacher is responsible for helping to create ¢ developmentolly
appropriate environment and lesson plan that follows the Creative Curricutum program. The Associcte
teacher must assist in completing ongoing quality assessments on the children in the classroom ond
utilize the Teaching Strategies Gold system. The Associate teacher must also develop supportive
relationships with the childrenand families through daily interactions and scheduled visits.

-

< 35 hours per week
White Mountains Childcare Center Child Care Assistant ‘ January 2007-June 2009

The Child Care Assistant helps to ensure that high quality care is give to all children at all times. In this
multiage childcare center the majority of my time was spent with the toddlers. This included setting up
the environment, planning for the day and caring out routine activities [meals, diapering, story time, rest
time, center time, creative activities and outdoor activities). Occasionally days were spent assisting in
the infant room and others in the preschool room if assistance was necessary.

s 30 hours per week

Activities

I'am an active member in the Coos Codlition Professional Development group. )

In my spare time | enjoy being outside with my fcmily. -1 love kayaking, trail running, snowshoeing and
gardening. | also have a passion for cooking. | enjoy trying out new recipes on my family and exploring
fresh flavors.

Honors/Awards/Credential

Member of Phi Theta Kappa

Made Dean’s List 09-10

References

References available upon request
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Allison A, Riley . :

Professional Experience

Program Manager ' - Sept. 2019 - present
CASA of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH

¢ Supervise, coach, and support CASA/GAL volunteers that advocate for the best
interest of children within the juvenile court system.

e Manage assignment and monitoring of CASA/GAL cases for two counties.

e Provide casework supervision for court appointed child protective cases,

Program Coordinator 2018 - 2019
Keene Senior Center, Keene, NH -

e Teamed with Cheshire Medical's Center for Population Health to design and
"~ distribute the Senior Center's annual membership survey.

e Assisted Executive Director with the development of strategic initiatives
designed to reach at-risk older adults who are lonely and socially isolated to
improve their overall health and weil-being.

e Cultivated partnerships with key community stakeholders to share resources and

‘ enhance programming. .
* Assisted Executive Director with grant identification and writing.
e Served as interim Administrative Coordinator.

Program Coordinator 2015 - 2018
Monadnock RSVP Volunteer Center, Keene, NH :
e Recruited, trained, placed, and managed volunteers, ages 55+, in service
activities as part of the Corporation for National and Community Service's Senior
Corps program. Recruited and placed 100+ new volunteers during tenure,
¢ Directed the America Reads literacy program comprised of 30 volunteers, 90
teachers, 16 elementary schools, and 9 early learning programs,
» Developed nine new school partnerships. :
e Created RSVP’'s Facebook page and an America Reads E-Newsletter.
o Assisted director with grant writing and mid-year/annual reports to funders.
* Experienced user — Volunteer Reporter (volunteer management database).

Coordinator of Student and Community Relations & Interim 2011 - 2015
Assistant Director of Housing Operations
Keene State College, Keene, NH
¢ Chosen by VP of Student Affairs to create a first-of-its-kind Student and
Community Relations coordinator position and to serve as the coordinator.
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¢ Developed and presented tenant education programs for 800+ students per year
in collaboration with a city code enforcement officer, a college liaison police
officer, and the college’s Director of Student Conduct.

o Created and implemented a semi-annual off-campus housing fair.

» Worked with neighborhood groups to address student/neighbor relations.

» Designed and implemented a semi-annual city/college Adopt-a-Street
neighborhood trash pick-up program involving 150+ students.

*» -Selected to serve as the interim Assistant Director of Housing Operations by
Director of Residence Life. Held a dual role for six months, Supervised two
administrative assistants and assisted IT coordinator with online room selection.

Division of Student Affairs Program Assistant ' 2008 - 2010
Keene State College, Keene, NH

Stay-at-Home Parent . : © 1998 - 2008

Associate Director of Student Life | 1995 - 1997
Carnegie Mellon University, Pittsburgh, PA

» Co-directed an 18-member Student Life Office. Supervised four professional
staff members, two support staff members and a receptionist.

s Set vision and provided leadership for the areas of: First-Year Programs including
Orientation, Leadership and Personal Development, Community Service, Family
Programs, Academic Success, Community Standards, Publications including the
Undergraduate Student Handbook, and Student Staff Payroll.

» Directed all aspects of the. campus Sexual Assault Advisors group.

Coordinator of Residence Life for Administrative Services i 1994 - 1995
Carnegie Mellon University, Pittsburgh, PA

.Assistant to the Dean of Student Affairs 1993 - 1994
Carnegie Mellon University, Pittsburgh, PA

Area Coordinator for Residential Life 1591 - 1993
Dickinson College, Carlisle, PA

Assistant Director of Housing and Residence Life 1989 - 1991
Emerson College, Boston, MA ' '

_ Education
Master of Arts, Higher Education Administration, Boston College, Chestnut Hill, MA
" Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, Allegheny College, Meadville, PA -
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Co i olveme

Meal Server, The Community Kitchen, Keene, NH

Literacy Volunteer, Reading Buddies, Hinsdale, NH

Greater Keene Homeless Coalition, Keene, NH

Phoenix House Community Advisory Board Member, Keene, NH

Allison Riley-Resume
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Allison A. Riley

Professional Experience

Program Manager : Sept. 2019 - present
CASA of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH :
. & Supervise, coach, and support CASA/GAL volunteers that advocate for the best
interest of children within the juvenile court system.
. Manage assignment and monitoring of CASA/GAL cases for two counties.
+ Provide casework supervision for court appointed child protective cases.

- Program Coordinator 2018 - 2019
Keene Senior Center, Keene, NH

& Teamed with Cheshire Medical's Center for Population Health to design and
distribute the Senior Center's annual membershih survey.

s Assisted Executive Director with the development of strategic initiatives
designed to reach at-risk older adults who are lonely and socially isolated to
improve their overall health and well-being.

e Cultivated partnerships with key community stakeholders to share resources and
enhance programming.

& Assisted Executive Director with grant identification and writing.

¢ Served as interim Administrative Coordinator.

Program Coordinator 2015- 2018
Monadnock RSVP Volunteer Center, Keene, NH '
¢ Recruited, trained, placed, and managed volunteers, ages 55+, in service
activities as part of the Corporation for National and Community Service's Senior
Corps program. Recruited and placed 100+ new volunteers during tenure,
¢ Directed the America Reads literacy program comprised of 90 volunteers, 90
teachers, 16 elementary schools, and 9 early learning programs.
¢ Developed nine new school partnerships.
e Created RSVP’'s Facebook page and an America Reads E-Newsletter.
"o Assisted director with grant writing and mid-year/annual reports to funders.
e Experienced user — Volunteer Reporter (volunteer management database).

Coordinator of Student and Community Relations & Interim : 201\1 - 2015
Assistant Director of Housing Operations
Keene State College, Keéne, NH
e Chosen by VP of Student Affairs to create a first-of-its-kind Student and
Community Relations coordinator position and to serve as the coordinator.
\
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s Developed and presented tenant education programs for 800+ students per year
in collaboration with a city code enforcement officer, a college liaison police
officer, and the college’s Director of Student Conduct.

e Created and implemented a semi-annual off-campus housing fair.

* Worked with neighborhood groups to address student/neighbor relations.

* Designed and implemented a semi-annual city/college Adopt-a-Street

~ neighborhood trash pick-up program involving 150+ students.

e Selected to serve as the interim Assistant Director of Housing Operations by
Director of Residence Life. Held a dual role for six months. Supervised two
administrative assistants and assisted IT coordinator with online room selection.

Division of Student Affairs Program Assistant l 2008 - 2010
Keene State College, Keene, NH
Stay-at-Home Parent . _ 1998 - 2008

Associate Director of Student Life - 1995 - 1997
Carnegie Mellon University, Pittsburgh, PA :
e Co-directed an 18-member Student Life Office. Supervised four professional
staff members, two support staff members and a receptionist.
* Set vision and provided leadership for the areas of: First-Year Programs including
" Orientation, Leadership and Personal Development, Community Service, Family
Programs, Academic Success, Community Standards, Publications including the
Undergraduate Student Handbook, and Student Staff Payroll.
» Directed all aspects of the campus Sexual Assault Advisors group.

Coordinator of Residence Life for Administrative Services 1994 - 1995
Carnegie Mellon University, Pittsburgh, PA

Assistant to the Dean of Student Affairs 1993 - 1994
Carnegie Mellon University, Pittsburgh, PA

. Area Coordinator for Residential Life 1991 - 1993
Dickinson College, Carlisle, PA '

"Assistant Director of Housing and Residence Life ‘ 1989 - 1991
Emerson College, Boston, MA

Education o
Master of Arts, Higher Education Administration, Boston College, Chestnut Hill, MA
Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, Allegheny College, Meaduville, PA
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Community Involvement

Meal Server, The Community Kitchen, Keene, NH

_Literacy Volunteer, Reading Buddies, Hinsdale, NH

Greater Keene Homeless Coalition, Keene, NH

Phoenix House_Cdmmunity Advisory Board Member, Keene, NH
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Mark Rissala

PROGRAM MANAGER

Dependable and organized team player, results driven leader, managing Employee compliance,
hiring, onboarding and performance management. Offering twenty-five years' experience with
- dispute resolution, developing employees and program management through smart,- strategic
thinking that anticipates outcomes. Skilled at building relationships, in which employees feel
comfortable voicing questions and concerns, and contributing new ideas that advance
performance. Track record of leading change that drives efficiency and profitability. implements
practical practice improvements that enhance organization’s overall effectiveness, harnesses
the latent potential of its workers and transforms individuals into top-performers.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CASA of New Hampshire, Claremont/New Hampshire
Program Director (Dec 2019-Current)

> Review new cases and assign appropriate volunteers taking into account their strengths,
personal choices and needs of the children to ensure an effective match

> Provided supervision, assistance, and consultation for CASA volunteers to support them in
advocating for society’s most vulnerable population

> Review and edit Court reports of assigned CASA volunteers to ensure they are written
according to Court Protocols, they are accurate and convincing

» Assist and collaborate with CASA staff and volunteers to promote CASA in the commumty
and increase numbers of volunteers and supporters

The Orion House, Inc.; Newport/New Hampshire
Program Director (Jan-July 2019)

> Provided stability to a residential program for adolescent males that had become chaotic and
counterproductive, progressing from three Critical Incident Repons daily to an occasional report
monthly .
>nitiated a process to transform the program mto a Trauma Informed Treatment Center to align
with changes in group care funding relative to the Family First Prevention Act

>Recreated the behavior management system balancing accountability and treatment,
increased dialogue and administered behavior modification with condmonmg and replacement
techniques, as well as interventions that enhanced learning

>By way of the New Hampshire Child Welfare Education Partnershup brought innovative
training to the program such as Trust Based Relational Intervention (TBRI), an evidence based
trauma informed, attachment centered training

>Revised the Job Description of the Educational Coordinator to allow for the ﬂow of information
about Residents 'attendance at classes, academic progress and completion of assignments to
address needs in real time resulting in Residents scoring average and above

>Developed procedures for Residential Supervisors to streamline their duties, provided
coaching and support, and maintained a presence in the program

Department of Health and Human Services Claremont/New Hampshire
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Supervisor, Program Management, Field Worker (1999 - 201'7) :

> Provided leadership to multiple dynamic teams while leading new practlce initiatives in
support of the strategic goals of the organization
"> Reviewed all incoming applications and resumes, interviewed and selected appllcants and
integrated new employees into the organization

> Trained and supsrvised direct reports to become efficient, effective and emotlonally secure
completing assignments during times. of tumover, increased initiatives and general work
overload

» Championed practice enhancement, utilizing Lean Six Sigma, and team skill development in
district office with accomplishments utilized by other district offices

> Developed and strategically moved direct reports to essential positions |nclud|ng promotion to
a supervisor

> Conducted abuse and neglect mvestlgatlons evaluated information, highlighting ambivalence
between behavior and

personal desires to restore balance to families _

»> Worked together with CASA workers to improve outcomes for children

EDUCATION/ PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT/AFFILIATIONS

M.S. DEGREE, MANAGEMENT ' ' B.S. DEGREE, HUMAN SERVICES
ANTIOCH NEW ENGLAND GRADUATE SCHOOL SPRINGFIELD COLLEGE
KEENE/NEW HAMPSHIRE MANCHESTER/NEW HAMPSHIRE



Mark Rissala

PROGRAM MANAGER

Dependable and organized team player, results driven leader, managing employee compliance,
hiring, onboarding and performance management. Offering twenty-five years' experience with
dispute resolution, developing employees and program management through smart, strategic
thinking that anticipates outcomes. Skilled at building relationships, in which employees feel
comfortable voicing questions and concerns, and contributing new ideas that advance
performance. Track record of leading change that drives efficiency and profitability. Implements
_practical practice improvements that enhance organization's overall effectiveness, harnesses
the latent potential of its workers and transforms individuals into top-performers.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CASA of New Hampshire, Claremont/New Hampshire
Program Director (Dec 2019-Current)

> Review new cases and assign appropriate volunteers taklng into account their strengths
personal choices and needs of the children to ensure an effective match

b Provnded supervision, assistance, and consultation for CASA volunteers to support them in
advocating for society’s most vulnerable population

> Review and edit Court reports of assigned CASA volunteers to ensure they are written
according to Court Protocols, they are accurate and convincing

> Assist and collaborate with CASA staff and volunteers to promote CASA in the community
and increase numbers of volunteers and suppaorters

The Orion House. Inc., Newport/New Hampshire
Program Director (Jan-July 2019)

"~ > Provided stability to a residential program for adolescent males that had become chaotic and
_counterproductive, progressing from three Critical Incident Reports daily to an occasional report’
monthly
>nitiated a process to transform the program into a Trauma Informed Treatment Center to align
with changes in group care funding relative to the Family First Prevention Act
>Recreated the behavior management system balancing accountability and treatment,
increased dialogue and administered behavior modification with conditioning and replacement
techniques, as well as interventions that enhanced learning
»By way of the New Hampshire Child Welfare Education Partnership, brought innovative
training to the program such as Trust Based Relational Intervention (TBRI), an evidence based,
trauma informed, attachment centered training
>»Revised the Job Description of the Educational Coordinator to allow far the flow of information
about Residents ‘attendance at classes, academic progress and completion of assignments to
address needs in real time resulting in Residents scoring average and above
»Developed procedures for Residential Supervisors to streamline their duties, provided
coaching and support, and maintained a presence in the program

Department of Health and Human Services Claremont/New Hampshire

Mark Rissala-Resume



Supervisor, Program Management, Field Worker (1999 — 2017)

> Provided leadership to multiple dynamic teams while leading new practice initiatives in
support of the strategic goals of the organization

> Reviewed all incoming applications and resumes, interviewed and selected appllcants and
integrated new employees into the organization

> Trained and supervised direct reports to become efficient, effective and emotlonally secure
completing assignments during times of turnover, increased initiatives and general work
overload _

> Championed practice enhancement, utilizing Lean Six Sigma, and team skill development in
district office with accomplishments utilized by other district offices

> Developed and strategically moved direct reports to essential positions including promotlon to
a supervisor

» Conducted abuse and neglect mvestlgatlons evaluated mformatlon hlghllghtlng ambivalence
between behavior and

personal desires to restore balance to families

> Worked together with CASA workers to improve outcomes for children

EDUCATION/ PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT/AFFILIATIONS

M.S. DEGREE, MANAGEMENT : B.S. DEGREE, HUMAN SERVICES
ANTIOCH NEW ENGLAND GRADUATE SCHOOL SPRINGFIELD COLLEGE '
KEENE/NEW HAMPSHIRE MANCHESTER/NEW HAMPSHIRE



JENNY A. SHEEHAN

. PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

August 2001 - Present

2000 - 2001

1995 - 2000

" Jenny Sheehan-Resume

C.A.5.4 of NH, Guardian ad Litem Program Manager,
Dover, New Hampshire '

Supervise forty Court-appointed Guardians ad Litem from the
Rochester, Dover and Ossipee District Courts in cases of child
abuse/neglect. Responsible for volunteer recruitment and
training, public speaking for the agency, and supervision of all
volunteer Guardians ad Litem.

Director, Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Portsmouth,
New Hampshire

Director of a countywide program specializing in the forensic
interviews of abused/neglected children. Designed, implemented
and oversaw facility and policies. Helped to organize
countywide team including prosecution, law enforcement,

D.C.Y F., medical, therapists and other child advocates. Spoke to
numerous area agencies, conducted fundraising activities, and
wrote grant to sustain budget. :

- Director, Victim Advocate Program,
Rockingham County Attorney's Office, Brentwood, N.H.

Supportive liaison between victims of crime (and their families)
and prosecutor, beginning with pre-indictment interviews.
Interview victim for police, if necessary, and prepare for trial. -
Advocate for victim's input in all phases of criminal justice
systern, accompany victim through depositions, and court
testimony and sentence/parole hearings. Address local groups,
law enforcement via training and public forums.



1991 - 1995

1987-1989

1983 - 1987

1978 - 1983

EDUCATION

Jenny Sheehan-Resume

Child Protective Worker, N.H. Division:for
Children, Youth and Families, Portsmouth, N.H.

Investigated/assessed reports of sexual, physical and emotional
abuse/neglect and violence. Interviewed victim(s), and
perpetrator to evaluate risk to victim. Collected and documented
evidence to support petition to court, and testified at all court
hearings. Conducted hundreds of children, sibling, and family
interviews. Located placements for children in alternative home
or childcare facility if necessary. Worked closely with N.H.
State Police, local police, therapists, schools, pediatricians and
prosecutors.

Finance Staff, Dukakis for President
Campaign, Chauncy Street, Boston, Mass.

During primary and presidential campaigrl, traveled throughout -
the U.S. raising money and organizing high-dollar flindraising
events for the Dukakis for President campaign.

Coordinator, N. Y.8. Division for Youth,
Try on School for Boys, Johnstown, N. Y.

* Supervised staff of thirty employees in secure rehabilitative
setting for repeat juvenile male offenders, ages 12-18. Managed
a cottage of forty at-risk youths, conducted daily group
counseling, prepared reports to Courts and advocated for youths
at all Court hearings. Provided ongoing training of staff and
conducted periodic staff performance evaluations.

Juvenile Parole Officer, _
N.Y.8. Division for Youth, Glens Falls, N.Y.

Supervised aftercare/parole of fifty court-placed youths ages
12-19. Designed and enforced parole program for each,
encompassing all educational, employment, counseling, health
and legal requirements. Assessed youth's adjustment to
family/community; revoked parole if necessary. Sought,
evaluated and licensed foster homes as temporary or permanent
_placements. .

- Skidmore College, Saratoga Springs, N.Y.
B.A., Sociology, Social Work. Cum Laude

References available upon request



JENNY A. SHEEHAN

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

August 2001 - Present

C.A.S.A of NH, Guardian ad Litem Program Manager,
Dover, New Hampshire

. Supervise forty Court-appointed Guardians ad Litem from the -

2000 - 2001

" 1995 - 2000

Rochester, Dover and Ossipee District Courts in cases of child
abuse/neglect. Responsible for volunteer recruitment and
training, public speaking for the agency, and supervision of all
volunteer Guardians ad Litem. ‘

Director, Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Portsmouth,
New Hampshire

!
Director of a countywide program specializing in the forensic

“interviews of abused/neglected children. Designed, implemented

and oversaw facility and policies. Helped to organize
countywide team including prosecution, law enforcement,
D.C.Y.F., medical, therapists and other child advocates. Spoke to
nurnerous area agencies, conducted fundraising activities, and
wrote grant to sustain budget.

'Dij‘rector, Victim Advocate Program,
-Rockingham County Attorney's Office, Brentwood, N.H.

Supportive liaison between victims of crime (and their families)
and prosecutor, beginning with pre-indictment interviews.
Interview victim for police, if necessary, and prepare for trial.
Advocate for victim's input in all phases of criminal justice
system, accompany victim through depositions, and court

" testimony and sentence/parole hearings.-Address local groups,

Jenny Sheehan-Resume

law enforcement via training and public forums.
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Jenny Sheehan-Resume

Child Protective Worker, N.H. Division Jor
Children, Youth and Families, Portsmouth, N.H.

Investigated/assessed reports of sexual, physical and emotional
abuse/neglect and violence. Interviewed victim(s), and
perpetrator to evaluate risk to victim. Collected and documented
evidence to support petition to court, and testified at all court
hearings. Conducted hundreds of children, sibling, and family
interviews. Located placements for children in alternative home
or childcare facility if necessary. Worked closely with N.H.
State Police, local police, therapists, schools, pediatricians and
Prosecutors. '

Finance Staff, Dukakis for President
Campaign, Chauncy Street, Boston, Mass.

During primary and presidential campaign, traveled throughout
the U.S. raising money and organizing high-dollar flindraising
events for the Dukakis for President campaign.

Coordinator, N. Y.5. Division for Youth,
Try on School for Boys, Johnstown, N. Y.

Supervised staff of thirty employees in secure rehabilitative
setting for repeat juvenile male offenders, ages 12-18. Managed
a cottage of forty at-risk youths, conducted daily group
counseling, prepared reports to Courts and advocated for youths
at all Court hearings. Provided ongoing training of staff and
conducted periodic staff performance evaluations.

:Juvenile Parole Officer,
N.Y.8. Division for Youth, Glens Falls, N.Y.

Supervised aftercare/parole of fifty court-placed youths ages
12-19. Designed and enforced parole program for each, '
encompassing all educational, employment, counseling, health -
and legal requirements. Assessed youth's adjustment to
family/community; revoked parole if necessary. Sought,
evaluated and licensed foster homes as temporary or permanent
placements.

Skidmore College, Saratoga Springs, N.Y.
B.A., Sociology, Social Work. Cum Laude

References available upon request



Bl JESSICA STOREY

OBJECTIVE Engaging volunteers in meaningful opportunities to enhance their
communities.

Proven leader managing volunteers in the child protection system
challenged by substance abuse mental health crisis.

¥

SKILLS & ABILITIES

¥ Recruiting. training, supervising, coaching, and constructively
evaluating volunteers to ensure their capability and confidence and
to uphokl the organization’s high standards for quality.-

® [xtensive writing experience, ranging from fun local news stories
and in-depth looks at policy to legal briefs.

» Comformble communicating and collaborating with an array of
people who have different interests and needs.
%  Familiar with Microsoft Word, Excel, CASA Manager database, GoTo

_ Meeting, Zoom and Survey Monkey.

EXPERIENCE PERMANENCY SPECIALIST, CASA OF NH
July 2018 to the present. )
As part of the legal team, [ oversee the TPR (termination of parental rights) portion of on-
going CASA cases. | work closely with individual CASA GALs as they write the reporis making
their final recommendation whether to terminate the rights of their CASA child’s parent and
I'm available to answer procedural questions about the TPR process they may have. '

PROGRAM MANAGER, CASA OF NH
August 2011 inta July 2018..

I supervised approximately 45 exceptional people who volunteer to advocate as guardians
ad litem for children who are the subject of abuse or neglect petitions in Grafton and Belknap
counties. ’

» | provided oaining to in-coming CASA volunteers and on-going‘education for
existing CASAs.

»  Icoached CASAs drafting court reports, preparing to speak in court, and debriefing
about what transpired after court.

| discussed how to negotiate with DCYF workers, parents, et al, process visits they
have had with their CASA children & youth and strategize regarding interactions

¥

Jessica Storey-Resume



with all athers involved.

» lam an engaging trainer and thoughtful sounding board for challenging situations.

ATTORNEY, ORR & RENO
2005-2008.

[ participated in the general practice law firm of Orr & Reno in Concord, NH as an associate
attorney after interning in the summer of 2004. [ handied many types of cases and
specialized in regulatory work, such as zoning, health care regulation and environmental
regulation. :

REPORTER, CASHMERE VALLEY NEWS
2000-2002.
| began as a sports writer for a small town paper when [ lived in Washington s&te. The

* paper was associated with two other small town papers, and 1 became a principal writer of

material for all three papers.

WHOLESALE SALES MANAGER, CANOE IMPORTS
1997-1999. '

1sold canoes and kayaks at a popular store near Burlington, VT. While | always helped with
retail sakes, | came to manage the significant wholesale business to camnps and insdwtions.

EFL fEACHER, KHON KAEN UNIVERSITY
1995-1996.

I mught English to university students in Thailand for two semesters after | graduated from
Princeton University.

EDUCATION-

LITTLETON HIGH SCHOOL - LITTLETON, NH — HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA
Graduated sa!utz}torian in 1991.
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY = PRINCETON, NJ-B.A. -
Graduated in 1995. Philosophy major, Linguistics certificate.
BOSTON UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW-BOSTON, MA -).D.
Graduated cum laude in 2005.

REFERENCES

Available upon request.
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HESSION & PARE, .

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
£2 Stark Steect, Manchester, New Hampshine D3 101
6030645477 FAX 603-669.0197

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc.
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Court Appointed Special
Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. (‘CASA™) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise
the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements
of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements. '

Manirgenient’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. - :

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order ‘to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
CASA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.



To the Boarcl of Directors -
Court Appointed Special Advocates of Ncw Hampshire, Inc.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion,

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of CASA as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets
- and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally .
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphﬁsis of Matter

/
As discussed in Note 2 to the financial staterﬁcnts, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2019
and 2018, CASA adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting

. Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not for-Prof t
Entities. Our opinion is not modlﬁed with respect to this matter.

,U—M—mf/ﬂwc. ]VL'

November 4, 2019
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of June 30, 2019
(with comparative totals for 2018)

ASSETS
Without Donor  With Donor _
Restrictions ~ Restrictions 2019 2018

Asscls
Cash $ 894,161 3 3,588 $ 897,749 $ 948,657
Endowment investments in cash - 50,548 50,548 22,872
Endowment investments - 681,576 681,576 622,104
Sponsorship receivable 7,556 - - 7,556 -
Grants receivable 161,966 - 161,966 27,227
Prepaid expenses - - - 1,852

* Property and equipment, net 1,063,230 - 1,063,230 1,112,442

Total assets $ 2,126,913 $ 735712 $ 2,862,625 $ 2,735,154

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities .

Accounts payable $ 49394 % - 8 49394 § 55716
Accrued expenses 112,696 - 112,696 89,409

Tota! liabilities 162,090 - 162,090 145,125

Commitments (see Notes)

Net assets .
Without donor restrictions 1,964,823 - 1,964,823 1,877,957
With donor restrictions - 735,712 - 735,712 712,072

Total net assets 1,964,823 735212 © 2,700,535 2,590,029

Total liabilities and net assets $ 2,126,913 $ 735712 - § 2,862,625 $ 2,735,154

See notes to financial statements.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Public support
Contributions
Government grants - :
Fundraising events (net of costs $128,851)
Private grants
Qther income
In-kind donations
Total public support
Investment income, net of fees of $6,062

Total public support and investment income

Net assets released from restrictions
For satisfaction of program restrictions

Total public support, investment income and
net assets released from restrictions

Expenses
Program services

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

Increase in net assets

Net essets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See notes to ﬁnang:ial statements.

Without Donor ~ With Donor :
Restrictions ~ Restrictions 2019

$ 344,016 $ 42,023 $ 386,039
1,340,946 Co- 1,340,946
534,470 - 534,470
247,784 2,000 249,784
25,034 . 25,034
20,194 - - 20,194
2,512,444 44,023 2,556,467
5,300 44135 49,435
2,517,744 88,158 - 2,605,902
64,518 (64,518) -
2,582,262 23,640 2,605,902
2,037,990 - 2,037,990
180,666 - 180,666
276,740 - 276,740
2,495,396 - 2,495,396
86,366 23,640 110,506
1,877,957 712,072 . 2,590,029
$ 1,964,823 § 735712 § 2,700,535
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" COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

STATEMENT Ol';‘ ACTIVITIES AND CﬂANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ehded June 30, 2018

Without Donor ~ With Donor
Restrictions | Restyictions 2018
Public support
Contributions ‘ $ 427,578 b 42316 $ 469,894
Government grants 1,258,305 - 1,258,305
Fundraising events (net of costs $84,814) 555,189 - 555,189
Private grants 229,373 90,000 319,373
Other income 21,534 - 21,534
In-kind donations 11,275 - 11,275
Total public support 2,503,254 132,316 2,635,570
Investment income, net of fee§ of $5,071 . 51 25,661 25,7'12
Total public support and investment income 2,503,305 157,977 2,661,282
Net assets reieased from restrictions
For satisfaction of program restrictions 27,766 (27,766) -
Total public support, investment income and
net assets released from restrictions 2,531,071 130,211 2,661,282
Expenses _ '
Program services 1,876,133 - 1,876,133
Supporting activities
Management and general 162,124 - 162,124
Fundraising 213,459 - 213,459
Total expenses 2,251,716 - 2,251,716
Increase in net assets 279,355 130,211 409,566
Net asséls, beginning of year 1,598,602 - 581,861 2,180,463
Net assets, end of year $ 1,877,957 $ 712,072 § 2,590,029

See notes to _ﬁnancial statermnents.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

Payroll
Salaries ang wages
Payroll taxes

Total payroll

Other
Insurance
Professional fees and contract labor
Office expense
Travel
Service contracts
Deprecigtion
Rent
Telephone
Bank fees
Training
Postage
Repairs and meintenance
Dues, memberships and subscriptions
Utilities
Printing
- Conferences and meetings
Meals and entertainment
Gifts and promotions
Advertising

Total other

Total cxpenses

Sce notes to financial statcments.

For the Year Ended June 30,2019
(with comparative totals for 2018)

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Management

Services and General Fundraising 2019 2018
$ 1,368,151 $ 121,286 . §- 185782 $1,675,219 $1,405,338
101,961 9,039 13,845 124,845 105,572
1,470,112 130,325 199,627 1,800,064 1,516,910
162,644 14,418 22,086 199,148 149,897
76,941 6,821 10,448 94,210 45,769
50,105 4,442 6,804 61,351 71,285
46,589 4,130 6,326 57,045 69,510
40,459 1,587 5,494 49,540 48,082
40,191 1,563 5,458 49,212 54,909
39,721 3,521 5,394 48,636 - 28,501
16,238 " 1,439 2,205 19,882 20,647
16,156 1,432 2,194 19,782 11,909
15,479 1,372 2,102 18,953 101,199
13,396 1,188 1,819 16,403 14,427
11,180 g9l 1,518 13,689 50,690
11,092 983 1,506 13,581 13,608
8,890 788 1,207 10,885 11,i 14
7.136 633 . 969 8,738 7,631
4,426 392 601 5419 6,745
4,008 355 544 4,907 12,038
1,871 166 254 - 2,291 22,397
1,156 120 184 1,660 451
567,378 50,341 77,113 695,332 740,806

$2,037,990 5 180,666 § 276740  $2,495396  $2,251,716
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(with comparstive totals for 2018)

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 110,506 $ 409,566
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation 49,212 54,909
Net realized and unrealized (gain) on investments (22,121) (6,394)
{Increase) decrease in sponsorships receivable {7,556) 6,500
(Increase) decrease in grants receivable (134,739) 21,528
Decrease in pledges receivable - 1,000
Contributions restricted for long-term investment (42,023) 42,317
Decrease in prepaid expenses 1,852 6,143
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 16,965 6,222
Net cash (used in) ;irovided l;y operating activities (27,904) 457,157
Cash fiows from investing activities
(Increase) decrease in endowment investments in cash ~ (68,278) 4,045
Proceeds from sale of investments 347,744 184,108
Purchase of investments (344,493) (250,736)
Purchase of property and equipment - {26,441)
Net cash used in investing activities (65,027) (89,024)
Cash flows from financing activities
Contributions restricted for long-term investment 42,023 42,317
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents {50,908) 410,450
Cash and cash equiivalents, beginning of year 948,657 538,207
Cash and cash equivalents, end .of' year § - 897,749 5 948,657

See notes to financial statements.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. ("CASA") is a non-
stock, non-profit corporation organized in New Hampshire. CASA's primary service
is training volunteers in New Hampshire to advocate for abused and neglected
children in the court system. The major source of revenue is government grant
income. '

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Significant accounting policies

CASA prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles promulgated in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) for
not-for-profit entities. The significant accounting and reporting policies used by
CASA are described subsequently to enhance the usefulness and understandability of
the financial statements.

Comparative financial information

The financial statements of CASA include certain prior-year summerized
comparative information in total. Such information does not include sufficient detail
to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with CASA's
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Use of estimates and assumptions

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the’
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported revenues and expenses.
Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts.

Cash equivalents

For‘ purposes. of reporting cash flows, CASA considers all highly liquid debt .
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
There are no cash equivalents at June 30, 2019,
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
- OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Net assets

The financial statements report net assets and changes in net assets that are based
upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors, as
follows: |

Net assets without donor restrictions — Net assets without donor
restrictions are resources available to support operations. The only
limits on the use of these net assets are the broad limits resulting from
the nature of CASA, the environment in which it operates, the purposes
specified in its corporate documents and its application for tax-exempt
status, and any limits resulting from contractual agreements with
creditors and others that are entered into in the course of its operations.

Net assets with donor restrictions — Net assets with donor restrictions
are resources that are restricted by a donor for use for a particular
purpose or in a particular future period. Some donor-imposed
restrictions are temporary in nature, and the restriction will expire when

. the resources are used in accordance with the donor’s instructions or
when the stipulated time has passed. Other donor-imposed restrictions

. are perpetual in nature; CASA must continue to use the resources in
accordance with the donor’s restrictions.

Investments

CASA carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair
" values based upon quoted market prices. Unrealized and realized gains and losses are
included in the accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets with
investment income. Purchased and gifted securities are recorded at fair value on the
date of the acquisition or gift date, net of any brokerage fees. CASA's investments do
not have a significant concentration of credit risk within any industry, geographic
tocation or specific location.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL AD\}OCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contir_lue'd)
Sponsorships receivable

Sponsorships receivable consist of amounts billed to event sponsors for events that
have already occurred, but for which amounts have not yet been paid. CASA
establishes its allowance for uncollectible accounts based on prior collection
experience. It is CASA's policy to charge-off uncollectible accounts receivable when
management determines the receivabie will not be collected. Management does
consider a variety of factors, including risk characteristics of the selected accounts,
number of days outstanding and current economic conditions.

Property and equipment .

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or in the case of donated assets, at fair
value. Items with an individual or aggregate cost of less than $1,000 are expensed in
the year of purchase. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as
incurred. ' :

The provision for depreciation is made using the straight-line method by annual
- charges calculated to absorb the costs over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements : 39 years
Furniture, equipment and software 3-5 years

' Contributions and grants

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized when
received. All contributions are reported as increases in net assets without donor
restrictions unless use of the contributed assets is specifically restricted by the donor.
Amounts received that are restricted by the donor to usé in future periods or for
specific purposes are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
Contributions restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without

~ donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the fiscal year in which the-contributions
are recognized. When a restriction expires, donor restricted net assets are reclassified
to net assets without donor restrictions.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continﬁed)
Donated goods and services

A significant portion of CASA's functions are conducted by unpaid officers, board
members and volunteers. The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the
accompanying financial statements since it does not meet the criteria necessary for
recognition under U.S. GAAP. Donated materials and equipment are reflected as in-
kind donations at their estimated fair value at the datc of receipt.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized
on a functional basis in the accompanying statement of activities and changes in net
assets and in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the program services, supporting activities and fundraising as
benefited.

,Advertising costs
CASA charges advertising costs to operating expenses as incuired.
Income taxes

CASA is a not-for-profit organization exempt from income tax under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is classified as other than a private
foundation. However, certain unrelated business income is subject to federal taxation.
For the year ended June 30, 2019, there was no liability for tax on unrelated business
income. Accordingly, no provision for federal income tax has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements. -

CASA is no longer subject to income tax examinations by U.S. Fedcral or State tax
authorities for tax years before 2015.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)
Change in accounting principles
CASA implemented FASB ASU No. 2016-14 in the current year, applying the
changes retrospectively. The new standards change the following aspects of the

financial statements:

o The unrestricted net asset class has been renamed net assets without donor
restrictions. ‘

e The temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net assets have been
combined into a single net asset class called net assets with donor restrictions.

e The financial statements include a disclosure about liquidity and availability
of resources (Note 3).

The changes had the following g:ffect on net assets at July 1, 2018:

After.

‘ Asoriginally  adoption of
-Net asset class ‘presented ASU 2016-14
Unrestricted net assets $ 1,877,957

. Temporarily restricted net assets 186,587
Permanently restricted net assets 525,485 _
Net assets without donor restrictions £ 1,877,957
Net assets with donor restrictions : 712,072

Total net assets o $2.590020  §2.520.029
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use within one year of June 30, 2019 are:

Financial assets;

Cash ' $ 897,749
Endowment investments in cash - 41,742
Endowment investments , 690,382 -
Sponsorship receivable . 7,556
Grants receivable . 161,966
Total financial assets 1,799,395
Less financial assets held to meet donor-imposed restrictions:
Purpose-restricted net assets : . ' (4,717)
Donor-restricted endowment funds ; (732.124)

Amount available for general expenditures within one year $.1.062.554

CASA’s endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments. Income from
donor-restricted endowments is available for general use and could be made available
if necessary. Donor-restricted endowment funds are not available for general
expenditure.

Note 4, INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The FASB defines fair value as the price that would be received for an asset or paid
to transfer a liability (an exit price) in CASA'S principal or most advantageous market
in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.

The standard establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires CASA to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used
to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that CASA has the ability to access as of the
measurement date.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level | prices
such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect CASA's own
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use

in pricing an asset or liability.

. In many caseés, a valuation technique used to measure fair value includes inputs from
multiple levels of the fair value hierarchy. The lowest level of significant input
determines the placement of the entire fair value measurement in the hierarchy.

Investments measured at fair value at June 30 are summarized below:

June 30, 2019

Valued on a recurring basis
Investment cash
US equities

- International equities
Fixed income
Other investments

Total investments

June 30, 2018

Valued on a recurring basis
Investment cash .

~ US equities
I[nternational equities
Fixed income
Other investments

Total investments

Fair i

Value (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
§ 50548 § 50,548  § . s N
304,988 304,988 - -

50,710 50,710 - .
312,814 - 312,814 -

13,064 13,064 - -
$732124 $419310 3312814 & -

Fair '

Value (Level 1) (Level?)  (Level3)
$ 22872 , § 22,872 $ - 8 -
258,744 258,744 : - -

51,405 51,405 - -
266,802 - . 266,802 -

45,153 45.153 - -
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (concluded)

Fair values for investments are determined by reference to quoted market prices and
other relevant information generated by market transactions. The fair value of
contributions receivable is estimated at net realizable value. The fair value of Level
2 investments has been measured using quoted market prices of similar assets and the

fair value market approach.

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of ‘an estimate of fair

value of certain financial instruments. CASA's significant financial instruments are
cash and other short-term assets and liabilities. For thesc financial instruments,

carrying values approxrmate fair value.

Investment return is summarized as follows at June 30:

2019 2018 -
Net investment income $ 22,014 519,267
Net unrealized gain (loss) 23,914 (9,547)
Net realized (loss) gain- ' (1,793) . 15,941
$ 44,135 $ 25,661

Note 5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost and were as follows at June 30:

019 018
Buildings and improvements $ 1,394,343 $ 1,394,343
Furniture, equipment and software 176,094 176,094
1,570,437 1,570,437
Less accumulated depreciation . 507,207 457,995
Property and equipment, net $ 1,063,230 $1,112,442
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the fbllowing purposes or periods

at June 30:
019 - 2018

Portion of perpetual endowment funds subject

to time restriction under the Uniform Prudent

Management of Institutional Funds Act

(UPMIFA) ' $ 163,487 $ 119,352
Program manager position - 37,500
Feasibility study - 15,000
Claremont office support - . - 11,673
Gift cards , 2,000 -
Generator 2,717 3,062
Endowment restricted in perpetuity 567,508 525,485

Total ' $ 735,712 $ 712,072

Note 7. ENDOWMENT FUNDS AND NET ASSETS

CASA adheres to the Other Presentation Matters section of the Presentation of
Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Organizations in accordance with U.S.
GAAP. U.S. GAAP provides guidance on the net asset classification of donor-
restricted endowment funds for a non-profit organization that is subject to an enacted
version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA).
U.S. GAAP also requires additional disclosures about an organization's endowment
funds (both donor-restricted endowment funds and board-designated endowment
funds), whether or not the organization is subject to UPMIFA.

The State of New Hampshire enacted UPMIFA effective July 1, 2008, the pro{risions
of which apply to endowment funds existing on or established after that date. CASA
adopted these provisions for the year ended June 30, 2009,

CASA's endowment is comprised of five named funds and includes donor-restricted
endowment funds. As required by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment
funds, including any funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restricttons.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. ENDOWMENT FUNDS AND NET ASSETS (continued)

The Board of Directors of CASA has interpreted UPMIFA as allowing CASA to
appropriate for expenditure or accumulate so much of an endowment fund as CASA
determines to be prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes and duration for which the
endowment fund is established, subject to the intent of the donor as expressed in the
gift instrument.

The original gift is defined by CASA as (a) the original value of gifts donated to the

donor-restricted endowment, (b) the original value of any subsequent gifts to_ donor-

" trestricted endowment, and (c) accumulations to donor-restricted endowment made in

_accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the tlmc the
accumulation is added to the fund.

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies

CASA has adopted an investment policy, approved by the Board of Directors, to
create a balanced portfolio among several asset classes managing moderate levels of
return with moderate levels of risk, while exceeding long-term inflation. Given
CASA has no immediate intention of appropriating any assets for expenditure, there
is currently no spending policy in place for the year ended June 30, 2019. However,
management is currently in the process of establishing a spending policy that will be
in accordance with UPMIFA. During this process, CASA will consider the foltowing
factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the
purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions,
(4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from
income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of CASA and (7) the
investment policies of CASA.
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL A_DVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. ENDOWMENT FUNDS AND NET ASSETS (continued)
Endowment net assets composition by type of fund were as foilows:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
* June 30,2019
Donor-restricted endowment
funds N S C 8732124 732124
Without Donor  With ‘Donor
) Restrictions =~ Restrictions Total
June 30, 2018 '
Donor-restricted endowment
funds b I 044976 3644970

Endowment net assets were as follows;

Without Donor With Donor

: Restrictions  Restrictions Total
~June 30, 2019
Investments, beginning : ' .
of year SR $ 644,976 $ 644,976

Net investment income . 22,014 22,014
Unrealized gain - 23,914 23,914
Realized (loss) - - (1,793) (1,793)
Total investment return T 44,135 44,135

" Contributions - 43,013 43,013

Investments, end of year s - $232.124 $732.124
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COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. ENDOWMENT FUNDS AND NET ASSETS (con.cluded) -

Without Donor With Donor

‘ Restrictions Restrictions Total
June 30, 2018
Investments, beginning

of year $ - $ 576,999 $ 576,999
Net investment income | - 119,267 19,267
Unrealized (loss) - - (5,547) (9,547)
Realized gain - 15,941 15,941
Total investment return - 25,661 25,661
Contributions - 45,3 16 43316
Other changes : - (1,000) (1,000}

Investments, end of year S 1644976  $£644.976

_In a prior year, CASA created a donor-restricted endowment fund named in memory
‘of one of CASA's strongest supporters, Mr. John Zahr. While the endowment
principal will be permanently invested, the income from the endowment may be used
to support the general operations of CASA, unless otherwise stated by the donor.
Through the donor-restricted endowment fund, donors who feel compelled to leave a
legacy gift or otherwise invest in CASA's future will now have that opportunity.

Note 8. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

CASA maintains its cash at various institutions insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per depositor at each financial
institution. At June 30, 2019, CASA’s uqinsured cash balance at one financial

institution totaled $387,366.
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COURT APPOII"\'TED SPECIAL ADVOCATES .
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC.

. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

CASA has operating lease agreements for various office spaces in Laconia, Dover
Claremont, Berlin and Keene, New Hampshire. These lease agreements require
monthly rental payments ranging from approximately $400 to $1,000 and expire
between August 2019 and April 2023, ‘

There is currently no rent requirement other than utilities for CASA's Colebrook
office. There was no rent requirement for CASA’s Berlin office through December
2018. The estimated fair values of the monthly rental for these spaces are $7,800 and'
$3,300, respectively. '

Minimum future commitments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

_ Year ending
June 30, Amount
2020 $30,278
2021 12,000
2022 - 12,000
2023 10,000
Total $ 64,278

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, rent expense was $48,636 and $28,501,

respectively.
RETIREMENT PLAN

CASA has a defined contribution plan covering all eligible employees. CASA makes
no contributions to the plan, but employees may make contributions to the plan up to
the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Code.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

CASA has evaluated subsequent events through November 4, 2019, the date which
the financial statements were available to be issued, and has not evaluated subsequent
events after that date. No subsequent events were identified that would require
disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019,
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The State of New Hampshire and the Subrecipicnt hereby
Mutually sgree os follows: :

: GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. 1dentification and Definitions,

1.1, State Agency Name' : " | 1.2. State Agency Address

New Hampsh:re Department of Justlce : 33 Capitdl Street, Concord NH 03301
1.3. Subrecipient Namc 1.4, Subrecipient Address
VICTIMS, INC., THE JOAN ELLIS VICTIM
ASSISTANCE NETWORK B . 23 Highland Street, East Rochester NH 03868
1.5 Subreccipicnt Phone # 1.6. Account Number 1.7. Completion Date 1.8. Grant Limitation
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02-20-20-201510-5021-0
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"1.9. Grant OfTicer for State Agency - 1.10. State Agency Tclephone Number

Thomas Kaempfer. 4{603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we certify thal we have complied with any public meeling requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicablc RSA 31:95-b.° ]

.11, Su recipient Signature U B L 12 Name &Tllle of Subrggipient Signor 1
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Assistant Atlorncy General, On: / '
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_ 2 SCOPL: QF WORK: In exchange- for grant funds provided by the State of New H:mpshlrf, acling through the Agency -
identified in block 1.1 (hcrulmﬂcl referred 10 as “the State™), the Subrecipicnt idéntified in block 1.3 (hereinalicr referred to as

“the Subrecipient”), shall perform that work identificd and more particularly described in the scope of work attached herelo as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinalter referred to as “‘the Project”).
Subrecipient Initial(s) _é/
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}’_\I'{!,_A: COVERED, Except as otherwisc specifically provided for herein, the
‘Subrecipient shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New

9.2

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient shall
grant to the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to ali data

. H:':'mpshire for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
EFFECTIVE : F other purpose whatsoever.
|hlS Agrccmcnl and all obligations of the pamm hereunder, shall become 9.3. No data shall be subject 1o copyright in the United States or any other country by
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor anyone other than the State.

. und Council of the State of New l-Iumpshlrc if required (block 1.17), or upon 9.4,  On and after the Effective Date all data, and any propenty which has been
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 (“the effective date™). received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under

4.2, Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned (o the
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior 1o State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
the date in block 1.7 (hereinafler referred 1o as “the Completion Date™). whichever shall first occur,

: LV RS: 9.5.  The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to

5.1.  The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B, publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
attached hereto. 10. CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT, Notwithstanding anything in

.52, The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set lorth in EXHIBIT B. this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,

5.3. In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration without limitation, the continuance of payments hercunder, arc contingent upon
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or
Subrecipient the Grant Amount. The State sholl withhold from the amount appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
otherwise payable 1o the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become
required, or permitted, 1o be withheld pursuant te N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c. evailable, il ever, and shall have the right to terminate this Agreement

54. The payment by the State of the Grunt amount shall be the only, and the immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination,
complelc payment 1o the Subrecipienl for all expenses, of whatever nature, 11. A - : .
mcurrcd by the Subrecipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, 11.1.  Any one or more of the following #cis or omissions of the Subrecipient shalt

) end Lthe complete, compensation 1o the Subrecipient for the Project.  The Staie constitute an event of default hereunder (hereinafler referred to as “Events of

v shrall have no liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount. Default™):

5.5 N 'fwuhsmndmg anything in this Agrccmem to the comtrary, and I1.i.1 Failure 1o perform the Project satisfactority or on schedule; or

: ncmlthsmndlng unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all 11.1.2 Failure 10 submit any repont required hereunder; or
) piymcnls authorized, or actually made, hercunder exceed the Grant limitation 11.1.3  Failure to maintain, or permit access 1o, the records required hereunder, or
b ' . set ‘forth in bIocL 1.8 of lhcsc genem] prowsnons 11.1.4 Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement,
6, b PIE W, i 11.2. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or
v If*éonnection with the pcrf'orrnancc of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply more, or all, of the following actions:
}w_;h all stawtes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or 11.2.1 Give the SubrCC|p1cnt o written notice specifying the Event of Default and
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon Lhe requiring it (o be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
Subrecipient, including the acquisition of any and all necessary permits. specification of time, thiny (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
T - Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminzate this Agreement, effective two
7:1,  Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion (2) days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination; and
- Date the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in 11.2.2 Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
connection with the Project, including, but not limited to, costs of suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
administration, transponiation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the Siate
other similar documents. determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shalt never be
7.2, Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years afler the Completion paid to the Subrecipicnt; and
Date, a1 any time during the Subrecipient’s normal business hours, and as ofien 11.2.3  Set off against any other obligation the State may owe lo the Subrecipient any
us the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State all damages the Siate suffers by reason of any Event of Defoult; and
i 'r'qcords pertaining to matiers covered by this Agreement, The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4 Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies ot law or in
- pémmit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make equity, or both.

niidits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data 12. X

(as that Lerm is hereinafier defined), end other information relating to all matters 12.1.  Inthe event of any carly termination of this Agreement for any reason other than

. covcrcd by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, “Subrecipient” includes the completion of the Project, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant Officer,

. ull ‘persons, noturel or fictional, affilisted with, controlled by, or under commen not later than fifteen (15) days afler the date of termination, a report (hereinafter

E uwncrshlp with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these referred to as the “Termination Repon™) describing in detail all Project Work
prowsmns performed, and the Grant Amount earmed, to and including the date of

8. 'PERSONNEL, termination.

8.1 Tl]c ‘Subrecipicni shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to 122, In the event of Termination under parngraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general

¢ pcrfonn the Project. The Subrecipient warrants that all personnel engaged in the provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
iject shall be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant mmount eamed 1o and

s m_u; puthorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws. including the date of termination.

82, ‘The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, 12.3.  In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
subgrantee, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
combined effort to perform the Project, 10 hire any person who has a contractual event relieve the Subrecipient from any and alt liability for damages sustained or

! relationship with the State, or who is 2 State officer or employee, elected or incurred by the State as o result of the Subrecipient’s breach of its obligations

8.3, eappointed. hereunder.

The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. Inthe event 124, Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant except where notice default has been given 1o the Subrecipient hereunder, the
OfTicer, and hisher decision on any dispute, shall be final. Subrecipient, may 1&rminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days

9. DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS. written nolice.

91, As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all information and 13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. Mo officer, member of employee of the
lhmgs developed or obtained during the performance of, of acquired or Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
déveloped by reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
iéports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video Project is to be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations, review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
cbmpmcr programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which afTects his or her
documems all whether finished or unfinished.

:h -
Rev, 9/’2015 Page 2 of 25 Subrecipient Initial(s): W

Date;

3 [a8 [>0
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17.1

17.1.1.

in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.

" SUBRECIPIENT'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or
subgrantee of the Subrecipient are in all respects independent contractors, and

. are neither agents nor employees of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees,
shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefs,
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by the State to s

.’ employees.

W The Subrecipient shall not assign,

sor otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written

- consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or

subgrumed by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
pnor wrillen consent of the State,

The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold

S “harmless the State, its officers and employces, from and against any and all

f' ‘losses sullered by the Stale, its olicers and employees, and any and all claims,

#pliabilities or penallies asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by
. or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting {rom, arising out

'-'. of (or which may be claimed 1o arise out of) the acts or omissions of the

e "Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee of other agent of the Subrecipient.

v »Notwithsiznding the foregoing, nothing herein comtained shall be deemed to

i tonstitute o waiver of the sovereign immunity of Lthe State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement,

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or
shall require &ny subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project
_work Lo obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance:

Stawtory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance lor all
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and

. |7.l.2:‘, Comprehensive public liability insurance againsi all claims of bodily injurics,
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* death or propeny damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence
2, and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
..* $500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and

Page 3 of 25

" personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or ssociation 17.2.

20.
21
22
23

24.

The policies described in subparagraph 7.1 of this peragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable 10 the State, and authorized to do business in the Siate of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the Stnte,

WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provistons
hereof after any Event of Defaull shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereol. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the provisions hereol upon any further or other default on the part of the
Subrecipient.

NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed (o
have been duly delivered or given a1 the time of mailing by cenified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post Oflice addressed to the parties at the
addresses first above given.

AMENDMENT. This Agrecement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and onty afier approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
Siate ol New Hampshlrc if required or by the s:gnmg State Agency.

. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the “subject” blank are
used only os a matter of convenien